


General Information 

"Located sixteen miles east-southeast of Alfred, twenty miles from Portland. Formerly known as Arundel. 

Visited during the summer as early as 1602 by fishermen. First permanent settlement made by Richard Vines 

in 1629. Brought under the control of Massachusetts and incorporated in 1653. Placed under the jurisdiction of 

Saco for a short time in 1688. Re-incorporated under the name of Arundel in 1717. Name changed February 

19, 1821." 

Town Area 

Roads 

2020 Federal Census 

2022 School Population as of October 1, 2022 

High School students 

Middle School students 

Consolidated School students 

Kennebunk Elementary School students 

Sea Road students 

Mildred L. Day students 

2021 Tax Year Town Valuation (Fiscal Year 2022) 

2021 Tax Year Tax Commitment (Fiscal Year 2022) 

2022 Fiscal Year Valuation 

School 

County 

Town 

57.56% 

6.13% 

36.31% 

2022 Tax Year Town Valuation (Fiscal Year 2023) 

2022 Tax Year Tax Commitment (Fiscal Year 2023) 

2023 Fiscal Year Valuation 

School 55% 

County 6% 

Town 39% 

Front cover photograph by Bob Dennis 

1983-1984 Maine Register 

18.6 square miles 

52 miles 

3,670 

322 

117 

66 

113 

12 

9 

5 

$2,038,685,040 

$19,523,405 

$9.60 per $1,000 Valuation 

$3,463,221,040 

$20,779,326 

$6.00 per $1,000 Valuation 

Many thanks to all who contributed to this report, especially Hope Mowry-Wall and Patricia Saunders. 
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Dedication 

In Memory of 

James Fitzgerald, Jr. 

Each year as we decide to whom we should dedicate the Town Report, we are amazed at the amount of 

fantastic people in our community. This was exemplified in Jim Fitzgerald. The news of Jim's passing was 

shocking to many. 

Born in Baltimore, Maryland, and raised in Wildwood Crest, New Jersey, Jim moved to Maine after serving in 

the Air Force. Jim flew B-52's throughout the Vietnam War, first reporting to Craig Air Force Base in Selma, 

AL, then on to Guam, and remaining in southern Vietnam for the remainder of the war. After first moving to the 

Portland area, Jim made his way to Kennebunkport in 1997 where he met the love of his life, Betsy. They were 

married in Cape Porpoise and had one daughter, Cheyenne. Jim was not only committed to serving his 

country but also his local community. 

He was a resident of Kennebunkport from 1997 until his passing in December of 2022. He was a committed 

volunteer on a number of Town Boards and Committees, including the Zoning Board of Appeals and the 

Growth Planning Committee, where he served as Vice-Chair. In addition to his work with the Town, he was a 

member of the Kennebunkport Business Association, served as President of the Kennebunk, Kennebunkport, 

Arundel Chamber of Commerce, and on the Board of Directors for the Kennebunkport Heritage Housing Trust. 

He served as the Chair of the York County Community College Board of Directors and was a Board Member 

of the United Way of York County and Chair of the Annual United Way Appeal in 2009, earning the Elise 

Kittredge Award in 2015 for his work with the organization. 

His generosity and passion for giving back to the community will be remembered, as will his kindness, sense 

of humor, and warm nature. 
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TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT 

WARRANT 
ANNUAL TOWN MEETING 

June 13 and 17, 2023 

State of Maine County of York, SS. 

To:  Rebecca Nolette, Constable of the Town of Kennebunkport, in the County of York, State of 
Maine. 

You are hereby required in the name of the State of Maine to notify and warn the voters of the 
Town of Kennebunkport in said County and State of the Town Meeting described in this warrant. 

GREETINGS: 

To the voters of Kennebunkport:  You are hereby notified that the Annual Town Meeting of this 
municipality will be held at Village Fire Station, located at 32 North Street, in said Town on 
Tuesday, June 13, 2023, at 8:00 a.m. for the purpose of acting on Articles numbered one a (1a) 
and one (1) as set out below.  The polls for voting on Article 1 shall be opened immediately after 
the election of the Moderator at 8:00 a.m. on June 13, 2023, and shall close at 8:00 p.m. While the 
polls are open, the Registrar of Voters will hold office hours to accept the registration of any person 
eligible to vote, to accept new enrollments, and to make any necessary corrections or changes to 
any names or addresses on the voting list.  The continuation of said meeting will be held in the 
gymnasium of the Kennebunkport Consolidated School located at 25 School Street on Saturday, 
June 17, 2023, at 9:00 a.m. for the purpose of acting on Articles numbered 2 through 12 as set out 
below. 

ARTICLE 1a.  To choose a Moderator to preside at said meeting. 

ARTICLE 1.  To elect under the provisions of Title 30-A, M.R.S.A. Section 2528, the following 
Town Officers: one (1) Selectmen, for a term of three years and one (1) Director of Regional 
School Unit No. 21, for a term of three years; and to vote on the following referendum questions 
1-6.

For each Question 1 through 4, a certified copy of the proposed ordinance is on file 
in the Town Clerk’s Office and is incorporated by reference into each Question. 
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********************************************************************** 

QUESTION 1 
AMENDMENT TO THE KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CODE, 

 CHAPTER 5 – ADMINISTRATIVE CODE 

Shall an ordinance entitled “June 2023 Amendment to the Administrative Code - Boards 
and Committees” be enacted?    

[Note of explanation: This amendment seeks to change the composition of the Cape Porpoise 
Pier Committee by having at least 75% of the membership made up of Commercial Fisherman 
instead of 75% of registered voters of Kennebunkport. It also adds a definition of Commercial 
fisherman.] 

********************************************************************** 

QUESTION 2 
AMENDMENT TO THE KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CODE, 

 CHAPTER 5 - ADMINISTRATIVE CODE  

Shall an ordinance entitled “June 2023 Amendment to Administrative Code - Annual and 
Special Town Meetings” be enacted?   

[Note of explanation:  This amendment changes annual town meeting from the Saturday following 
the 2nd Tuesday in June to the Wednesday evening following the 2nd Tuesday in June.] 

********************************************************************** 

QUESTION 3 
AMENDMENT TO THE KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CODE 

CHAPTER 240 - LAND USE ORDINANCE –  
TERMINOLOGY, ACCESSORY APARTMENTS 

Shall an ordinance entitled “June 2022 Amendment to Kennebunkport Town Code, 
Chapter 240 -Terminology (regarding Accessory Apartments)” be enacted? 

[Note of explanation:  This amendment would revise the standards that govern Accessory 
Apartments, for the principal purpose of bringing them into compliance with a recently enacted 
state law governing housing also known as LD 2003.] 

********************************************************************** 
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********************************************************************** 

QUESTION 4 
AMENDMENT TO KENNEBUNKPORT TOWN CODE, 

 CHAPTER 240 - LAND USE ORDINANCE – TOWN-WIDE REGULATIONS 
(PRIVATE ROAD CONSTRUCTION) 

Shall an ordinance entitled “June 2022 Amendment to the Kennebunkport Town Code, 
Chapter 240 – Land Use Ordinance – Town-wide Regulations (private road construction” 
be enacted? 

[Note of explanation:  This amendment would add performance standards and technical diagrams 
regarding turn around requirements for new or expanded private roads. The turnaround 
requirements are based on the needs of a new ladder truck for which the town has entered into a 
lease purchase arrangement.] 

****************************************************************** 

QUESTION 5 
 AUTHORIZE EASEMENT DEED FOR ST. ANN’S EPISCOPAL CHURCH 

Shall the Town grant an easement over Town-owned property from Ocean Avenue over 
Old Fort Avenue (Map 7/Block 1/Lot 8) to St. Ann’s Episcopal Church for the Church to 
reconstruct and perform ongoing maintenance of the existing seawall? 

[Note of explanation:  This would grant St. Ann’s Episcopal Church an easement to access the 
seawall for maintenance and reconstruction.] 

**************************************************************** 

QUESTION 6 
AUTHORIZE PURCHASE & SALE AGREEMENT TO PURCHASE LAND ON 

LANGSFORD ROAD FOR BOAT ACCESS 

Shall the Town expend $275,000 from the Capital Reserve Account to purchase a ~0.1-
acre parcel of land situated on Langsford Road at Map 29/Block 1/Lot 3 to provide boat 
access to Cape Porpoise Harbor for Town residents and Cape Porpoise mooring holders? 

[Note of explanation:  This would authorize the Board of Selectmen to purchase land situated on 
Langsford Road to provide boat access to Cape Porpoise Harbor. This purchase would not 
increase the tax rate because the funds will come from the Capital Reserve Fund.] 

****************************************************************** 
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ARTICLE 2:  To see if the Town will vote to approve the following: 

A. To authorize the Town Treasurer, with the advice and approval of the Municipal Officers
on behalf of the Town to sell and dispose of Real Estate acquired by the Town for
nonpayment of taxes thereon, and to execute quitclaim deeds on such terms as they deem
advisable, and to authorize the Treasurer to discharge unmatured liens on payment of taxes,
interest and costs.

B. To authorize the Town Treasurer, with the advice and approval of the Municipal Officers
on behalf of the Town, to waive the foreclosure of any tax lien mortgage by recording a
waiver of foreclosure in the York County Registry of Deeds for any real estate title to which
they deem not in the best financial interest of the Town to hold, said authorization to waive
not to prevent the Town Treasurer, with the advice and approval of the Municipal Officers,
from later foreclosing on said tax lien pursuant to law, as they deem advisable.

C. To make all real and personal property taxes due and payable upon presentment of bills
and to charge eight percent (8.00%) per annum on the first half if unpaid after September
11, 2023 (or 45 days after the date of commitment if commitment is after July 21, 2023)
and on the second half if unpaid after March 10, 2024.

D. To set the interest rate to be paid by the Town on abated taxes at eight percent (8.00%) for
the fiscal year 2024.

E. To see if the Town will vote to authorize the Tax Collector to enter into a standard
agreement with taxpayers establishing a “tax club” payment plan for commercial and/or
residential real estate property taxes.  (Explanation:  This article allows the Town to
establish a tax club for citizens, similar to a Christmas club.  Citizens establish a payment
plan so that they can make monthly payments throughout the year without risk of penalties
or interest charges.)

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted: 5-0 

ARTICLE 3:  To see if the Town will vote to approve the following: 

A. To authorize the Selectmen to pay for tax abatements and applicable interest granted during
the fiscal year of 2023/2024 from Overlay.  (Explanation: The Selectmen, as Assessors,
are authorized to raise Overlay under Title 36 MRSA section 710 but require voter
authorization to spend Overlay. Overlay cannot be more than 5% of the Tax Commitment.)

B. To authorize the Selectmen to apply for, accept and expend from the following categories
of funds as provided by the State of Maine: Municipal Revenue Sharing, Educational
Certification Block Grant, Educational Tax Relief Grant, Public Library State Aid, Urban
Rural Road Initiative Program, Civil Emergency Funds, Snowmobile Registration Funds,
Tree Growth Reimbursement, General Assistance Reimbursement, Veterans Exemption
Reimbursement, Department of Economic & Community Development Grant Program,
Maine Emergency Management Agency, Homestead Exemption Reimbursement, and all
other state and federal grants and funds including, when necessary, the authority to sign
grant contracts, documents or other paperwork?
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C. To authorize the Selectmen to carry forward unencumbered surplus fund balances on June 
30, 2024, for the purposes originally appropriated and to appropriate such fund balances 
for such purposes to the extent the Selectmen deem advisable, such determination to be 
made at a properly noticed meeting of the Board of Selectmen. 

 
Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted: 5-0 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted: 11-0 

 
 
ARTICLE 4: To see if the Town will vote to approve the following: 
 

A. To authorize the Tax Collector or Treasurer to accept prepayments of taxes not yet 
committed pursuant to 36 M.R.S.A. § 506. 

B. To authorize the Selectmen to accept easement deeds on behalf of the Town granting the 
Town the right to plant and maintain certain trees on private property located within the 
Town.  

C. To authorize the Selectmen to accept unconditional and conditional gifts of money or 
property on behalf of the Town, other than gifts of sewer extensions, subject to ratification 
by the Town at an annual or special town meeting held within one year of the Selectmen’s 
acceptance, except that such ratification shall not be required for a donation of money to 
the Town to supplement a specific appropriation already made, to reduce the tax 
assessment, or to reduce the permanent debt. 

 
Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted: 5-0 
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ARTICLE 5: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for General 
Government Program expenses.  
Amount requested: $2,313,526 
 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted 5-0 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted 11-0 
 

Article # 5 General Government Program Expenses 
     

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Administration 
Salaries & Wages 623,106  682,717  682,717  59,611  

Selectmen 16,620  17,118  17,118  498  

Town Meeting 5,350  7,370  7,370  2,020  

Overtime 2,000  3,000  3,000  1,000  

FICA 51,715  57,784  57,784  6,069  

MSRS 63,761  65,937  65,937  2,176  

ICMA 21,138  26,542  26,542  5,404  

Health 168,894  166,784  166,784  (2,110) 

Dues & Fees 16,500  18,350  18,350  1,850  

Travel & Meetings 10,000  11,500  11,500  1,500  

Training & Education 6,625  7,000  7,000  375  

Contingency 8,000  8,500  8,500  500  

Electricity 4,000  4,800  4,800  800  

Phone/Internet 12,500  13,700  13,700  1,200  

Heating Fuel 4,125  9,775  9,775  5,650  

Water 420  420  420  0  

Printing 3,500  4,500  4,500  1,000  

Advertising 1,500  1,500  1,500  0  

Expert/Professional 50,000  5,500  5,500  (44,500) 

Audit 17,500  20,750  20,750  3,250  

Technology/Software 31,745  41,450  41,450  9,705  

Credit Card Fees 5,000  1,500  1,500  (3,500) 

Office Supplies 12,500  12,500  12,500  0  

Postage 16,000  14,000  14,000  (2,000) 

Photocopier 8,540  7,000  7,000  (1,540) 

Town Clerk 0  5,600  5,600  5,600  

Computers 0  3,000  3,000  3,000  

Ballot Machine 7,500  5,000  5,000  (2,500) 

Buildings 10,000  9,000  9,000  (1,000) 

Town Meeting Expenses 1,500  1,500  1,500  0  

Total Administration 1,180,039  1,234,097  1,234,097  54,058  
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Article # 5 General Government Program Expenses - continued 
     

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Zoning Board of Appeals 
Salaries & Wages 300  0  0  (300) 

FICA 25  0  0  (25) 

Training & Education 200  0  0  (200) 

Advertising 500  0  0  (500) 

Total Zoning Board of Appeals 1,025  0  0  (1,025) 

Conservation Commission 
Expert/Professional 0  5,200  5,200  5,200  

Office Supplies 1,350  0  0  (1,350) 

Total Conservation Commission 1,350  5,200  5,200  3,850  

Growth Planning Committee 
Expert/Professional 2,500  0  0  (2,500) 

Total Growth Planning Committee 2,500  0  0  (2,500) 

Legal Fees 
Ordinance Development 10,000  10,000  10,000  0  

Ordinance Compliance 10,000  10,000  10,000  0  

Enforcement & Appeals 30,000  30,000  30,000  0  

Administration & General Ser 10,000  20,000  20,000  10,000  

Personnel & Union 5,000  5,000  5,000  0  

Special Proj & Contracts 3,000  5,000  5,000  2,000  

Total Legal 68,000  80,000  80,000  12,000  

Insurance 
RHSP 9,127  16,499  16,499  7,372  

HRA & Fees 62,271  60,456  60,456  (1,815) 

Workers Comp 82,000  85,100  85,100  3,100  

Unemployment 4,000  4,000  4,000  0  

Liability 42,500  43,620  43,620  1,120  

Fleet 27,150  26,709  26,709  (441) 

Public Officials 6,050  6,620  6,620  570  

Total Insurance 233,098  243,004  243,004  9,906  

Community Development 
Salaries & Wages 17,000  8,000  8,000  (9,000) 

FICA 1,301  612  612  (689) 

Travel & Meetings 100  0  0  (100) 

Phone/Internet 9,200  7,100  7,100  (2,100) 

Newsletter 5,800  5,800  5,800  0  

Website 10,000  5,000  5,000  (5,000) 

Expert/Professional 0  1,000  1,000  1,000  

Operating Supplies 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Total Community Development 44,401  28,512  28,512  (15,889) 

Planning & Development 
Salaries & Wages 404,111  441,563  441,563  37,452  

Overtime 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  
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Article # 5 General Government Program Expenses - continued 
     

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
FICA 32,193  35,020  35,020  2,827  

MSRS 29,071  30,918  30,918  1,847  

ICMA 7,928  7,412  7,412  (516) 

Health 81,547  85,687  85,687  4,140  

Dues & Fees 6,184  5,813  5,813  (371) 

Travel & Meetings 4,200  4,200  4,200  0  

Training & Education 2,700  2,900  2,900  200  

Phone/Internet 4,100  5,200  5,200  1,100  

Advertising 3,100  3,600  3,600  500  

Expert/Professional 54,860  35,500  35,500  (19,360) 

Technology/Software 11,661  35,000  35,000  23,339  

GIS/Maps 14,400  16,950  16,950  2,550  

Abstracts 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Office Supplies 1,500  1,500  1,500  0  

Postage 1,300  4,000  4,000  2,700  

Photocopier 0  1,500  1,500  1,500  

Computers 0  2,500  2,500  2,500  

Gas 575  650  650  75  

Vehicles & Equipment 800  800  800  0  

Total Planning & Development 662,230  722,713  722,713  60,483  

Total General Government 2,192,643  2,313,526  2,313,526  120,883  
 
 
ARTICLE 6: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Public Safety 
Program expenses.  
Amount requested $3,389,796 
 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted 5-0 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted 11-0 
 

Article # 6 Public Safety Program Expenses 
     

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Police Dept 
Salaries & Wages 1,129,922  1,162,607  1,162,607  32,685  

Summer Salaries 5,440  5,600  5,600  160  

Overtime 74,205  78,441  78,441  4,236  

FICA 95,089  98,758  98,758  3,669  

MSRS 167,851  149,787  149,787  (18,064) 

ICMA 26,101  36,504  36,504  10,403  

Health 311,062  347,503  347,503  36,441  
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Article # 6 Public Safety Program Expenses - continued 
     

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Dues & Fees 2,500  2,500  2,500  0  

Travel & Meetings 1,300  1,300  1,300  0  

Training & Education 8,500  8,500  8,500  0  

Vaccine 500  500  500  0  

Uniforms 10,500  10,500  10,500  0  

Physicals 200  200  200  0  

Phone/Internet 22,825  26,200  26,200  3,375  

Printing 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Advertising 300  300  300  0  

Expert/Professional 2,352  0  0  (2,352) 

Technology/Software 3,000  3,800  3,800  800  

Office Supplies 3,000  3,000  3,000  0  

Operating Supplies 5,450  5,450  5,450  0  

Equipment 6,000  6,000  6,000  0  

Postage 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Photocopier 1,697  1,697  1,697  0  

Ammunition Targets 3,000  3,000  3,000  0  

Gas 23,375  29,250  29,250  5,875  

Vehicles & Equipment 8,500  8,500  8,500  0  

Total Police 1,914,669  1,991,897  1,991,897  77,228  

Communications 
Salaries & Wages 263,068  270,204  270,204  7,136  

Overtime 41,324  42,564  42,564  1,240  

FICA 23,651  24,640  24,640  989  

MSRS 23,948  23,977  23,977  29  

ICMA 4,779  4,325  4,325  (454) 

Health 80,472  76,287  76,287  (4,185) 

Training & Education 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Uniforms 800  800  800  0  

Electricity 9,000  11,000  11,000  2,000  

Phone/Internet 2,640  2,800  2,800  160  

Heating Fuel 3,500  8,000  8,000  4,500  

Water 595  595  595  0  

Printing 100  100  100  0  

Expert/Professional 14,925  0  0  (14,925) 

Technology/Software 5,860  21,850  21,850  15,990  

Maintenance Contracts 90,893  96,349  96,349  5,456  

Office Supplies 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Operating Supplies 750  750  750  0  

Buildings 9,000  9,000  9,000  0  

Radio Maintenance 500  500  500  0  

Radio Replacement 500  500  500  0  

Total Communications 578,305  596,241  596,241  17,936  
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Article # 6 Public Safety Program Expenses - continued 
     

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Fire Dept 
Salaries & Wages 151,936  157,975  157,975  6,039  

Call Firefighters 100,000  105,000  105,000  5,000  

FICA 19,589  20,443  20,443  854  

MSRS 3,436  3,539  3,539  103  

ICMA 4,123  4,247  4,247  124  

Health 22,773  23,561  23,561  788  

Dues & Fees 600  600  600  0  

Travel & Meetings 300  300  300  0  

Training & Education 6,000  6,000  6,000  0  

Vaccine 500  500  500  0  

Uniforms 500  500  500  0  

Physicals 1,500  1,500  1,500  0  

Recognition 4,500  5,500  5,500  1,000  

Electricity 6,906  7,100  7,100  194  

Phone/Internet 9,120  8,000  8,000  (1,120) 

Heating Fuel 16,850  26,300  26,300  9,450  

Water 550  550  550  0  

Advertising 50  50  50  0  

Expert/Professional 996  0  0  (996) 

Technology/Software 4,100  4,350  4,350  250  

Supplemental Insurance 2,380  2,380  2,380  0  

Office Supplies 1,500  1,500  1,500  0  

Equipment 5,700  5,700  5,700  0  

Postage 200  200  200  0  

Photocopier 585  585  585  0  

Computers 0  1,500  1,500  1,500  

Dry Hydrants 0  1,000  1,000  1,000  

Gas 1,650  1,950  1,950  300  

Diesel 3,000  5,850  5,850  2,850  

Personal Protective Equipment 6,000  6,000  6,000  0  

Buildings 7,500  8,000  8,000  500  

Vehicles & Equipment 22,500  23,000  23,000  500  

Goose Rocks Fire 26,068  26,850  26,850  782  

Cape Porpoise Fire 21,546  22,192  22,192  646  

Total Fire 452,958  482,722  482,722  29,764  

KEMS 
KEMS 200,000  250,000  250,000  50,000  

Total KEMS 200,000  250,000  250,000  50,000  

Emergency Management 
Operating Supplies 1,500  1,500  1,500  0  

Total Emergency Management 1,500  1,500  1,500  0  
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Article # 6 Public Safety Program Expenses – continued 
     

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Animal Control Officer 
Salaries & Wages 5,464  5,628  5,628  164  

FICA 418  431  431  13  

Travel & Meetings 700  100  100  (600) 

Operating Supplies 600  600  600  0  

Animal Welfare Society 4,829  5,500  5,500  671  

Total Animal Control 12,011  12,259  12,259  248  

Harbormaster 
Salaries & Wages 14,481  14,011  14,011  (470) 

FICA 1,130  1,093  1,093  (37) 

MSRS 1,477  1,429  1,429  (48) 

ICMA 290  280  280  (10) 

Health 5,228  5,278  5,278  50  

River Harbormaster 29,294  33,086  33,086  3,792  

Total Harbormaster 51,900  55,177  55,177  3,277  

Total Public Safety 3,211,343  3,389,796  3,389,796  178,453  
 
 
ARTICLE 7: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Health & Welfare 
Program expenses.  
Amount requested: $827,319 
 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted 5-0 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted 11-0 
 

Article # 7 Health & Welfare Program Expenses 
  

 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Solid Waste 
Salaries & Wages 1,846  1,901  1,901  55  

FICA 141  145  145  4  

Tipping Fees 200,000  200,000  200,000  0  

Curbside Waste 209,589  213,781  213,781  4,192  

Curbside Recycling 37,500  37,500  37,500  0  

Recycling Pickup 105,060  107,161  107,161  2,101  

Operating Supplies 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Unacceptable Waste 7,000  7,500  7,500  500  

Monitoring 16,300  14,000  14,000  (2,300) 

Total Solid Waste 578,436  582,988  582,988  4,552  
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Article # 7 Health & Welfare Program Expenses - continued 
  

 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Public Health 
Salaries & Wages 133,526  137,539  137,539  4,013  

FICA 10,797  11,110  11,110  313  

MSRS 8,890  9,157  9,157  267  

ICMA 2,615  2,693  2,693  78  

Health 5,000  5,000  5,000  0  

Travel & Meetings 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Training & Education 600  600  600  0  

Wellness 300  300  300  0  

Electricity 750  850  850  100  

Phone/Internet 1,770  600  600  (1,170) 

Heating Fuel 1,313  1,875  1,875  562  

Expert/Professional 558  0  0  (558) 

Technology/Software 1,200  700  700  (500) 

Office Supplies 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Operating Supplies 1,500  1,500  1,500  0  

Postage 75  75  75  0  

Photocopier 468  468  468  0  

Buildings 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Vehicle 200  200  200  0  

Unacceptable Waste 800  800  800  0  

Water Quality 500  500  500  0  

COVID Supplies 5,000  2,000  2,000  (3,000) 

Total Public Health 178,862  178,967  178,967  105  

Welfare 
Training & Education 260  260  260  0  

Office Supplies 75  75  75  0  

Welfare 2,000  2,000  2,000  0  

Total Welfare 2,335  2,335  2,335  0  

Social Services 
YC Community Action 4,000  4,000  4,000  0  

Caring Unlimited 1,089  1,089  1,089  0  

ME Behavioral Healthcare 3,500  3,850  3,850  350  

Kids Free to Grow 750  825  825  75  

So ME Agency on Aging 2,000  2,200  2,200  200  

American Red Cross 500  500  500  0  

YC Shelters 5,000  5,000  5,000  0  

Sexual Assault Response Servic 1,000  1,100  1,100  100  

Church Community Outreach Serv 3,000  3,300  3,300  300  

Lifeflight 868  908  908  40  

MaineHealth Care at Home 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Total Social Services 22,707  23,772  23,772  1,065  
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Article # 7 Health & Welfare Program Expenses - continued 
  

 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Shellfish Conservation 
Salaries & Wages 2,712  2,793  2,793  81  

FICA 207  214  214  7  

Travel & Meetings 250  250  250  0  

Total Shellfish Conservation 3,169  3,257  3,257  88  

Public Restrooms 
Dock Square Restrooms 30,000  30,000  30,000  0  

Public Facility Upgrade 6,000  6,000  6,000  0  

Total Public Restrooms 36,000  36,000  36,000  0  

Total Health & Welfare 821,509  827,319  827,319  5,810  
 
 
ARTICLE 8: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for the Public Works 
Program expenses.  
Amount requested: $1,561,060 
 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted 5-0 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted 11-0 
 

Article # 8 Public Works Program Expenses 
  

 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Highway Dept 
Salaries & Wages 551,269  617,913  617,913  66,644  

Overtime 46,441  47,834  47,834  1,393  

Part-Time 10,240  10,240  10,240  0  

FICA 48,099  52,923  52,923  4,824  

MSRS 58,154  62,986  62,986  4,832  

ICMA 11,608  13,416  13,416  1,808  

Health 200,096  206,528  206,528  6,432  

Travel & Meetings 0  800  800  800  

Training & Education 0  5,000  5,000  5,000  

Uniforms 5,220  5,220  5,220  0  

Electricity 5,200  5,700  5,700  500  

Phone/Internet 4,910  5,600  5,600  690  

Heating Fuel 2,100  4,250  4,250  2,150  

Advertising 500  500  500  0  

Expert/Professional 7,248  6,000  6,000  (1,248) 

Technology/Software 4,010  7,250  7,250  3,240  

Rentals 7,600  4,000  4,000  (3,600) 

Street Marking 9,500  10,000  10,000  500  
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Article # 8 Public Works Program Expenses - continued 
  

 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Alarms 300  300  300  0  

Office Supplies 600  1,500  1,500  900  

Operating Supplies 6,000  5,500  5,500  (500) 

Equipment 6,000  6,000  6,000  0  

Postage 0  600  600  600  

Photocopier 380  400  400  20  

Culverts 2,000  2,000  2,000  0  

Gravel 2,000  2,000  2,000  0  

Salt 70,000  85,800  85,800  15,800  

Liquid Road Treatment 12,900  15,050  15,050  2,150  

Patch 5,000  5,000  5,000  0  

Signs 6,000  6,500  6,500  500  

Tools 2,500  2,500  2,500  0  

Gas 11,825  16,250  16,250  4,425  

Diesel 30,000  45,000  45,000  15,000  

Safety Equipment 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Parks & Open Space Supplies 4,000  4,000  4,000  0  

Buildings 6,000  6,000  6,000  0  

Vehicles & Equipment 63,000  63,000  63,000  0  

Total Public Works 1,201,700  1,334,560  1,334,560  132,860  

Hydrants 
Fire Hydrants 144,324  144,324  144,324  0  

Total Hydrants 144,324  144,324  144,324  0  

Shade Tree 
Shade Tree Warden 633  652  652  19  

FICA 48  50  50  2  

Expert/Professional 2,500  2,500  2,500  0  

Technology/Software 0  80  80  80  

Planting 2,000  2,000  2,000  0  

Tree Treatment 23,000  23,000  23,000  0  

Cutting & Pruning 10,000  10,000  10,000  0  

Fertilizing 3,000  3,000  3,000  0  

Miscellaneous 500  500  500  0  

Total Shade Tree 41,681  41,782  41,782  101  

Street Lights 
Electricity 7,000  8,253  8,253  1,253  

Expert/Professional 12,000  12,000  12,000  0  

Operating Supplies 5,000  5,000  5,000  0  

Total Street Lights 24,000  25,253  25,253  1,253  

Cemetery 
Salaries & Wages 5,764  5,937  5,937  173  

FICA 441  454  454  13  

Cutting & Pruning 2,250  2,250  2,250  0  
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Article # 8 Public Works Program Expenses - continued 
  

 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Miscellaneous 2,400  2,400  2,400  0  

Arundel Cemetery 4,100  4,100  4,100  0  

Total Cemetery 14,955  15,141  15,141  186  

Total Public Works 1,426,660  1,561,060  1,561,060  134,400  
 
ARTICLE 9: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Recreation, Culture, 
Contingency and Miscellaneous Program expenses.  
Amount requested: $680,214 
 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted 5-0 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted 11-0 
 
Article # 9 Recreation, Culture, Contingency & Miscellaneous Program Expenses 

  
 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Recreation 
Salaries & Wages 195,437  199,784  199,784  4,347  

Overtime 2,000  3,000  3,000  1,000  

FICA 15,468  15,886  15,886  418  

MSRS 20,141  20,687  20,687  546  

ICMA 4,798  4,870  4,870  72  

Health 77,557  45,536  45,536  (32,021) 

Dues & Fees 970  1,015  1,015  45  

Travel & Meetings 2,500  2,500  2,500  0  

Training & Education 2,160  2,125  2,125  (35) 

Uniforms 300  400  400  100  

Electricity 3,500  4,000  4,000  500  

Phone/Internet 4,775  4,200  4,200  (575) 

Heating Fuel 120  120  120  0  

Water 340  340  340  0  

Advertising 0  200  200  200  

Expert/Professional 4,079  800  800  (3,279) 

Technology/Software 1,200  2,750  2,750  1,550  

Office Supplies 1,350  1,350  1,350  0  

Operating Supplies 2,000  2,500  2,500  500  

Postage 50  50  50  0  

Photocopier 100  100  100  0  

Parks & Open Space Supplies 0  3,340  3,340  3,340  

Buildings 2,000  5,335  5,335  3,335  

Vehicles & Equipment 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  
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Article # 9 Recreation, Culture, Contingency & Miscellaneous Program Expenses - 
continued 

  
 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Vehicles & Equipment 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

Total Recreation 341,845  321,888  321,888  (19,957) 

Graves Library 
Library 155,000  185,000  185,000  30,000  

Total Graves Library 155,000  185,000  185,000  30,000  

Cape Porpoise Library 
Library 14,550  14,550  14,550  0  

Total Cape Porpoise Library 14,550  14,550  14,550  0  

Parsons Way 
Cutting & Pruning 3,800  6,000  6,000  2,200  

Total Parsons Way 3,800  6,000  6,000  2,200  

GRB Advisory Reserve 
Salaries & Wages 40,630  40,630  40,630  0  

FICA 3,108  3,296  3,296  188  

Expert/Professional 5,000  5,000  5,000  0  

GRB Advisory Expenses 3,000  3,000  3,000  0  

Total GRB Advisory Reserve 51,738  51,926  51,926  188  

Contingency 
Salaries & Wages 15,000  15,000  15,000  0  

Accrued Liabilities 10,000  10,000  10,000  0  

Fuel 60,000  15,000  15,000  (45,000) 

Miscellaneous 30,000  50,000  50,000  20,000  

Total Contingency 115,000  90,000  90,000  (25,000) 

Miscellaneous Agencies 
Memorial Day 1,600  1,600  1,600  0  

Dock Square Monument 2,000  2,000  2,000  0  

4th of July 4,125  4,500  4,500  375  

So ME Veteran's Memorial 500  500  500  0  

Senior Center Lower Villa 2,250  2,250  2,250  0  

Total Miscellaneous 10,475  10,850  10,850  375  

Total Recreation, Culture         

   Contingency & Miscellaneous 692,408  680,214  680,214  (12,194) 
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ARTICLE 10: To see what sum the Town will vote to raise and appropriate for Capital Expense 
& Reserve Account and Debt Service Payments.  
Amount requested: $3,557,280 
 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted 5-0 
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted 9-2 
 

Article # 10 Capital Expense & Reserve Account and Debt Service Payments 
  

 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Administration 
Historical Preservation 6,500  7,000  7,000  500  

Special Projects 400,000  15,000  15,000  (385,000) 

Total CO Administration 406,500  22,000  22,000  (384,500) 

Police 
Equipment 6,800  19,000  19,000  12,200  

Vehicles/Reserve 86,000  41,000  41,000  (45,000) 

Total CO Police 92,800  60,000  60,000  (32,800) 

Article # 10 Capital Expense & Reserve Account and Debt Service Payments - continued 
  

 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Communications 
Building Improvements 0  15,000  15,000  15,000  

Special Projects 37,000  0  0  (37,000) 

Total CO Communications 37,000  15,000  15,000  (22,000) 

Fire Reserve 
Equipment 35,000  40,000  40,000  5,000  

Vehicles/Reserve 65,000  0  0  (65,000) 

Apparatus Reserve 175,000  75,000  75,000  (100,000) 

Firefighter PPE 20,000  23,000  23,000  3,000  

Special Projects 0  110,000  110,000  110,000  

Total CO Fire 295,000  248,000  248,000  (47,000) 

Highway 
Equipment 0  4,500  4,500  4,500  

Vehicles/Reserve 284,000  348,000  348,000  64,000  

Total CO Highway 284,000  352,500  352,500  68,500  

Road Improvement 
Road Improvements 472,000  716,000  716,000  244,000  

Total CO Road Improvement 472,000  716,000  716,000  244,000  

Sidewalk Construction 
Miscellaneous 80,000  125,000  125,000  45,000  

Total CO Sidewalk Construction 80,000  125,000  125,000  45,000  
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Article # 10 Capital Expense & Reserve Account and Debt Service Payments - continued 
  

 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Emergency Management 
Equipment 0  10,000  10,000  10,000  

Total CO Emergency Management 0  10,000  10,000  10,000  

Recreation 
Rec & Park Improvements 75,000  20,000  20,000  (55,000) 

Total CO Miscellaneous 75,000  20,000  20,000  (55,000) 

Special Projects 
Miscellaneous 285,000  535,000  535,000  250,000  

Total CO Miscellaneous 285,000  535,000  535,000  250,000  

Piers 
Reserve 153,000  107,500  107,500  (45,500) 

Total CO Piers 153,000  107,500  107,500  (45,500) 

Debt Service 
Sewer Bond 2003 33,882  34,152  34,152  270  

Interest Sewer Bond 2003 1,605  1,242  1,242  (363) 

Police Bldg 2017 40,372  41,293  41,293  921  

Sewer 2021 59,331  59,331  59,331  0  

P&R Bldg 2018  45,000  45,000  45,000  0  

Radio Tower 2022 200,000  200,000  200,000  0  

Prinicpal Ocean Ave - Seawall  105,000  105,000  105,000  0  

Prin Village Parcel 375,000  385,000  385,000  10,000  

Interest PD Bldg 2017 4,820  3,899  3,899  (921) 

Interest Sewer 2021 14,492  13,869  13,869  (623) 

Interest P&R Bldg 2018 8,829  7,237  7,237  (1,592) 

Interest Radio Tower 2022 25,000  23,109  23,109  (1,891) 

Interest Ocean Ave Seawall 34,125  28,875  28,875  (5,250) 

Interest Village Parcel 299,475  283,625  283,625  (15,850) 

Sewer 2023 Interest 0  7,000  7,000  7,000  

Fire Truck Lease Principal 0  93,938  93,938  93,938  

Fire Truck Lease Interest 0  13,710  13,710  13,710  

Total Debt Service 1,246,931  1,346,280  1,346,280  99,349  

Total Capital Expense & Reserve         

   and Debt Service Payments 3,427,231  3,557,280  3,557,280  130,049  
 
 
ARTICLE 11: To see if the Town will vote to appropriate $3,705,979 from estimated non-
property tax revenues, $200,000 from undesignated fund balance, and $600,000 from Capital 
Projects Reserve Account to reduce the property tax commitment. 
 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted: 5-0  
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted: 11-0 
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Article # 11 Non-Property Tax Revenues 
  

 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Excise 
Auto Excise 1,100,000  1,150,000  1,150,000  50,000  

Boat Excise 14,000  14,000  14,000  0  

Total Excise 1,114,000  1,164,000  1,164,000  50,000  

Intergovernmental 
State Revenue Sharing 185,000  225,000  225,000  40,000  

Homestead Exemption 100,000  100,000  100,000  0  

Local Road Assistance 40,000  40,000  40,000  0  

Tree Growth 6,000  6,000  6,000  0  

Veterans Exemption 2,300  2,300  2,300  0  

General Assistance 1,000  1,000  1,000  0  

BETE Reimbursement 5,000  4,000  4,000  (1,000) 

Rachel Carson Wildlife 3,500  3,500  3,500  0  

RSU COPS Share 249,118  260,379  260,379  11,261  

Total Intergovernmental 591,918  642,179  642,179  50,261  

Charges for Services 
Interest on Taxes 40,000  40,000  40,000  0  

Town Clerk Fees 9,000  10,000  10,000  1,000  

Dogs 2,800  2,800  2,800  0  

Agent Fees 15,000  15,000  15,000  0  

Building Permits 550,000  640,000  640,000  90,000  

Plumbing Permits 20,000  23,000  23,000  3,000  

Board of Appeals 500  800  800  300  

Planning Board 15,000  15,000  15,000  0  

Liquor License 5,000  4,000  4,000  (1,000) 

Victualers Licenses 5,000  5,000  5,000  0  

Parking Violations 50,000  62,000  62,000  12,000  

Police Special Detail 4,000  4,000  4,000  0  

Dispatch Kennebunk Light & Power 5,000  5,000  5,000  0  

Goose Rocks Beach Sticker 200,000  270,000  270,000  70,000  

Nurses Fees 200  200  200  0  

Shellfish Licenses 900  1,000  1,000  100  

Short Term Rental License 160,000  170,000  170,000  10,000  

Total Charges for Services 1,082,400  1,267,800  1,267,800  185,400  

Miscellaneous 
Police Miscellaneous 2,000  2,000  2,000  0  

Investment Income 30,000  150,000  150,000  120,000  

Miscellaneous Income 10,000  10,000  10,000  0  

Use of UFB 200,000  200,000  200,000  0  

Dock Square Transfer 265,000  280,000  280,000  15,000  

Conservation Donation 10,000  10,000  10,000  0  

Sewer Transfer 30,000  30,000  30,000  0  

Sale of Town Property 0  20,000  20,000  20,000  
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Article # 11 Non-Property Tax Revenues - continued 
  

 

  
FY23 

Budget 

FY24 
Budget  

Committee 
Board of 

Selectmen 
Increase 

(Decrease) 
Transfer In - Picavet 0  34,000  34,000  34,000  

Transfer In - Capital Projects 700,000  600,000  600,000  (100,000) 

Transfer in - SR Recreation 60,000  60,000  60,000  0  

Total Miscellaneous 1,307,000  1,396,000  1,396,000  89,000  

D S Restrooms - Transfer DS PL 
Dock Square Transfer 36,000  36,000  36,000  0  

Total DS Restrooms-Transfer  36,000  36,000  36,000  0  

Total Non-Property Tax         

   Revenues 4,131,318  4,505,979  4,505,979  374,661  
 
 
ARTICLE 12: To see if the Town will vote to ratify the Selectmen’s acceptance of a gift of a new 
2025/26 Sutphen Monarch Pumper, with a 1500 GPM Pump and a 1,000-gallon water tank. The 
truck is equipped with a foam system and a 30-gallon foam cell.  The gift is from the Port Village 
Fire Company, the Goose Rocks Fire Company, the Atlantic Volunteer Engine Company, and the 
Wildwood Volunteer Fire Company (This gift was originally funded through the Kittredge Family 
Fire Equipment Fund.), such gift having an approximate value of $765,000 and such gift to be 
used by the Kennebunkport Fire Department. 
 

Selectmen recommend adoption of this article– Voted: 5-0  
Budget Board recommends adoption of this article – Voted: 11-0 

 
 
HEREOF FAIL NOT TO MAKE DUE SERVICE of this Warrant and a return of your doing 
thereon, at a time and place of said meeting. 
 
 
GIVEN UNDER OUR HANDS this 27th day of April 2023, Kennebunkport, Maine. 
 
 
______________________ ____________________________ 
Edward W. Hutchins, II Michael Weston 
 
 
____________________________ ____________________________ 
Allen A. Daggett Sheila W. Matthews-Bull  
 
 ____________________________ 
 Jon Dykstra 
 

A majority of the Selectmen of the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine 
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Wag§. increases amount to over $225, 196 across all 

general fund departments. These wages reflect a 

cost-of-living adjustment for all positions along with 

$17,000 in hiring bonuses for new police officers. 

Just like all employers, the town has found itself in a 

very competitive labor market and we are using all 

available incentives to attract good team members. 

FY24 is the last year of our current labor contract and 

as such we have been spared some of the wage 

increases neighboring communities are experiencing, 

which have averaged between 5 - 8% over the last 

two years. 

Debt Service 

The debt service account is increasing by $99,349 

due to the new annual lease payment to purchase a 

ladder truck. The lease purchase requires a yearly 

payment over the next five years. The funding for the 

Fire apparatus reserve has been reduced to 

compensate for the new ladder truck lease payment. 

In FY25 the debt payments will increase as we 

finalize the $6.0 million wastewater bond. Together 

the capital and debt service budgets create a long­

term capital investment plan. 

The use of debt is integral to our capital planning. 

Due to their longevity, sometimes expenditures are 

better shared with future users of the investment. A 

school building or a seawall are both very expensive 

items that serve current and future residents. 

Financing expenditures allows the Town to take 

advantage of current costs while sharing the cost of 

an investment with all the people who will benefit 

from it. 

The Town's debt service schedule is in the chart to 

the right. In FY25, a balloon payment on the Village 

Parcel bond will be due. The debt was structured in 

this manner to allow the Town the most flexibility in 

bonding. The Town has the option of refinancing all 

or a portion of the debt. The current plan is to 

refinance it over 15 years. The next debt retirement 

will be in 2024 when the $1.0 million wastewater 

bond retires. 

Debt Service Retirement Schedule 

PrinciRal Interest 

2024 1,049,774.78 424,854.52 

2025 7,976,557.17 279,190.98 

2026 697,528.56 140,998.94 

Total 

1,474,629.31 

8,255,748.15 

838,527.50 

2027 698,513.97 121,149.16 819,663.13 

2028 454,330.89 100,551.26 554,882.15 

2029 409,330.89 85,003.73 494,334.63 

2030 304,330.89 75,355.77 379,686.66 

2031 304,330.89 68,982.79 373,313.68 

2032 304,330.89 63,259.81 

2033 304,330.89 57,536.83 

2034 304,330.89 51,813.86 

2035 304,330.89 46,090.88 

2036 304,330.89 40,367.91 

2037 304,330.89 34,644.94 

2038 304,330.89 28,921.96 

2039 304,330.89 23,198.99 

2040 304,330.89 17,476.01 

2041 239,330.89 12,728.03 

2042 180,000.00 6,300.00 

2043 180,000.00 3,150.00 

367,590.70 

361,867.72 

356,144.75 

350,421.78 

344,698.80 

338,975.83 

333,252.85 

327,529.88 

321,806.91 

252,058.93 

186,300.00 

183,150.00 

15,233,006.98 1,681,576.38 16,914,583.35 

This schedule includes the following: 

• 2003 - $1,000,000 Wastewater maturing in 2024

• 2016 - $400,000 Police Building maturing in 2027

• 2018 - $450,000 Parks & Recreation Building

maturing in 2028

• 2020 - $955,000 Ocean Ave maturing in 2029

• 2020 - $1,300,000 Village Parcel (exempt)

maturing in 2040

• 2020 - $8,500,000 Village Parcel (taxable)

maturing in 2025

• 2021 - Wastewater maturing in 2041

• 2022 - Radio Tower maturing in 2027

• 2024 - Wastewater maturing in 2043
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Intergovernmental revenue has increased by almost
$60,900 as the State has returned their contribution
from revenue sharing to 5% of sales taxes. This will
increase Kennebunkport’s share by $40,000. There
is also an anticipated increase of just under $10,000
in the homestead exemption reimbursement. The
State reimburses municipalities 76% of each $25,000
exemption for residents who qualify for the
homestead exemption. The exemption total is then
multiplied by the municipal tax rate to determine the
value of property taxes “lost” by the exemption. 

The largest revenue increase is our investment
income account. In one year, we have seen interest
rates for our cash balance raise from 1.0% to over
4.0%. This account changes dramatically from year
to year depending upon the actions of the Federal
Reserve.

In May of 2021, the federal government passed the
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), which contained
significant funding for state and local governments.
Kennebunkport was allocated $385,600 which was
used in the FY23 budget to offset the increased costs
of capital. As this was a one-time funding source it is
no longer available for FY24.  

Over the past eight years, I have recommended a
reduction in the use of the Undesignated Fund
Balance to offset the tax rate. A Fund Balance
contribution toward the budget is deemed “normal” in
most circumstances; however, in practice it is
counting on savings in the year ahead to balance the
budget. The Town did reduce the contribution by
$25,000 each year, and this resulted in moving from
a $300,000 transfer to a $200,000 transfer. To meet
the budget goal of a flat tax rate in FY21, the Town
authorized a $600,000 Fund Balance contribution
toward the budget. Over the past two years we have
brought this down to $200,000. 

Our Fund Balance Policy requires us to maintain
18%, or a little over 2 months of expenditures
available in our General Fund Balance. Each year,
as part of the audit process, the Board of Selectmen
take action to transfer any additional funds to our
Capital Reserve Account. These funds are still
available in an emergency; however, they are
reserved for future capital projects. 

The FY24 budget also contains a transfer from the
capital reserve fund balance to assist with the many
capital needs proposed in the budget document. The
Town was fortunate to bring FY22 to a successful
financial conclusion which included reduced
expenditures (thanks to the hard work of department
directors) and higher than anticipated revenues. This
allowed for a transfer in January of 2023, once the
audit for FY22 was complete, to the capital reserve
account of $468,351, bringing the balance to $1.17
million. This transfer was done in accordance with
the Town’s Fund Balance Policy.

Nicole Evangelista
Finance Director

Patricia Saunders
Deputy Treasurer &

AP/AR Clerk

Excise tax revenue is rising as the value of vehicles
increase and the contribution from this revenue is up
by $50,000. The building permit fees are increasing
by $90,000, while short-term rental accounts are
maintaining their current levels. Goose Rocks Beach
parking permit fees will increase both in sales as well
as individual fee levels contributing an additional
$70,000. 

Nadia Crockett-Current
Deputy Treasurer &

Payroll Clerk
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Independent Auditor’s Report

Board of Selectmen
Town of Kennebunkport, Maine

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinions 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Kennebunkport, 
Maine, as of and for the year ended June 30, 2022, and the related notes to the financial statements, which 
collectively comprise the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine’s basic financial statements as listed in the table 
of contents.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the 
respective financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, 
and the aggregate remaining fund information  of the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine, as of June 30, 2022, 
and the respective changes in financial position, and, where applicable, cash flows thereof for the year then 
ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.

Basis for Opinions

We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Our responsibilities under those standards are 
further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our 
report. We are required to be independent of the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine and to meet our other 
ethical responsibilities, in accordance with the relevant ethical requirements relating to our audit. We 
believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our 
audit opinions.

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in 
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the 
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair 
presentation of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or 
error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Kennebunkport, 
Maine’s ability to continue as a going concern for twelve months beyond the financial statement date, 
including any currently known information that may raise substantial doubt shortly thereafter.
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Town of Kennebunkport, Maine
Board of Selectmen

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole 
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report 
that includes our opinions. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute 
assurance and therefore is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with generally 
accepted auditing standards and Government Auditing Standards will always detect a material 
misstatement when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is 
higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, 
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is 
a substantial likelihood that, individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made 
by a reasonable user based on the financial statements.

In performing an audit in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and Government 
Auditing Standards, we:

• Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

• Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due
to fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such
procedures include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures
in the financial statements.

• Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine’s internal control.
Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

• Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

• Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate,
that raise substantial doubt about the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine’s ability to continue as a
going concern for a reasonable period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, 
the planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control-related 
matters that we identified during the audit

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the management’s 
discussion and analysis and schedules related to the pension and OPEB liabilities, as listed in the table of 
contents, be presented to supplement the basic financial statements. Such information, is the 
responsibility of management and although not a part of the basic financial statements, is required by 
the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who considers it to be an essential part of financial 
reporting for placing the basic financial statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or 
historical context.  
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Town of Kennebunkport, Maine
Board of Selectmen 

We have applied certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance 
with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of inquiries 
of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the information for 
consistency with management’s responses to our inquiries, the basic financial statements, and other 
knowledge we obtained during our audit of the basic financial statements. We do not express an 
opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited procedures do not provide us 
with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any assurance.

 Supplementary Information

The combining and individual fund financial statements are presented for purposes of additional 
analysis and are not a required part of the basic financial statements. Such information is the 
responsibility of management and was derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements. The information has been subjected to 
the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional 
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying accounting 
and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic financial statements 
themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted 
in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining and individual nonmajor fund financial 
statements are fairly stated, in all material respects, in relation to the basic financial statements as a 
whole.

Other Information 

Management is responsible for the other information included in the annual report. The other 
information comprises the introductory and statistical sections but does not include the basic financial 
statements and our auditor’s report thereon. Our opinions on the basic financial statements do not 
cover the other information, and we do not express an opinion or any form of assurance thereon.

In connection with our audit of the basic financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other 
information and consider whether a material inconsistency exists between the other information and 
the basic financial statements, or the other information otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, 
based on the work performed, we conclude that an uncorrected material misstatement of the other 
information exists, we are required to describe it in our report.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated December 21, 
2022 on our consideration of the Town Kennebunkport, Maine’s internal control over financial reporting 
and on our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant 
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is solely to describe the scope of our testing 
of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of that testing, and not to 
provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine’s internal control over 
financial reporting or on compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance 
with Government Auditing Standards in considering the Town of Kennebunkport, Maine’s internal 
control over financial reporting and compliance.

December 21, 2022
South Portland, Maine
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Statement 3

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
Balance Sheet

Governmental Funds
June 30, 2022

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 12,718,427 92,248 12,810,675
Investments - 1,532,966 1,532,966
Receivables:

Accounts 30,709 13,788 44,497
Due from other governments 134,330 - 134,330
Taxes receivable - current year 204,632 - 204,632
Taxes receivable - prior year 4,980 - 4,980
Tax liens receivable 52,954 - 52,954

Prepaids 175 - 175
Inventory 7,550 - 7,550
Interfund loans receivable - 5,618,592 5,618,592

Total assets 13,153,757 7,257,594 20,411,351

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable and payroll withholdings 156,863 242,103 398,966
Accrued wages 52,007 6,575 58,582
Unearned revenue - 386,051 386,051
Other liabilities 283,649 - 283,649
Interfund loans payable 6,835,578 - 6,835,578

Total liabilities 7,328,097 634,729 7,962,826

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenues - property taxes 135,000 - 135,000

Total deferred inflows of resources 135,000 - 135,000

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 7,725 1,142,297 1,150,022
Restricted - 493,478 493,478
Committed 734,629 4,987,090 5,721,719
Assigned 200,000 - 200,000
Unassigned 4,748,306 - 4,748,306

Total fund balances 5,690,660 6,622,865 12,313,525

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources,
and fund balances  $ 13,153,757 7,257,594

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net position are different because:
Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial resources 

and, therefore, are not reported in the funds. 27,515,990
Other long-term assets are not available to pay for current period expenditures

and, therefore, are unavailable revenue in the funds. 135,000
Long-term liabilities, including bonds payable, are not due and payable

in the current period and therefore, are not reported in the funds.
Bonds payable (11,296,271)
Premium on bonds (290,828)
Notes payable (12,344)
Net pension liability, including related deferred inflows and outflows of resources (926,296)
Total OPEB liability, including related deferred inflows and outflows of resources (411,922)
Accrued interest (99,672)
Accrued compensated absences (271,222)

Net position of governmental activities $ 26,655,960

   See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Statement 4

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances

Governmental Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Other Total
Governmental Governmental

General Funds Funds

Revenues:
Taxes  $ 20,768,604 - 20,768,604
Intergovernmental 654,175 - 654,175
Licenses and permits 766,321 - 766,321
Charges for services 324,079 238,348 562,427
Investment income (loss) 44,090 (171,674) (127,584)
Other revenues 61,520 14,904 76,424

Total revenues 22,618,789 81,578 22,700,367

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 2,040,063 38,626 2,078,689
Public safety 2,964,578 38,035 3,002,613
Public works 1,251,069 - 1,251,069
Health and welfare 777,362 - 777,362
Recreation and culture 530,381 136,336 666,717
Education 11,264,352 - 11,264,352
County tax 1,199,996 - 1,199,996

Debt service 939,253 - 939,253
Capital improvements and other 11,752 1,129,816 1,141,568

Total expenditures 20,978,806 1,342,813 22,321,619

Excess (deficiency) of revenues 
over (under) expenditures 1,639,983 (1,261,235) 378,748

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt - 1,000,000 1,000,000
Transfers from other funds 710,000 2,704,152 3,414,152
Transfers to other funds (2,798,720) (325,959) (3,124,679)

Total other financing sources (uses) (2,088,720) 3,378,193 1,289,473

Net change in fund balances (448,737) 2,116,958 1,668,221

Fund balances, beginning of year 6,139,397 4,505,907 10,645,304

Fund balances, end of year  $ 5,690,660 6,622,865 12,313,525
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Statement 7

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
Statement of Net Position

Proprietary Funds
June 30, 2022

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Sewer Nonmajor

Department Funds Total

ASSETS
Current assets:

Cash and cash equivalents  $ 1,447,924 1,800 1,449,724
Cash held at Maine Municipal Bond Bank 5,452,774 - 5,452,774
Accounts receivable 107,699 46,050 153,749
Sewer liens 9,281 - 9,281
Inventory - 12,330 12,330
Interfund loans receivable 605,874 640,742 1,246,616

Total current assets 7,623,552 700,922 8,324,474

Noncurrent assets:
Net pension asset 16,343 3,283 19,626
Property, plant, and equipment 19,732,612 1,734,309 21,466,921

Less accumulated depreciation (11,836,205) (742,298) (12,578,503)
Total noncurrent assets 7,912,750 995,294 8,908,044
Total assets 15,536,302 1,696,216 17,232,518

DEFERRED OUTFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred outflows of resources related to pensions 101,035 20,298 121,333

Total deferred outflows of resources 101,035 20,298 121,333

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities:

Accounts payable and payroll withholdings 20,696 51,782 72,478
Accrued wages 7,730 2,607 10,337
Other liabilities - 2,500 2,500
Accrued interest 31,562 - 31,562
Interfund loans payable - 29,630 29,630
Bond anticipation notes 6,000,000 - 6,000,000
Accrued compensated absences 42,760 2,358 45,118
Noncurrent liabilities, current portion 155,355 - 155,355

Total current liabilities 6,258,103 88,877 6,346,980

Noncurrent liabilities, long-term portion 1,836,846 - 1,836,846
Total liabilities 8,094,949 88,877 8,183,826

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES
Deferred inflows of resources related to pensions 232,327 46,674 279,001

Total deferred inflows of resources 232,327 46,674 279,001

NET POSITION
Net investment in capital assets 11,356,980 992,011 12,348,991
Unrestricted (4,046,919) 588,952 (3,457,967)

Total net position  $ 7,310,061 1,580,963 8,891,024

   
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Statement 8

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
Statement of Revenues, Expenses and Changes in Net Position

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Sewer Nonmajor

Department Funds Total

Operating revenues:
Fees  $ 1,246,718 530,679 1,777,397
Lease income - 40,000 40,000
Fuel sales - 323,284 323,284
Dues - 53,784 53,784
Other income 36,524 481 37,005

Total operating revenues 1,283,242 948,228 2,231,470

Operating expenses:
Wages and benefits 658,756 122,636 781,392
Utilities 106,142 26,390 132,532
Contracted services 30,549 34,216 64,765
Insurance 26,820 6,105 32,925
Supplies and equipment 99,797 294,414 394,211
Repairs and maintenance 23,781 20,879 44,660
Miscellaneous 1,379 5,828 7,207
Capital related expenses 86,378 - 86,378
Depreciation 433,134 31,970 465,104

Total operating expenses 1,466,736 542,438 2,009,174

Operating income (loss) (183,494) 405,790 222,296

Nonoperating revenue (expenses):
Interest income 6,760 - 6,760
Interest expense (54,307) - (54,307)

Total nonoperating revenue (expenses) (47,547) - (47,547)

Net income (loss) before transfers (231,041) 405,790 174,749

Transfers:
Transfer (to) from other funds 5,527 (295,000) (289,473)

Total transfers 5,527 (295,000) (289,473)

Change in net position (225,514) 110,790 (114,724)

Total net position, beginning of year 7,535,575 1,470,173 9,005,748

Total net position, end of year  $ 7,310,061 1,580,963 8,891,024
See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.

35



Statement 9

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
Statement of Cash Flows

Proprietary Funds
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Business-type Activities - Enterprise Funds
Sewer Nonmajor

Department Funds Total

Cash flows from operating activities:
Receipts from customers and users  $ 1,263,972 932,023 2,195,995
Payments to suppliers (376,041) (356,897) (732,938)
Payments to employees (700,996) (143,922) (844,918)

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities 186,935 431,204 618,139

Cash flows from non-capital financing activities:
(Increase) decrease in interfund loans receivable (181,986) (136,204) (318,190)
Transfers (to) from other funds 5,527 (295,000) (289,473)

Net cash provided by (used in)
non-capital financing activities (176,459) (431,204) (607,663)

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities:
Purchase of capital assets (816,353) - (816,353)
Proceeds from bond anticipation notes 983,299 - 983,299
Note principal payments (154,869) - (154,869)
Interest payments (23,597) - (23,597)

Net cash provided by (used in)
capital and related financing activities (11,520) - (11,520)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Investment income 6,760 - 6,760

Net cash provided by 
investing activities 6,760 - 6,760

Increase (decrease) in cash 5,716 - 5,716

Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of year 1,442,208 1,800 1,444,008

Cash and cash equivalents, end of year  $ 1,447,924 1,800 1,449,724

Reconciliation of operating income (loss) to net cash provided by 
(used in) operating activities:
Operating income (loss)  $ (183,494) 405,790 222,296
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to net cash 

provided by (used in) operating activities:
Depreciation 433,134 31,970 465,104
Change in operating assets and liabilities:
  (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable (20,313) (16,205) (36,518)
  (Increase) decrease in sewer liens 1,043 - 1,043
  (Increase) decrease in inventory - (8,853) (8,853)
  Increase (decrease) in accounts payable (1,195) 49,788 48,593
  Increase (decrease) in accrued wages (11,567) (4,167) (15,734)
  Increase (decrease) in other liabilities - (10,000) (10,000)
 Change in net pension liability (asset) with 

related deferred outflows and deferred inflows of resources (34,667) (16,174) (50,841)
  Increase (decrease) in accrued compensated absences 3,994 (945) 3,049

Net cash provided by (used in)
operating activities $ 186,935 431,204 618,139

Schedule of non-cash capital and related financing activities:
Forgiveness of debt $ -   -   -   

See accompanying notes to basic financial statements.
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Exhibit A-1

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
General Fund

Comparative Balance Sheets 
June 30, 2022 and 2021

2022 2021

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 12,718,427 10,130,488
Receivables:

Accounts 30,709 114,080
Due from other governments 134,330 34,061
Taxes receivable - current year 204,632 132,093
Taxes receivable - prior year 4,980 4,424
Tax liens receivable 52,954 38,608

Prepaids 175 1,275
Inventory 7,550 6,335

Total assets 13,153,757 10,461,364

LIABILITIES
Accounts payable and payroll withholdings 156,863 81,601
Accrued wages 52,007 108,051
Other liabilities 283,649 418,968
Interfund loans payable 6,835,578 3,577,347

Total liabilities 7,328,097 4,185,967

DEFERRED INFLOWS OF RESOURCES 
Unavailable revenue - property taxes 135,000 136,000

Total deferred inflows of resources 135,000 136,000

FUND BALANCES
Nonspendable 7,725 7,610
Committed 734,629 737,613
Assigned 200,000 225,000
Unassigned 4,748,306 5,169,174

Total fund balances 5,690,660 6,139,397

Total liabilities, deferred inflows of resources, and fund balances  $ 13,153,757 10,461,364
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Exhibit A-2

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual

For the year ended June 30, 2022
(with comparative actual amounts for the year ended June 30, 2021)

2022
Variance
positive 2021

Budget Actual (negative) Actual

Revenues:
Taxes:

Property taxes  $ 19,565,377 19,570,949 5,572 19,007,944
Change in unavailable revenue - 1,000 1,000 50,623
Excise taxes 1,064,000 1,175,887 111,887 1,169,421
Interest and costs on taxes 40,000 20,768 (19,232) 43,433

Total taxes 20,669,377 20,768,604 99,227 20,271,421

Intergovernmental:
State Revenue Sharing 110,000 227,181 117,181 149,009
Homestead reimbursement 120,000 114,606 (5,394) 123,462
State road assistance 42,000 43,460 1,460 40,528
Tree growth 6,000 8,170 2,170 6,244
Snowmobile reimbursement - 530 530 457
Veterans reimbursement 2,300 2,095 (205) 2,322
General assistance 1,000 - (1,000) -   
BETE reimbursement 7,000 5,890 (1,110) 7,465
Rachel Carson 3,500 - (3,500) 3,384
RSU COPS share 237,220 252,243 15,023 211,636
Covid grant -   -   -   86,883
FEMA -   -   -   21,466
Miscellaneous -   -   -   307

Total intergovernmental 529,020 654,175 125,155 653,163

Licenses and permits:
Town clerk fees 9,000 10,114 1,114 8,984
Plumbing fees 18,000 23,543 5,543 23,503
Building permits 365,000 544,809 179,809 541,930
Liquor license 5,000 4,550 (450) 4,350
Victualers license 5,000 5,900 900 5,700
Zoning requests - 5,750 5,750 -   
Shellfish license 900 1,375 475 1,275
Short term rental license 115,000 170,280 55,280 -   

Total licenses and permits 517,900 766,321 248,421 585,742
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Exhibit A-2, Cont.

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, Continued

2022
Variance
positive 2021

Budget Actual (negative) Actual

Revenues, continued:
Charges for services:

Dogs fees  $ 4,000 4,575 575 2,792
Agent fees 13,000 15,756 2,756 15,757
Planning board/appeals board 12,500 15,954 3,454 24,539
Parking tickets 40,000 34,067 (5,933) 56,236
Police other 11,500 6,010 (5,490) 5,156
Goose Rocks 170,000 231,220 61,220 226,119
Nurses fees 200 13,049 12,849 3,840
Miscellaneous 10,000 3,448 (6,552) 1,871

Total charges for services 261,200 324,079 62,879 336,310

Interest earned 60,000 44,090 (15,910) 70,344
Total interest earned 60,000 44,090 (15,910) 70,344

Other revenue:
Donations - 28,130 28,130 17,527
Sale of Town assets 25,000 21,920 (3,080) 507
Conservation 10,000 10,000 - 10,000
Miscellaneous - 1,470 1,470 26,306

Total other revenue 35,000 61,520 26,520 54,340

Total revenues 22,072,497 22,618,789 546,292 21,971,320
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Exhibit A-2, Cont.
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, Continued

2022
Variance

2021 Original Budget Total positive 2021
Carryforward Budget Adjustments Available Actual (negative) Actual

Expenditures:
Current:

General government:
Administration  $ 51,355 1,067,650 20,532 1,139,537 1,069,339 70,198 1,042,374
Planning and development 400 653,101 13,086 666,587 564,058 102,529 442,667
Boards and committees - 2,350 - 2,350 715 1,635 516
Growth planning - 2,500 - 2,500 1,638 862 2,958
Legal fees - 68,000 - 68,000 86,498 (18,498) 68,000
Insurance - 250,350 - 250,350 207,794 42,556 220,850
Community development - 34,818 - 34,818 33,537 1,281 32,788
Contingency 64,000 178,182 (133,183) 108,999 75,148 33,851 26,370
Covid 19 -   -   -   -   -   -   61,951
Overlay/abatements - 168,972 - 168,972 1,336 167,636 3,362

Total general government 115,755 2,425,923 (99,565) 2,442,113 2,040,063 402,050 1,901,836

Public safety:
Police department 46,696 1,826,888 41,019 1,914,603 1,751,333 163,270 1,615,783
Communications 11,300 554,774 11,250 577,324 564,198 13,126 500,364
Fire department 9,615 418,831 15,197 443,643 420,697 22,946 376,732
KEMS - 175,000 - 175,000 175,000 - 165,000
EMA - 1,500 - 1,500 - 1,500 -   
Special enforcement - 53,637 661 54,298 53,350 948 49,789

Total public safety 67,611 3,030,630 68,127 3,166,368 2,964,578 201,790 2,707,668

Public works:
Highway department 20,700 1,039,500 20,286 1,080,486 1,050,291 30,195 902,852
Utilities - 141,000 - 141,000 140,161 839 138,774
Shade tree 10,880 39,718 19 50,617 30,007 20,610 25,298
Street Lights - 32,000 - 32,000 17,342 14,658 34,342
Cemetery - 14,599 175 14,774 13,268 1,506 13,585

Total public works 31,580 1,266,817 20,480 1,318,877 1,251,069 67,808 1,114,851
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Exhibit A-2, Cont.
TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE

General Fund
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes

in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, Continued

2022
Variance

2021 Original Budget Total positive 2021
Carryforward Budget Adjustments Available Actual (negative) Actual

Expenditures, continued
Current, continued:

Health and welfare:
Solid waste $ - 589,380 - 589,380 553,354 36,026 462,913
Health 13,838 169,076 4,428 187,342 164,298 23,044 132,895
Welfare - 3,335 - 3,335 80 3,255 25
Social services - 23,118 - 23,118 23,118 - 23,118
Other services - 37,002 83 37,085 33,508 3,577 31,585
General assistance donations - - -   -   3,004 (3,004) 3,674

Total health and welfare 13,838 821,911 4,511 840,260 777,362 62,898 654,210

Recreation and culture:
Recreation - 297,143 6,447 303,590 306,240 (2,650) 256,516
Graves library - 155,000 - 155,000 155,000 - 155,000
Cape Porpoise - 14,550 - 14,550 14,550 - 14,550
Parsons Way - 3,800 - 3,800 5,732 (1,932) 3,715
Miscellaneous agencies - 6,350 - 6,350 6,289 61 6,031
Goose Rocks Beach Committee - 49,165 - 49,165 42,570 6,595 34,790

Total recreation and culture - 526,008 6,447 532,455 530,381 2,074 470,602

Education - 11,264,353 - 11,264,353 11,264,352 1 11,447,719

County tax - 1,199,997 - 1,199,997 1,199,996 1 1,150,725

Debt service:
Principal - 559,471 - 559,471 559,471 - 548,534
Interest - 378,060 - 378,060 379,782 (1,722) 392,930

Total debt service - 937,531 - 937,531 939,253 (1,722) 941,464
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Exhibit A-2, Cont.

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
 General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, Continued

2022
Variance

2021 Original Budget Total positive 2021
Carryforward Budget Adjustments Available Actual (negative) Actual

Expenditures, continued:
Capital improvements and reserves:

Committed:
Cemetery $ 300 -   -   300 - 300 -   
Community Development 10,564 -   -   10,564 1,939 8,625 11,310
Debt Recreation building 9,188 -   -   9,188 - 9,188 -   
Debt Police building 45,192 -   -   45,192 - 45,192 -   
EMA 5,610 -   -   5,610 - 5,610 -   
Employee separation 84,594 -   -   84,594 - 84,594 -   
General assistance donations 19,832 -   -   19,832 19,832 -   
General assistance food 18,044 -   -   18,044 - 18,044 -   
General assistance fuel 95,182 -   -   95,182 - 95,182 -   
Goose Rocks Beach Advisory Committee 129,220 -   -   129,220 - 129,220 -   
Legal 47,696 -   -   47,696 - 47,696 21,158
Local Circuit Breaker 10,086 -   -   10,086 4,072 6,014 3,781
Nurse general donation 23,092 -   -   23,092 5,741 17,351 60
Parsons Way bench 9,729 -   -   9,729 - 9,729 -   
Police donations 500 -   -   500 - 500 -   
Public works equipment -   -   -   -   - - 5,000

Total capital improvements
and reserves 508,829 -   -   508,829 11,752 497,077 41,309

Total expenditures 737,613 21,473,170 - 22,210,783 20,978,806 1,231,977 20,430,384

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over
(under) expenditures (737,613) 599,327 - (138,286) 1,639,983 1,778,269 1,540,936
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Exhibit A-2, Cont.

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
General Fund

Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes
in Fund Balance - Budget and Actual, Continued

2022
Variance

2021 Original Budget Total positive 2021
Carryforward Budget Adjustments Available Actual (negative) Actual

Other financing sources (uses):
Transfers from (to) other funds:

Administration $ - (5,000) - (5,000) (5,000) -   -   
Police - (48,800) - (48,800) (48,800) - (44,314)
Communications - (250,000) - (250,000) (250,000) - (250,000)
Fire - (210,000) - (210,000) (210,000) - (120,000)
Highway - (116,000) - (116,000) (116,000) - (15,000)
Road improvement - (414,000) - (414,000) (414,000) - (230,100)
Sidewalk - (105,000) - (105,000) (105,000) - (70,000)
Piers, rivers, and harbors - (300,000) - (300,000) (300,000) - (300,000)
Special projects - (50,000) - (50,000) (50,000) - (58,500)
Sewer debt service - 30,000 - 30,000 30,000 - (35,527)
Highway vehicle - - - - -   -   (109,000)
Capital projects - 325,000 - 325,000 325,000 - (10,555)
Dock Square parking lot - 265,000 - 265,000 265,000 - 225,000
Dock Square restrooms - 30,000 - 30,000 30,000 - 30,000
Special revenues - 60,000 - 60,000 60,000 - 60,000
Capital projects - - - - (1,264,393) (1,264,393) 325,000
Sewer - (35,527) - (35,527) (35,527) - 30,000

Utilization of unassigned fund balance - 225,000 - 225,000 - (225,000) -   
Utilization of committed fund balance 737,613 -   -   737,613 - (737,613) -   

Total other financing sources (uses) 737,613 (599,327) - 138,286 (2,088,720) (2,227,006) (572,996)

Net change in fund balance - budgetary basis -   -   -   -   (448,737) (448,737) 967,940

Reconciliation to GAAP basis:
Change in encumbrance balance -   (19,840)

Net change in fund balance - GAAP basis (448,737) 948,100

Fund balance, beginning of year 6,139,397 5,191,297

Fund balance, end of year  $ 5,690,660 6,139,397
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Exhibit B-1

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
All Other Governmental Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2022

Special Capital Total Other
Revenue Projects Permanent Governmental

Funds Funds Funds Funds

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents  $ -   -   92,248 92,248
Investments -   -   1,532,966 1,532,966
Accounts receivable 13,788 -   -   13,788
Interfund loans receivable 1,409,653 4,198,378 10,561 5,618,592

Total assets 1,423,441 4,198,378 1,635,775 7,257,594

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable 40,348 201,755 - 242,103
Accrued wages 6,575 -   -   6,575
Unearned revenue 386,051 -   -   386,051

Total liabilities 432,974 201,755 - 634,729

Fund balances:
Nonspendable -   -   1,142,297 1,142,297
Restricted -   -   493,478 493,478
Committed 990,467 3,996,623 - 4,987,090

Total fund balances 990,467 3,996,623 1,635,775 6,622,865

Total liabilities and fund balances  $ 1,423,441 4,198,378 1,635,775 7,257,594
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Exhibit B-2

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
All Other Governmental Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Special Capital Total Other
Revenue Projects Permanent Governmental

Funds Funds Funds Funds

Revenues:
Charges for services $ 238,348 -   -   238,348
Other revenues 14,904 -   -   14,904
Investment income (loss) -   -   (171,674) (171,674)

Total revenues 253,252 - (171,674) 81,578

Expenditures:
Current:

General government 38,626 -   -   38,626
Public safety -   -   38,035 38,035
Recreation and culture 136,336 -   -   136,336

Capital improvements 92,478 1,037,338 - 1,129,816
Total expenditures 267,440 1,037,338 38,035 1,342,813

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
  over (under) expenditures (14,188) (1,037,338) (209,709) (1,261,235)

Other financing sources (uses):
Issuance of debt - 1,000,000 - 1,000,000
Transfer from other funds 240,000 2,464,152 - 2,704,152
Transfer to other funds - (325,959) - (325,959)

Total other financing sources (uses) 240,000 3,138,193 - 3,378,193

Net change in fund balances 225,812 2,100,855 (209,709) 2,116,958

Fund balances, beginning of year 764,655 1,895,768 1,845,484 4,505,907

Fund balances, end of year $ 990,467 3,996,623 1,635,775 6,622,865
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Exhibit E-1

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
Nonmajor Permanent Funds

Combining Balance Sheet
June 30, 2022

Kittredge Family Picavet
Fire Equip. Fund Trust Totals

ASSETS
Cash and cash equivalents  $ 51,876 40,372 92,248
Investments 862,064 670,902 1,532,966
Interfund loans receivable 4,621 5,940 10,561

Total assets 918,561 717,214 1,635,775

LIABILITIES AND FUND BALANCES
Liabilities:

Accounts payable -   -   -   
Total liabilities -   -   -   

Fund balances:
Nonspendable 688,206 454,091 1,142,297
Restricted 230,355 263,123 493,478

Total fund balances 918,561 717,214 1,635,775

Total liabilities
   and fund balances  $ 918,561 717,214 1,635,775
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Exhibit E-2

TOWN OF KENNEBUNKPORT, MAINE
Nonmajor Permanent Funds

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures and Changes in Fund Balances
For the year ended June 30, 2022

Kittredge Family Picavet
Fire Equip. Fund Trust Totals

Revenues:
Investment income (loss) $ (96,336) (75,338) (171,674)

Total revenues (96,336) (75,338) (171,674)

Expenditures:
Public safety 38,035 - 38,035

Total expenditures 38,035 - 38,035

Net change in fund balances (134,371) (75,338) (209,709)

Fund balances, beginning of year 1,052,932 792,552 1,845,484

Fund balances, end of year $ 918,561 717,214 1,635,775
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She has worked hard to balance the needs of the 

residents with the needs of businesses. 

John Dykstra was elected to the other available seat. 

Jon has served on the Budget Board, the Goose 

Rocks Beach Advisory Committee, and chaired the 

Solid Waste/Recycling Committee, bringing curbside 

recycling back to town. Jon is also a member of the 

Cape Porpoise Atlantic Hall Board and the 

Kennebunkport Conservation Trust. He is also 

treasurer of the Maine Mineralogical and Geological 

Society and co-chairs the Island Stewards program. 

As life in our small town slowly returned to normal, 

Kennebunkport continued to move forward. We had 

a few projects funded through the capital budget 

including the lease purchase of a new ladder truck, 

the implementation of the communications radio 

system and new radio towers, and the replacement 

of the Wastewater clarifier equipment. 

We also had a project funded through a federal grant 

program: Kennebunkport received grants to replace 

not only the Cape Porpoise pier but also the 

causeway leading to Bickford Island. This is an 

especially important project after the December 23rd 

storm: a southeast gale blew in from the Gulf of 

Maine, causing unprecedented flooding in Cape 

Porpoise, Goose Rocks Beach, and Dock Square. 

During this time of high-water levels and power 

outages, Kennebunkport's emergency responders 

rose to the challenge and made sure that everyone 

was safe. 

The year 2022 presented Kennebunkport with both 

new challenges and opportunities. Many visitors to 

our town see its natural beauty as the reason people 

want to live here. However, to those who call 

Kennebunkport 'home,' we know that the residents 

are its greatest asset. In our 369-year history, our 

town has always come together when necessity 

requires. Looking forward, I only see this spirit of a 

community rising and getting stronger. 

Respectfully Submitted 

Edward W. Hutchins II, Chair of the Selectboard 

Edward Hutchins, II 

Chair 

Selectboard member since: 

July 2013 

Term expires: 

June 2023 

D. Michael Weston

Vice-Chair 

Selectboard member since: 
July 2021 

Term expires: 

June 2024 

Allen A. Daggett 

Selectboard member since: 

July 2009 

Term expires: 

June 2024 

Jon Dykstra 

Selectboard member since: 

July 2022 

Term expires: 

June 2025 

Sheila Matthews-Bull 

Selectboard member since: 

July 2007 

Term expires: 
June 2025 
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Joe Rafferty 
Senator, District 34 

THE MAINE SENATE 
131st Legislature 

3 State House Station 
Augusta, Maine 0433

 

February 15, 2023 

 

Dear Neighbors of Kennebunkport,  

I trust that you and your family are safe and healthy. I deeply appreciate the opportunity to continue 
serving as your State Senator. It remains the highest honor of my life to represent you in the Maine 
Legislature and I remain committed to working hard for you every single day. Now that we’ve 
emerged from the worst of the pandemic, I’m excited that the activities and operations at the State 
House have returned to normal.  

Members of the 131st Legislature were sworn in on Wednesday, December 7, 2022. I’m thrilled to 
report that President Jackson has appointed me to serve as the Senate Chair of the Joint Standing 
Committee on Education and Cultural Affairs once again. This committee oversees matters relating to 
the Department of Education, career and technical education, school facilities, student health and so 
much more. As someone who has dedicated their life to improving the lives of Maine children, I take 
this role very seriously. I will continue to support our students and teachers in every way that I can. 

Looking ahead, it’s clear that we need to build on our work from the 130th Legislature and continue to 
address the housing crisis that has displaced too many of our neighbors, alleviate the rising costs of 
electricity, heating fuel and food, and advance freedom and justice for all. On the very first day of the 
131st Legislature, I’m proud to share that my colleagues and I voted in support of LD 1, which was a 
bill that would have provided immediate heating and housing relief for Mainers. Although the bill did 
not get a two-thirds vote in the Maine Senate, we did not give up. We held a public hearing for a nearly 
identical bill – LD 3 – before the winter holidays. That way, we were able to debate and vote on LD 3 
when the Legislature reconvened on January 4, 2023. Fortunately, LD 3 received a two-thirds vote and 
took effect immediately.  

However, LD 3 was a one-time action. I want to remind you that I am a resource for you all year. If 
you need to contact a state agency or department or want to share a comment, please don’t hesitate to 
reach out. You can send me an email at Joe.Rafferty@legislature.maine.gov or call my office at 287-
1515.  

Sincerely, 

 
Joe Rafferty 
State Senator 
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HOUSE OF REPRESENTATIVES 
2 STATE HOUSE STATION 

AUGUSTA, MAINE  04333-0002 

(207) 287-1400

TTY: MAINE RELAY 711 

District 134: Biddeford (part), Kennebunk (part) and Kennebunkport 

Traci Gere 
7 Towne Street 

Kennebunkport, ME 04046   
Phone: (207) 967-6175 

Traci. Gere@legislature.maine.gov 

Dear Kennebunkport Neighbors, 

It is an honor to again have the opportunity to serve you in the Maine House of Representatives. I am proud to be 
your advocate in Augusta, and I am working alongside my colleagues to find thoughtful solutions for the many 
challenges facing our community and our state. 

As I write this, we are in the second month of the 131st Legislature. We have a lot of work to do in the coming 
months, from taking important steps to address the rising cost of living and the threat of climate change to 
improving access to affordable housing and health care. We are in the midst of conversations, committee hearings, 
and work sessions, hearing from people from across the state regarding issues that matter to them, including many 
of you.  

Our most significant priority will be creating a balanced two-year state budget, which will play a critical role in 
shaping Maine’s direction in the near future. I am pushing to ensure the budget improves the lives of all Mainers, 
including our most vulnerable and historically marginalized neighbors. Some of my other goals for the budget 
include continuing to invest in education and career development for the young people who represent the future of 
our state and making sure that Maine people have the resources they need to lead their communities and adapt to 
changes in the climate, technology, and our economy.  Working together, I know we can solve big problems and 
build a brighter future.   

It is my distinct honor to have been appointed by Speaker of the House Rachel Talbot Ross to serve as the House 
Chair of the Joint Select Committee on Housing. This newly created committee will work to address both the 
short-term and systemic challenges we face in making affordable and attainable housing a reality for Maine 
people.   Additionally, I will be serving on the Labor and Housing Committee, where we will oversee the Maine 
Department of Labor, the Maine Public Employees Retirement System, and policies relating to business 
regulation, wages, and workplace health and safety. 

Please feel free to contact me if I can ever be of assistance to you or your family or if you would like to discuss 
or testify on any upcoming legislation. My email is traci.gere@legislature.maine.gov, and my phone number is 
207-967-6175. I also send out monthly email newsletters that provide insight into our work at the State House, 
offer helpful information and resources and aim to connect you with your state government. Please let me know 
if you would like to receive them. 

I am so thankful that you have again entrusted me with this great responsibility, and I look forward to connecting 
with you over the next two years. 

Respectfully,

Traci Gere 

State Representative 
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Dear Friends: 

It is an honor to represent Maine in the U.S. Senate.  I am grateful for the trust that Mainers have placed in 
me and welcome this opportunity to share some key accomplishments for our state.   

Last year, I secured more than $500 million for 285 projects from Aroostook County to York County that 
will promote job creation, workforce training, and economic development; expand access to health care; 
improve public safety, infrastructure, and community resources; and protect our environment. To address 
the crisis of soaring inflation and high energy prices, I led efforts to provide $2 billion in supplemental 
funds to the Low-Income Home Energy Assistance Program.  In the new Congress that begins in 2023, I 
expect to be the Vice Chairman of the Appropriations Committee and will continue to champion 
investments to support Maine’s communities and families. 

Strengthening our economy and supporting good jobs remain a top priority.  Along with the Governor and 
the rest of the Maine Delegation and the associations representing the lobster industry, I worked to protect 
our hardworking lobstermen and women by pausing for six years the onerous federal regulations that 
jeopardize our lobster fishery’s very existence.  Another ongoing threat to Maine’s small businesses is the 
shortage of workers. That’s why I led an effort to push the Administration to nearly double the number of 
H-2B visas that are critical to our hospitality industry.  Additionally, when the Administration proposed to
cut the construction of a destroyer to be built by Bath Iron Works, I restored this funding to protect Maine
jobs and our national security.

When Maine Veterans’ Homes announced last year that it planned to close its facilities in Caribou and 
Machias, I opposed that decision which would have had such a devastating effect on rural veterans and 
their families.  I am glad that the decision was reversed, and I have secured $3 million to help with 
upgrades to these facilities.  My AUTO for Vets Act also became law, which will help disabled veterans 
maintain their independence by supporting the purchase of a new adaptive vehicle once a decade. 

This past year, Congress demonstrated how effective it can be on behalf of the American people when both 
parties work together.  A few of the bipartisan achievements that I was involved in include the Respect for 
Marriage Act, which will provide certainty to millions of loving couples in same-sex marriages while 
protecting religious liberties, and the Electoral Count Reform Act, which establishes clear guidelines for 
our system of certifying and counting electoral votes for President and Vice President.   

No one works harder than the people of Maine, and I have honored that work ethic by showing up for every 
vote.  During my Senate service, I have cast more than 8,500 consecutive votes, never having missed one.  
I remain committed to doing all that I can to address your community’s concerns in 2023.  If I may be of 
assistance to you in any way, I encourage you to contact one of my six state offices. 

Sincerely, 

Susan M. Collins  
United States Senator 

59



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Dear Friends, 
 
I hope this letter finds you well. It is my honor and privilege to serve the people of Maine’s First District 
in Washington, DC, and I appreciate the opportunity to share this annual update with you.  
 
This past year, our state faced unprecedented challenges, mirroring the difficulties experienced by comm 
unities across the nation. High inflation rates, a rapidly changing climate, aging infrastructure, and 
increasing energy costs were among the top concerns I heard while home in the district. Keeping these in 
mind, I was proud to work with my colleagues in the Maine Delegation to pass historic legislation to 
bring federal dollars back to our communities.  
 
One of the ways we delivered for Mainers was through the passage of the Inflation Reduction Act (IRA) 
in August. This law provides much-needed assistance to struggling families. With the help of the IRA, 
Americans will save an average of $800 per year on health insurance and Medicare beneficiaries will 
have increased access to medication.  
 
Additionally, the IRA offers billions of dollars to expand rebate programs for Americans who wish to 
make their homes more energy efficient. Homeowners can now receive up to a 30 percent tax incentive 
for the cost of home solar installations and a 30 percent incentive when investing in a heat pump. Over the 
next decade, these rebates will offer Mainers thousands of dollars in savings while decreasing fuel costs 
for winters to come.  
 
In 2022, Congress also passed meaningful legislation to help create skilled jobs in the construction, 
manufacturing, and engineering sectors. The Creating Helpful Incentives to Produce Semiconductors 
(CHIPS) Act will allow the U.S. to advance its leadership in the development of semiconductors used in 
the manufacturing of computers, cell phones, cars, and numerous other technologies we rely on. By 
developing this industry at home, we can bolster our national security and lessen our reliance on foreign 
technology.  

 
As I look toward this Congress, I am excited to work with my colleagues on both sides of the aisle to 
improve the lives of Maine people. It is critically important that we continue to take action to increase job 
growth, decrease inflation, take measures to promote our national security and invest in our health care 
and education systems.   
 
Each year my office receives over 40,000 calls, letters, and emails from Mainers. I recognize the 
tremendous trust you place in having me represent you in Washington and by sharing your stories, 
thoughts, and concerns. Please rest assured, I will continue to fight for the interests of Mainers in 
Congress, and my staff and I will do everything we can to ensure your needs are met.   
 

Sincerely, 
 
 
 
Chellie Pingree 
Member of Congress 
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O F F I C E  O F  T H E  GO V E R N O R  
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04333-0001 

 

PHONE: (207) 287-3531 (Voice)                                       888-577-6690 (TTY)                        FAX: (207) 287-1034 

       www.maine.gov 

 
 
Dear Friends: 
 
For four years it has been my privilege to guide our great state, working with the Legislature to 
keep Maine people safe and put our economy on a path to recovery. 
 
Since the arrival of the COVID-19 vaccines in December 2020, we have worked hard to get as 
many shots into the arms of Maine people as quickly as possible. Since the COVID-19 vaccine  
became available, more than a million Maine people have gotten fully vaccinated from COVID-19.  
It is thanks to them that our state has one of highest vaccination rates and one of the lowest death  
rates from COVID-19,despite having a much older population than other states. People are coming  
to Maine because we are one of the safest states in the nation. 
 
Following the recommendations of the Economic Recovery Committee, our economy has not 
only fully recovered, but has surpassed pre-pandemic projections and unemployment claims have 
dropped to pre-pandemic levels. And, last year, I was pleased to sign a balanced, bipartisan 
budget that finally achieves the State’s commitment to 55 percent education funding, fully 
restores revenue sharing, and expands property tax relief for Maine residents. 
 
Maine can be proud of our nation-leading progress, but our work is far from done. Through the 
Maine Jobs & Recovery Plan, we will continue to address our longstanding workforce shortage, 
the expansion of broadband, education and job training opportunities, housing, child care, and 
transportation. Drawing on the hard work and resilience of Maine people, together we will 
rebuild our economy and rise from this unprecedented challenge a state that is stronger than ever. 
 
In 2022, we focused on our economy, on our climate, on our kids, on keeping people safe 
and on the health and welfare of all Maine people. We have persevered, and, while challenges 
remain, we will get through them together. I am proud of the people of Maine, and I am proud to 
be your Governor. 
 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 
Janet T. Mills 
Governor 
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The Plan will be developed through a community
participatory process over a 14-month period. The
group will be undertaking a robust public
engagement process in 2023 in order to develop a
plan that addresses the needs that Kennebunkport
citizens identify. 

In June, the Town voters approved the architectural
and engineering fees to begin designing a new Town
Hall. The Town of Kennebunkport has been housed
at 6 Elm Street since 1960, or 62 years ago. During
that time the Town considered rebuilding Town Hall
at another location twice, once in the 1980’s with a
combined Police Department, and in 1999 with a
combined Fire Department. For various reasons the
Town did not move forward with a new town hall but
renovated 6 Elm Street in 2002. Over the decades
the Town has changed, and the Town Hall
operations have outgrown the space. The Selectmen
have appointed a Town Hall Building Committee
which have begun the work of reviewing the
programming needs and will bring forward the final
concept design for voter consideration. 

In the past year, Kennebunkport was awarded over
$5 million in grant funding to tackle two projects in
Cape Porpoise. On April 26th, the Town of
Kennebunkport was awarded funding in the amount
of $2,663,482. The amount came from two sources,
a federal Economic Development Administration
(EDA) grant of $2,163,482 and a Maine Small Harbor
Improvement Program (SHIP) grant of $500,000. The
scope of this project is to reconstruct the Cape
Porpoise commercial pier to include widening of
portions of the pier, replacement of the bait building
with sewer service, installation of 8 floats and
gangways, upgrades to electrical service, lighting,
and communications, installation of solar panels,
replacement and relocation of fuel tanks, and parking
improvements. The design phase of the project is
expected to be completed in early September. Once
approval is gained from the EDA, the project will be
placed out to bid. Construction is expected to begin
sometime over the winter.

On July 19th, the Town of Kennebunkport was
awarded funding in the amount of $2.585 million. The
grants were awarded by the Maine Department of
Transportation through the Maine Infrastructure
Adaptation Fund. The Fund, first announced by
Governor Mills in December 2021, was a
recommendation of the state’s climate action plan,
Maine Won’t Wait, to support community efforts to
build climate resilience in Maine. Maine Infrastructure
Adaptation Fund recipients will use the funds for
projects to address flooding along ocean and
riverfronts, protect stormwater and wastewater
systems, install culverts to reduce flooding; and
ensure energy availability during extreme storms. It
is our current intention to raise the causeway four to
five feet to maintain access to Bickford Island. This
project is currently in the design phase which is
expected to be completed this winter. The project will
then be placed out to bid after final design.

Laurie Smith
Town Manager

10
Departments

24
Board

Meetings

300+
Social Media Posts

Departments

3,629 
Year-Round
Population
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With the guidance of the Growth Planning
Committee and consultants Tom Morgan and Liz
Durfee the town brought forward an updated
Comprehensive Plan which was overwhelmingly
approved by the voters.

New for this year is Kennebunkport’s
participation in the Southern Maine Climate
Action Planning Cohort, where the communities
of Biddeford, Kennebunk, Kennebunkport and
Kittery are working together to establish local
climate action plans. Climate Action Plans help to
lay out policies and programs for reducing
communities’ greenhouse gas emissions and
adapting to climate change.

We continue our coordinated efforts with other
coastal communities regarding floodplain
mapping with assistance from Maine’s
Congressional Delegation. The process of
achieving accurate flood plain maps has been a
long and technical process that we expect to be
bringing to the voters in June 2023. 

Werner Gilliam,
Director of Planning
and Development 

David Gilchrest,
Deputy Code

Enforcement Officer

April Fortier
Administrative

Assistant

Greg Reid, 
Assistant Code

Enforcement Officer

Michelle Radley
Planner

Respectfully submitted,
Werner Gilliam, Director of Planning & Development

We said goodbye to Eli Rubin who transitioned to
South Portland as Community Planner and
welcomed Michelle Radley who took his place!
Michelle has jumped right into the management
of the Short-Term Rental Ordinance and provides
staff support to a number of Climate related
planning initiatives on which the town is working.

With a now approved Short-Term Rental
Licensing Ordinance, in partnership with Host
Compliance staff, we successfully issued over
400 licenses and diligently worked through the
implementation pains of doing our first year of
renewals. 

67



68



Fire 

Kennebunkport firefighters attack a building fire off School Street (Feb. 2022) 

During 2022, as the impact of COVID diminished, we 

were able to resume our full schedule of training. For 

the last few years, we have benefitted greatly from 

having three training sessions per month, one each 

hosted by the three local departments: Arundel, 

Kennebunk, and Kennebunkport. These are 

generally the same training topic for the month, thus 

giving our members multiple opportunities to attend 

at least one session. In addition, we often have a 

fourth session each month on topics unique to our 

community. Many training sessions are "hands on," 

such as vehicle extrication, water rescue with our two 

small rescue boats, and various aspects of structural 

firefighting. 

We also encourage new members to take a full 

Firefighter 1 and 2 certification course, at least two of 

which are held in the area each year. These courses 

are normally held on nights and weekends to 

accommodate volunteer members who work full time. 

These courses are approximately 240 hours in 

duration and are required for those who wish to be 

qualified to wear air packs and work inside a burning 

structure. 

Two of our recent graduates of these programs were 

hired in 2022 for career firefighter positions; one in 

Kennebunk, the other in Portland. 

For more information on the Kennebunkport Fire 

Department, including a roster of our members, 

please see our webpages at: 

www.kennebunkportme.gov 

I 

John Everett 

Fire Chief 

Richard Stedman 

Fire Administrator 

Scott Lantagne 

District 1 Chief 

James Burrows 

District 2 Chief 

Noel Graydon 

District 3 Chief 
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Looking ahead to 2023, we expect it will be a very 

busy year in Cape Porpoise. The Pier Renovation 

Project is scheduled to start in the Fall of 2023. This 

project includes major renovation of the Pier, the 

addition of a new ramp and float system for improved 

water-level access, replacement and relocation of the 

fuel storage tanks to higher ground on Bickford 

Island, and significant improvements to the building 

and facilities. Included in the project plan is the 

intention to maintain normal services at the Pier 

during the construction period. 

In December, you might have seen the beginning of 

We look forward to a productive 2023 in Cape 

Porpoise with many positive changes expected for 

this year. I'm always happy to assist with questions 

about our working waterfront and am ready to assist 

with any business at the Pier. My office door is 

always open (but services here are limited so I 

recommend bringing your own coffee if you're 

stopping in for a chat). 

Feel free to call, hail me on Channel 16, or flag me 

down underway once the boat is launched in the 

Spring. 

seaweed harvesting. This winter you will also see Captain Frank Orr 
activity related to seaweed harvesting that will be Kennebunkport Harbormaster / Cape Porpoise Pier 

performed from now until early spring. This Manager 

sustainable harvesting of rockweed is being 

performed by Hale Miller of Tenants Harbor. Over the 

course of the winter, you'll see his unusual looking 

boat and large green bags of seaweed floating in the 

harbor and tied up alongside the Pier. Mr. Miller's 

activity schedule is driven by the tide cycle, so you 

can expect to see his vessel underway at any hour of 

the day or night. 

Seaweed harvesting 

L1� 

97 

Moorings in Cape 

Porpoise Harbor 

214 

Total Moorings around 

Cape Porpoise 

Frank Orr 

Kennebunkport Harbormaster 

Cape Porpoise Pier Manager 
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Parks & Recreation 

As I reflect on the past year, there are many things 

the Recreation Department can be proud of. Post 

pandemic, the community was finally able to take full 

advantage of our events and programs, allowing 

residents and families to enjoy recreational time 

together. 

Special Events 

Special events were a big highlight for the Recreation 

Department this year. We kicked off 2022 with the 

2nd Annual Pond Hockey tournament. We had eight 

teams of adults vying for the coveted honor of 

champions. Families and players alike enjoyed all the 

goodies provided by the Kitchen Chicks, who ran the 

concessions stand for the entire event. It proved to 

be a great winter day with a picturesque snowfall 

accenting the bonfires, the rink, and all the festive 

activities surrounding the event. 

Teams playing during the 2022 Pond Hockey Tournament 

Spring began with the Kennebunkport Egg­

Stravaganza. Over 100 children of all ages hunted 

for eggs in Parson's Field and made a visit to the 

Bunny to have their pictures taken. 

Spring turned to summer, and we hit the ground 

running with our first Concert on the Lawn. For both 

concerts this summer, we had great bands that 

included the Dock Squares and the Chris Ross Band. 

No concert is complete without having some great 

food and beverage options. Food was provided 

through our concessions stand but we expanded the 

variety by bringing in several food trucks. 

Additionally, we used our strong community 

partnerships with Batson River Brewing and Distilling 

and Banded Brewing Company to provide several 

different choices for beverages. The community 

came out to celebrate the start and finish of the 

wonderful summer season! 

The fall brought back one of our most popular 

events, Chalk the 'Port. After having to postpone for 

two years, we were thrilled to once again host this 

event, this time with the theme of Kennebunkport: 

Past, Present, and Future. This year, in addition to 

artists working their magic on the pavement, four 

artists created recreated scenes of Kennebunkport 

on the four sides of a cube in Parson's Field, bringing 

the art into a new plane. Food trucks, breweries, and 

music highlighted the weekend as people were 

drawn out to Parson's Field for a great time with 

neighbors and friends. 
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Maine Regional School Unit 21
The Schools of Arundel, Kennebunk, and Kennebunkport

“Developing productive global citizens by building knowledge and character.”

Terri I. Cooper, Ed.D., Superintendent of Schools                                          Scott A. Harrison, Ed.D., M.B.A., Director of Human Resources
Anita Bernhardt, Assistant Superintendent of Schools                                                        Richard Terwilliger-Smith, Director of Operations
Susan L. Martin, M.S. Ed., Director of Special Services                                                                      Rafe Forland, M.B.A., Director of Finance

February 22, 2023

To the Citizens of Kennebunkport:

It gives me great pleasure to provide an update on our Maine Regional School Unit 21 progress for our
Kennebunkport students. With a focus on student achievement and a commitment to continual improvement,
Maine RSU 21 has earned a reputation as a top-notch school system. This long history of excellence is
evidenced by the many state and national honors bestowed on RSU 21’s schools, staff and students.

Our school district and community are working in partnership to fulfill our mission of ensuring that all students
achieve their highest personal potential. We are committed to creating a school system that prioritizes high
achievement, student success, and preparing students to be productive citizens. I believe that every child
should have the opportunity to dream, explore, and pursue whatever they want to become in life. Providing
our children access to a high-quality education and caring adults can and will produce life-changing outcomes.

We are fortunate to have a dedicated group of people leading our school district for the 2022-2023 school
year. I want to thank them for their leadership, commitment to our students and community, and support of
our mission to continually improve the education system for our students. Maine Regional School Unit 21 is a
great district because we have them on our team. Thank you to these sustained leaders and grounded decision
makers. Board members representing Kennebunkport are Louis Braxton Jr., Megan Michaud, Jameson Davis;
members representing Arundel are Board Chair Erin Nadeau, Ken Levesque, and Ryan McQueen; members
representing Kennebunk are Vice Chair Art LeBlanc, Amanda Downing, Peter Sentner, Gayle Asmussen
Spofford, Dawn Therrien, and Claudia Sayre. Student representatives are Matthew Ewy and Anne Murer.

In RSU 21 we are developing productive global citizens by building knowledge and character. To ensure our
students' success, we have engaged in strategic and methodical steps that will lead to their continued
progress.  These steps include, but are not limited to, the following:

● Conducting a curriculum review for Social Studies  and Mathematics.
● Utilizing the resource, Leverage Leadership 2.0 to implement the core coaching principles of effective

leadership and practice the seven levers of leadership that allow transformational growth.
● Completing long-term projects, Athletic Complex and Inclusive Playground, to support recreation,

health and well-being.
● Monitoring finances and ensuring expenditures are supporting the district’s needs to support the

district’s operation.
● Developing a Communications Department to oversee the internal and external communication

operations of the district.
● Engaging in partnerships that will further promote equity and inclusion throughout RSU 21.

177 Alewive Rd., Kennebunk, ME 04043
Phone: 207.985.1100   *   Fax: 207.985.1104   *   http://www.rsu21.net
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● Providing social and emotional support to our students.
● Creating a safe and nurturing environment for all students.

Our schools are amazing and need no introduction.  However, a sneak peak of their “awesomeness” will be
provided below. Please know that there is so much more to learn about our schools and their offerings.  I
encourage you to visit their webpages to see the wonderful programs and activities that are extended to our
students.

At Kennebunkport Consolidated School, students work and learn together across grade levels. Teachers
collaborate, share students and provide support to expose students to rigorous learning and high expectations.

Students at the Middle School of the Kennebunks, are exposed to a wide variety of learning opportunities to
help them grow and prosper. Unique experiential units and student participation in community
service-learning projects help make our community and world a better place. Additionally, our students are
able to engage in a variety of allied arts classes to help enhance their learning experiences.

Students at Kennebunk High School (KHS) are among the well-known in Maine. KHS has twice been awarded
the U.S. Dept of Education Blue Ribbon School Award, was on the AP District Honor Roll, was the first high
school in Maine to be authorized by IB, and has been ranked by U.S. News & World Report.

It is an honor to serve as superintendent of an amazing school district that is supported by the community. I
look forward to our school’s continued success.

Respectfully,

Terri I. Cooper, Ed.D.
Superintendent of Schools
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2022 REAL ESTATE/PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

  

1 ELM STREET, LLC 3,836.16 

10 PERKINS LANE REVOCABLE TRUST 3,998.40 

10 ROBIN LANE LIVING TRUST 4,773.12 

11 GRANDVIEW AVE LLC 23,618.88 

115 INDEPENDENCE, LLC 15,426.24 

11R SAND POINT ROAD, LLC 14,734.08 

12 LOCKE STREET REALTY TRUST 2,730.24 

120 BEACHWOOD AVENUE TRUST 992.64 

124 OCEAN AVE, LLC 4,510.08 

126 OCEAN AVENUE KPT, LLC 10,106.88 

136 NORTH STREET, LLC 3,366.72 

14 SPRING STREET TRUST 5,046.72 

15 BEECH STREET, LLC 10,704.96 

15 COLE BENSON ROAD REALTY TRUST 3,094.08 

15 LANGSFORD OWNER, LLC 3,749.76 

15 LANGSFORD OWNER, LLC 3,752.64 

15 LANGSFORD OWNER, LLC 4,030.08 

15 LANGSFORD OWNER, LLC 4,120.32 

15 LANGSFORD OWNER, LLC 4,135.68 

15 LANGSFORD OWNER, LLC 4,186.56 

15 LANGSFORD OWNER, LLC 4,277.76 

15 LANGSFORD OWNER, LLC 4,388.16 

15 LANGSFORD OWNER, LLC 5,496.96 

15 LANGSFORD OWNER, LLC 6,391.68 

15 LANGSFORD ROAD, LLC 3,696.96 

154 KINGS HIGHWAY, LLC 7,702.08 

157 RAKSHA, LLC 50,424.96 

16 R CAPE P., LLC 11,192.64 

162 KINGS HIGHWAY REALTY TRUST 10,248.96 

179 GUINEA ROAD REALTY TRUST 1,824.96 

1802 HOUSE BED & BREAKFAST 34.46 

20 NORTH STREET, LLC 7,559.04 

20 SAND POINT ROAD TRUST 517.44 

20 SAND POINT ROAD TRUST 8,623.68 

2012 LEINOFF QUALIFIED TRUST 29,380.80 

21 LANDS END LANE, LLC 7,224.00 

213 KINGS HIGHWAY REALTY TRUST 12,437.76 

218 KINGS HIGHWAY, LLC 6,602.88 

228 KINGS HIGHWAY REALTY TRUST 6,692.16 

24 THOMPSON ROAD SPE LLC 3,110.40 

2538970 ONTARIO, INC 2,599.68 

2538970 ONTARIO, INC 4,039.68 

2538970 ONTARIO, INC 4,630.08 

2538970 ONTARIO, INC 9,046.08 

270 MILLS ROAD NOMINEE REALTY TRUST 1,981.44 

29 LANDS END LANE, LLC 5,338.56 

290 OCEAN AVENUE, LLC 3,695.04 

301 OCEAN LLC 8,579.52 

31 LANDS END LANE, LLC 7,692.48 

31 PIER ROAD, LLC 9,509.76 

317 MAINE PROPERTY TRUST 43,235.52 

32 WILDWOOD AVE REVOC REALTY TRUST 5,925.12 

357 GOOSE ROCKS ROAD, LLC 3,352.32 

4 GEORGE LANE REALTY TRUST II 4,701.12 

45 NORTH STREET KPT, LLC 4,435.20 

5 BELLEWOOD AVENUE, LLC 6,562.56 

5 HAYWARD AVE QUALIFIED PRT 8,212.80 

58 LANGSFORD ROAD, LLC 13,691.52 

6 BIDDEFORD ROAD, LLC 9,284.16 

6 HIDDEN HILL, LLC 16,481.28 

6 SEA LANE REALTY TRUST 5,897.28 

7 CROSS STREET REALTY TRUST 5,124.48 

7 SANDPIPER LANE, LLC 23,689.92 

72 NORTH STREET, LLC 1,941.12 

8 KINGS LANE KENNEBUNKPORT TRUST 4,800.00 

80 TURBATS CREEK TRUST 3,874.56 

82 OCEAN AVENUE LLC 9,410.88 

9 CLEAVES AVENUE, LLC 6,501.12 

91 OCEAN AVENUE COTTAGE, LLC 14,769.60 

91A-B OCEAN AVENUE COTTAGE, LLC 9,605.76 

91A-B OCEAN AVENUE COTTAGE, LLC 21,756.48 

94 NORTH STREET LLC 4,631.04 

9CHR KPT LLC 4,313.28 

A & W, LLC 3,961.92 

AAG MAINE REALTY TRUST 1,054.08 

AAG MAINE REALTY TRUST 7,814.40 

AAG MAINE REALTY TRUST 10,074.24 

AASKOV, MICHAEL D & KERR, KATHARINE M 3,355.20 

ABACUS 52.32 

ACEVEDO, RUBEN & LISA M 4,660.80 

ACKER, GEORGE I & JANET K 5,053.44 

ACORN PROPERTIES REALTY TRUST 4,707.84 

ADAMS CORNER, LLC 554.88 

ADAMS FARM REALTY TRUST 226.56 

ADAMS FARM REALTY TRUST 4,185.60 

ADAMS FARM REALTY TRUST 4,220.16 

ADAMS, BRUCE E 1,753.92 

ADAMS, BRUCE E & GRACINE P 5,397.12 

ADAMS, CHARLES & ELIZABETH 6,448.32 

ADAMS, CHRISTOPHER C & ANNE D 5,863.68 

ADAMS, DAVID R & ELLEN L 2,336.26 

ADAMS, JENNIFER & BILLY 3,631.68 

ADAMS, RYAN & LEAH 5,188.80 

ADEL F SAROFIM FAMILY TRUST 3,592.32 

ADJUTANT, SEAN & JACQUELINE 1,380.48 

ADLER, KIMBERLY CHASE & THOMAS J 5,334.72 

AGAMENTICUS VIEW REALTY TRUST 13,262.40 

AGOSTINELLI, DONALD C & LILA 16,483.20 

AHEARN, CYNDI & SHAWN 522.82 

AIKEN, MATTHEW J & STARITA, TIFFANY A 2,669.76 

AKCP, LLC 18.05 

AKEL, MADELINE & ROSEBROOK, RENEE A 3,127.68 

ALBERTA LTD 940329 8,417.28 

ALDER RUN DEVELOPMENT COMPANY, LLC 13,804.80 

ALEXANDER, ALAN R & SHARON S 8,416.90 

ALICE E DUSTON REVOCABLE TRUST 4,731.84 

ALISSONS RESTAURANT 677.28 

ALLEN, ANDREW & DENISE 1,802.88 
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ALLEN, JOHN A 1,728.00 

ALLENGRB, LLC 3,480.00 

ALLER, CAROLYN R & HARRIS C 5,575.68 

ALLISON W PHINNEY TRUST 14,686.08 

ALOSCO, MARIO & SHARON 3,636.48 

ALTER, BRUCE S & LEVINE, AMY 2,720.64 

ALTHAM, RICHARD D & JULIET H 6,699.84 

ALTIERI, ANTHONY M 3,564.48 

ALTMAN, SPENCER D & AARON D 5,236.80 

ALVYDAS & KIM JARMAS REVOCABLE TRUST 9,808.32 

ALWIN, HOLLY A 1,712.64 

AMBROSE, JOSEPH J & SUSAN 28,965.12 

AMBROSINO, LAWRENCE A & LINDA M 6,226.56 

AMES, TIMOTHY C 2,988.48 

AMMANN, WILLIAM JR & MARY 7,205.76 

AMY K PIRONTI LIVING TRUST 7,431.36 

ANCHORAGE, LLC 1,491.84 

ANCHORAGE, LLC 9,960.96 

ANDERSEN, ARTHUR A & STEPHANIE I 5,433.60 

ANDERSON FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 4,808.64 

ANDERSON, JOHN & MARY LOU 2,191.68 

ANDERSON, KATHY L 1,054.08 

ANDERSON, MARYDILYS S & NELSON, JAMES C 8,385.60 

ANDERSON, MELINDA L 2,223.36 

ANDERSON, MELINDA L & DAVID V 2,496.00 

ANDERSON, PETER O 81.60 

ANDERSON, PETER O 4,076.16 

ANDERSON, ROBERT J & MARJORIE A 8,787.84 

ANDERSON, STEPHEN A & BARBARA J 2,270.40 

ANDERSON, THOMAS E 4,918.08 

ANDREA G SAVASTANO FAMILY TRUST 2,884.80 

ANDREWS, BRUCE I & ELIZABETH MARY 8,847.36 

ANDREWS, DYLAN R & TRACI 3,297.60 

ANDREWS, KAREN E 3,522.24 

ANGELOS, CHRIST T 4,770.24 

ANISIA R GIFFORD TRUST 6,119.04 

ANN MARIE KELLY LIVING TRUST 1,184.64 

ANN T SMITH REALTY TRUST 5,341.44 

ANNE E BENEDICT REVOCABLE TRUST 2000 18,371.52 

ANNE E STEELE SUPPLEMENTAL TRUST 1,604.16 

ANNE P FAMOLARE REVOCABLE TRUST 3,092.16 

ANTONIAK, SCOTT 3,762.24 

ANUSZEWSKI, KATHLEEN H 703.68 

ANUSZEWSKI, THOMAS J 698.88 

ANUSZEWSKI, THOMAS J 3,196.80 

ANUSZEWSKI, THOMAS J 5,829.12 

APPLE BLOSSOM LANE, LLC 4,073.28 

APPLE GROVE PROPERTIES, LLC 3,281.28 

ARCHAMBAULT, SYLVIE L 904.32 

ARCHAMBAULT, SYLVIE L 4,255.68 

ARCHER, CHARLES G 3,024.96 

ARMSTRONG, CAROLINE & TAYLOR JONATHAN 1,161.60 

ARNETTE, JOSEPH L & KATHRYN S 2,911.68 

ARNOLD, III, PERRY 3,815.04 

AROMANDO, RONALD & LORRAINE 2,229.12 

ARRA, ROBERT W 3,613.44 

ARSENAULT, NEAL J & SHARI 1,184.64 

ARUNDEL WHARF RESTUARANT 225.98 

ARUNDEL YACHT CLUB 71.42 

ARUNDEL YACHT CLUB 16,534.08 

ASHAYERI, NARGESS 3,122.88 

AT&T MOBILITY LLC 417.79 

AT&T WIRELESS SERVICES 1,709.76 

ATHERTON, IAN & KAREN 5,310.72 

ATLANTIC COAST HOSPITALITY, LLC 2,010.24 

ATLANTIC COAST HOSPITALITY, LLC 9,332.16 

ATLANTIC COAST HOSPITALITY, LLC 20,459.52 

ATLANTIC RESORT HOLDINGS, LLC 2,095.68 

ATLANTIC RESORT HOLDINGS, LLC 2,100.48 

ATLANTIC RESORT HOLDINGS, LLC 2,100.48 

ATLANTIC RESORT HOLDINGS, LLC 2,102.40 

ATLANTIC RESORT HOLDINGS, LLC 2,115.84 

ATLANTIC RESORT HOLDINGS, LLC 2,124.48 

ATLANTIC RESORT HOLDINGS, LLC 2,136.00 

ATLANTIC RESORT HOLDINGS, LLC 4,860.48 

ATWELL, WILLIAM L & MARGARET M 27,825.60 

AUDLEY, LOIS DAIGNAULT & JF CHRISTOPHER 3,219.84 

AULD, MARK W 2,531.52 

AUMAN, EDWARD M & NANCY A 3,117.12 

AUSTIN, JACK N & HOYT, KATHERINE L 2,902.08 

AUSTIN, ROBERTA M 1,301.76 

AUSTIN, ROBERTA M 1,545.60 

AUSTIN, ROBERTA M 2,852.16 

AVERSA, ANTHONY J 15,894.72 

AVIVA R. FIGLER LIVING TRUST 7,808.64 

AWISZUS, SCOTT & MARITZA 495.94 

AYER, SUSAN W 5,553.60 

B & C PROPERTIES, LLC 3,824.64 

BABB, DAVID J JR &, KAREN J 1,172.16 

BADERTSCHER, MARK & KATHERINE 4,600.32 

BADGER, LOIS S 5,137.92 

BAILEY, MAUREEN A 2,324.16 

BAINES, STEVEN & DICKINSON, DEBRA 78.72 

BAINES, STEVEN & DICKINSON, DEBRA 6,356.16 

BAJAKIAN, SUSAN J 3,603.84 

BAKER, CHRISTINE  H 7,115.52 

BAKER, ELIZABETH E 2,786.88 

BAKER, RYAN F 3,049.92 

BALCAVAGE, ROBERT M 5,508.10 

BALCOM, MARK S & CLARK, CAROL V 4,405.44 

BALCOM, WILLIAM BRIAN 9,417.60 

BALL, DAVID & NANCY 483.84 

BALLARD, MATTHEW & LISA 4,091.52 

BALOGH, KATHRYN S & EDWARD A., JR 277.44 

BALSIS, BRIAN R & JAIME M 1,656.96 

BALSIS, STEPHEN M & GERACI, LISA D 1,131.84 

BANCROFT, DAVID J & NICKULAS, JOHN M 723.84 

BANCROFT, DAVID J & NICKULAS, JOHN M 1,851.84 

BANCROFT, PHILIP  D 4,225.92 

BANFIELD, ROBERT G & CHERYL A 6,173.76 
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BANTZ, CLAUDIA S 3,308.16 

BARACCO, ADRIEN M & SUSAN V 2,483.52 

BARBARA F. FINDEISEN REVOC. TRUST 9,445.44 

BARBARA H RUSSELL TRUST 15,782.40 

BARBARA R BENJAMIN TRUST 3,726.72 

BARBOUR, VALERIE B & JOHN L 3,078.34 

BARLOV, PATRICIA A & VLADIMIR 1,666.56 

BARNES, ANNE F 12,626.88 

BARRETT FAMILY TRUST 6,001.92 

BARRETT, JOHN & MARY A 6,433.92 

BARRETT, TIMOTHY A & JENNIFER A 4,918.08 

BARRON, DAPHNE L 5,046.72 

BARRY V & HARRIET M ENGEL TRUST 16,472.64 

BARRY, KATHARINE L 1,629.12 

BARRY, RICHARD & MARIA ANTONIA 8,536.32 

BARTLETT, ALAN M & TERRY 2,299.20 

BARTLETT, ALAN M & TERRY 4,924.80 

BARTLETT, HUGH J & JUDITH 3,854.40 

BARTLETT, LILLIAN M 3,031.30 

BARTLETT, TERRY & ALAN 2,012.16 

BARTLETT, WILLIAM A & JENNIFER C 3,558.72 

BARTLEY, BRUCE J & LINDA M 3,527.04 

BARWISE, STUART E & BIRGIT B 3,676.80 

BASEL, LLC 3,300.48 

BASSETT, EDWARD P & LONNA J 3,056.64 

BATCHELOR, NANCY M 3,329.28 

BATH, AMY C 4,443.84 

BATH, GREGORY P & DEIDRE A 1,932.48 

BATH, WILLIAM M 1,548.48 

BATTAGLIESE, NEIL J JR & HEATHER A 3,043.20 

BAUMAN, DEBORAH R 11,663.04 

BCPR 76 PR, LLC 19,224.00 

BEAN, DAVID F & KRISTEN 3,026.88 

BEAN, PAMELA 2,349.12 

BEARD, DANIEL B & SARAH B 9,194.50 

BEATRICE D BOUDETTE TRUST 3,605.76 

BEATT, BRUCE H 7,346.88 

BEAUCHEMIN, BRIAN D 1,566.72 

BEAUDION, WILLIAM J & JENNIFER M 3,106.56 

BEAUPRE, TIMOTHY M & CRISTY 3,571.20 

BEAVER CREEK IRREVOCABLE TRUST 7,768.32 

BEAVER POND TRUST 120.00 

BEAVER POND TRUST 464.64 

BEAVER POND TRUST 5,432.64 

BEAVER POND TRUST 5,456.64 

BEDKER, LINDA S 3,538.56 

BEES KNEES KENNEBUNKPORT, LLC 3,453.12 

BELISLE, GERARD M & JANET 2,086.66 

BELL, DENNIS B & JULIE R 6,193.92 

BELL, JOANNA 6,530.88 

BELL, MICHAEL J 120.96 

BELL, SUSAN M & WAYNE A 3,157.44 

BELLIA, SALVATORE & LAURA 2015 TRUST 9,237.12 

BELYEA, JOHN A 4,573.44 

BEMAN, DEANE R & JUDITH N 9,938.88 

BENENTI, VICTORIA 2,879.04 

BENENTI, VICTORIA & THOMAS 9,842.88 

BENINATI, JOHN D & PATRICIA A 3,743.04 

BENINCASA, JUSTIN D & GRACE M 9,077.76 

BENJAMIN, SIRI H 4,277.76 

BENNETT, DANIEL D 2,543.04 

BENNETT, JONATHAN P & PATRICIA P 4,254.72 

BENOIT, ROBERT J & LISA 3,936.96 

BENSON FAMILY TRUST 3,980.16 

BENT, CHRISTOPHER & CHRISTINA 2,662.08 

BENT, CHRISTOPHER & CHRISTINA 10,302.72 

BENT, CHRISTOPHER & CHRISTINA 24,094.08 

BENTLEY, GEORGE N JR 7,798.08 

BEOTE, RICHARD A & KATHRYN 3,727.68 

BERG, EMIL J & CAROLE A 5,900.16 

BERGEN, WILLIAM C & KATHLEEN A 7,939.20 

BERGER, TIMOTHY & KATHLEEN 1,937.28 

BERGER, TIMOTHY & KATHLEEN 6,922.56 

BERGERON, PAUL & FAYE 3,084.10 

BERNARD, GABRIEL & INDRE 1,404.48 

BERRY, DAVID S & THERESA L 733.06 

BERUBE, BRIAN A & WOLFF, SUSAN C 5,851.20 

BERUBE, RYAN 6,261.12 

BESSEY, DONALD M 1,570.56 

BETE, CHANNING L JR & MARIE P 22,342.08 

BETSES, DAVID A 8,264.64 

BETSES, DAVID A & JEAN ANNE M 2,977.92 

BETSES, JEAN ANNE M 72.96 

BETSES, JOSEPHINE E 4,640.64 

BEVERIDGE, ARNOLD H & KATHRYN G 2,599.68 

BEVERLY MESERVE TRUST 3,019.20 

BICK, EDWARD R & LINDA A 1,627.20 

BICKFORD, BENJAMIN G 2,766.72 

BICKFORD, MARY J & ALLEN E 1,572.10 

BICKFORD, WADE E & TAMMY L 867.84 

BIDDLE, ANTHONY C & ANN P 4,495.68 

BILLINGS, CARONELLE 2,324.16 

BILLINGS, MARILYN 2,325.12 

BINETTE, JANE 2,555.14 

BIONDI, JAMES A & MCGUIRE, LYNNE 1,850.88 

BIRMINGHAM, MARK F & SULLIVAN, JANE E 2,205.12 

BITHER, GREGORY B & NANCY B 3,578.88 

BJOTVEDT, ERIC G & AIYSHA S 3,433.92 

BLACK, JAMES & HOLLY 6,790.08 

BLACKACRE REALTY, LLC 94.08 

BLAKE, TRISTRAM & KATHLEEN 6,652.80 

BLAKENEY, WILLIAM & ELEANOR 9,633.60 

BLANCHARD, HARTWELL 1,752.00 

BLANCO-REYES, MARILYN 4,712.64 

BLANK, DIANA D 2,608.32 

BLISS, MEGAN A 1,438.08 

BLOMGREN, RICHARD E & CHERYL L 2,065.54 

BLOOM, CHERYL 7,783.68 

BLOOM, LLC 480.96 

BLOOM, SCOTT 471.36 
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BLOOM, SCOTT F & O'NEIL, SHAWN P 5,463.36 

BLOOMINGDALE, ANDREW B 7,181.76 

BOAK, SUSAN J & THOMAS IS III 8,268.48 

BOARDMAN, GEOFFREY & LINDA 4,316.16 

BOARDMAN, SANDRA D 5,032.32 

BOARTS, LORI L & GERALD L 2,817.60 

BOATHOUSE 7, LLC 6,314.88 

BOATHOUSE AT KENNEBUNKPORT, LLC 37,018.56 

BOATHOUSE WATERFRONT HOTEL 8,756.06 

BOBOTAS, EVAN 378.05 

BODWELL, VERNE E JR 1,675.20 

BOILARD, DAVID 2,611.20 

BOLGER, BRUCE E 1,776.96 

BOND, VICTORIA 1,067.52 

BONENFANT, EDWARD 3,970.56 

BONEY, PAISLEY 16,248.96 

BONFIRE REALTY TRUST 9,007.68 

BONGIORNO, LLC 41,536.32 

BONNEAU, PAUL V & SARAH P 2,229.12 

BONOGOFSKY, ELEXA & HIGGINS, NEIL 4,072.32 

BOSELLI, JAMES 4,164.48 

BOSNIAN, ADAM 3,598.08 

BOTELHO, ROBIN 5,262.72 

BOUCHER, ALAN F & HEIDI N 8,369.28 

BOUCHER, KRISTINA 3,187.20 

BOUCHER, ROBERT R 2,145.60 

BOUGHTON HOTEL CORP 5,002.56 

BOUGHTON HOTEL CORP 5,112.96 

BOUGHTON HOTEL CORP 12,417.60 

BOUGHTON HOTEL CORP 14,109.12 

BOUGHTON HOTEL CORP 88,804.80 

BOURAS, DIMITRI J 9,707.52 

BOURGOIN, RAYMOND J & DIANORA M 4,908.48 

BOURQUE, MARC R & PATRICIA 1,746.82 

BOUTILIER, GARFIELD R & SHARON W 28,919.04 

BOVE, GEOFFREY M & ANDREA P 4,426.56 

BOWDOIN, TERESA  (LIFE ESTATE) 2,211.84 

BOWEN, ROBERT M & ANNE L 3,879.36 

BOWLER, ANNETTE & ARTHUR 5,840.64 

BOWLEY, GEOFFREY D & AJA 11,171.52 

BOWSPRIT KENNEBUNKPORT, LLC 4,143.36 

BOYD, CAROLYN H 2,676.48 

BOYER, LOUP D & KATRINA 3,223.68 

BOYER, WILLIAM E & ROLLAND, EMMANUELLE 1,999.30 

BP FLEETWOOD LIVING TRUST 5,277.12 

BRADBURY BROTHERS MARKET 251.71 

BRADBURY, THOMAS E 4,124.16 

BRADBURY, THOMAS E & SHIRLEY W 2,845.44 

BRADSHAW, PETER S & MARGARET M 7,540.80 

BRAGDON, HIDEKO M 922.56 

BRAGDON, HIDEKO M 2,297.28 

BRAGINETZ, THOMAS & ELIZABETH 2,588.16 

BRASK, PETER H 8,672.64 

BRASSERT, KATE E 9,260.16 

BRASSERT, WALTER L 11,614.08 

BREAKWATER INN 350.98 

BREAKWATER SPA 360.86 

BREAKWATER-KENNEBUNKPORT, LLC 20,764.80 

BREAKWATER-KENNEBUNKPORT, LLC 26,305.92 

BREAREY, RAYMOND & SHEILA 4,585.92 

BREEN, JOHN A 1,504.32 

BREISBLATT, STUART I & KATHLEEN M 8,639.04 

BREITMAIER, ELLEN R & ZAMOS, DIANE E 3,154.56 

BREMSER, PAULINE A 838.08 

BRENDA M JOHNSON TRUST 5,416.32 

BRENNAN, CHARLES T LIFE ESTATE 1,068.48 

BRIAN & PRUDENCE MINNIHAN LIVING TRUST 5,166.72 

BRIAN F RIGNEY QP RESIDENCE TRUST 15,462.72 

BRIDGE, BARBARA 4,019.52 

BRIDGES, DAVID M & LINDA E 1,770.24 

BRIDGES, KEVIN M & MONICA L 2,390.40 

BRIDGES, SALLY J & ELLSWORTH L JR 2,055.36 

BRIDGES, SALLY J & ELLSWORTH L JR 2,349.12 

BRIGGS, EDWIN W 3,498.24 

BRIGGS, PATRICK A & ANN MARIE 8,134.66 

BRIGGS, THELMA JEAN 2,699.52 

BRILL, NICHOLAS S & MARGARET W 6,311.04 

BROADDUS, III, JOHN A & MOLLY 8,459.52 

BROCK, LINDA S & DEREK P 12,643.20 

BRODEN, DAVID & ROBIN 2,226.24 

BRODERICK, PETER M & JOAN M 7,006.08 

BROOK, EBEN C & HELENA C 4,628.16 

BROOKS, DORIS V & THURSTON, LLOYD 4,084.42 

BROOKS, LORRAINE E 2,152.90 

BROOKS, LORRAINE E 3,996.48 

BROOKS, RONALD C & LINDA J 4,307.52 

BROOKS, SHANE A 2,709.12 

BROOKS, STUART E 107.52 

BROOKS-WARDROP, LLC 19,297.92 

BROOKS-WARDROP, LLC 20,811.84 

BROWN, ANDREA SAVONA 1,196.16 

BROWN, CAROL & FRANK REVOC TRUSTS 5,900.74 

BROWN, CAROLYN C 551.04 

BROWN, CAROLYN C 6,597.12 

BROWN, CHARLES F & PRISCILLLA 1,922.88 

BROWN, DAVID BOYD JR 2,043.84 

BROWN, FRANCES E 2,169.60 

BROWN, JOANNA S 908.16 

BROWN, KATHLEEN L 1,284.48 

BROWN, RAY T & MCGRATH-BROWN, MARIE 3,800.64 

BROWN, REBECCA S 88.32 

BROWN, RICKY S 1,239.36 

BROWN, RICKY S & SAVONA, ANDREA 3,726.72 

BROWN, RITA 3,000.00 

BROWNING, GAIL C 3,803.52 

BROWNLIE FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 1,193.28 

BROWNROCK MAINE, LLC 3,810.24 

BROWNROCK MAINE, LLC 3,818.88 

BROWNROCK MAINE, LLC 5,340.48 

BRUCE & KATHI JORDAN REVOC TRUST 6,942.72 
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BRUCE ANTHONY KING TRUST 13,802.88 

BRUCE ANTHONY KING TRUST 16,715.52 

BRUCE BACKMAN LIVING TRUST 1,125.12 

BRUCE BACKMAN LIVING TRUST 6,590.40 

BRUCE, DAVID K & PAMELA 3,499.20 

BRUNELL, MARK & SOUSA, STEVEN 4,414.08 

BRUNS, WILLIAM A 1,882.56 

BRYAN, CYNTHIA P 3,071.04 

BRYAN, JOHN R & CARTER A 6,098.88 

BRYAN, JOHN R & CARTER A 25,042.56 

BRYAN, LYNDA C 1,905.60 

BRYANT, BREYDIN S & STRANDBURG, DAVID J 3,201.60 

BRYANT, CALVIN S 786.24 

BRYANT, CALVIN S 1,938.24 

BRYANT, CALVIN S 3,509.38 

BRYANT, DILLON C & FAIELLA, STEPHANIE 2,781.12 

BRYANT, DONALD R JR & LORNA C 93.12 

BRYANT, DONALD R JR & LORNA C 1,107.84 

BRYANT, DONALD R JR & LORNA C 1,150.08 

BRYANT, DONALD R JR & LORNA C 3,723.84 

BRYANT, KENNETH I 2,776.32 

BRYANT, KRISTI ANN & KIDWELL, MATTHEW J 3,133.44 

BRYANT, LOUISE 1,894.08 

BRYANT, LOUISE M 1,354.56 

BRYANT, LOUISE M & KRISTI A 2,179.78 

BRYANT, RONALD P & EILEEN M 6,369.60 

BRYANT, STEVEN A & SHIENA L 2,935.68 

BRYANT, STEVEN A & SHIENA L 3,144.96 

BSS 1961, LLC 4,920.96 

BUCHANAN, JR, ROBERT R. & MICHAEL 2,559.36 

BUCHHOLZ, ERIC & SUZANNE 1,976.64 

BUCK, JEFFREY E 3,410.88 

BUCKLEY, ANDREW & GREENE, CYNTHIA 7,352.64 

BUCKLEY, CHARLES & ROBIN 8,501.76 

BUCKLEY, FREDERICK C 3,118.08 

BUFFUM, KENNETH & JO ANN 525.12 

BULLARD, SHAWN 2,029.44 

BUNDY, DARCIE A TRUSTEE 18,889.92 

BUNDY, MICHELLE L & KARLIN N 1,249.92 

BUNNEWITH, GARY & CYNTHIA 232.13 

BURBANK, WAYNE N & PAULETTE R 5,843.52 

BURFORD, LINDA W 5,960.64 

BURGESS, DONALD R & MARY LOU 5,864.64 

BURKE FAMILY 2013 IRREVOCABLE TRUST 3,234.24 

BURKE, JOHN L & ADRIANA V 5,042.88 

BURMEISTER, CATHY M & STREIFF, SUSAN E 3,823.68 

BURNE, DANIEL S & LAURA A 2,680.90 

BURNE, JAMES W & SANDRA Y 2,363.14 

BURNETT, ANNE E 4,065.60 

BURNHAM, PATRICIA A TRUSTEE 2,012.16 

BURNS, BRIDGET M 2,472.00 

BURNS, GREGORY & JANE 4,127.04 

BURNS, GREGORY R & NORINE C 83.52 

BURNS, GREGORY R & NORINE C 6,051.84 

BURRITT, JUSTIN P 2,057.28 

BURROWS, JAMES E & VIRGINIA E 2,367.36 

BURT, KENNETH & ELAINE 495.74 

BUSER, BOYD R & PAM K 117.12 

BUSER, BOYD R & PAM K 4,496.64 

BUSHKOVITCH, PAUL A 4,137.60 

BUTCHER, CHRISTOPHER E & SYDNEY R 4,111.68 

BUTLER, DOUGLAS J & JEANNE M 5,861.38 

BUTTNER, EDWARD W IV 15,026.88 

Buxton, Alexandra E 6,358.08 

BUXTON, RHONDA F & ANTHONY A 18,193.92 

BYERLY, WILLIAM F & MARY C 3,627.84 

BYERLY, WILLIAM F & MARY C 12,432.00 

BYRNE, THOMAS J & HUESTIS, MARTHA G 2,517.70 

BYRNES, JOHN C & ADA W 3,681.60 

C J VANDERVOORN QPR TRUST 15,206.40 

CA SCIBELLI IRREVOCABLE TRUST 3,717.12 

CABE, MARIO & JOANN 4,169.28 

CABLE, MAUREEN C 2,451.84 

CABRAL, ANNE MARIE & MESHEL, ROBERT 5,107.20 

CADIEUX, RONALD A & JUDITH E 3,750.34 

CADIGAN, MARCIA G 457.92 

CADIGAN, MARCIA G & PAUL W 3,612.48 

CADRAIN, STEVEN J 536.64 

CADWELL, CHARLES & SCHAPIRO, MARY 17,291.52 

CAFFERTY, DENNIS M & ROSA 3,255.36 

CAHILL MAINE TRUST 1,196.16 

CAHILL, JAIME R 6,038.40 

CAHILL, MARIA T & OLLARI, CHRISTOPHER J 3,491.52 

CAI PROPERTIES, LLC 22,434.24 

CAIRA FAMILY INVESTMENT TRUST 7,507.20 

CALCUTT, DENNIS P & TIFFANY F 5,046.72 

CALDWELL, MALCOM G 3,942.72 

CALLAHAN, MARY ALICE & WILLIAM J 13,373.76 

CALVEY, THOMAS F & MARY ELLEN 6,070.08 

CALVIN F SENNING LIVING TRUST 4,353.60 

CAMP, JOYCE P 33,965.76 

CAMPBELL, ANN W 1,437.12 

CAMPBELL, ANN W 4,137.60 

CAMPBELL, BEVERLY S 3,126.34 

CAMPBELL, BRETT 3,199.68 

CAMPBELL, ROBERT S & KATHLEEN F 8,304.96 

CAMPBELL, TERRI A & CASEY L 1,964.16 

CANDY MAN 33.02 

CANTARA, DAVID P & CATHERINE A 2,036.16 

CAPE ARUNDEL GOLF - OFFICE 198.62 

CAPE ARUNDEL GOLF CLUB 1,686.72 

CAPE ARUNDEL GOLF CLUB 1,729.34 

CAPE ARUNDEL GOLF CLUB 2,624.64 

CAPE ARUNDEL GOLF CLUB 21,672.96 

CAPE ARUNDEL INN 3,919.97 

CAPE PIER CHOWDER HOUSE 151.39 

CAPE PORPOISE LOBSTER CO, INC 2,648.64 

CAPE PORPOISE POINT TRUST 2,183.04 

CAPE PORPOISE VILLAGE NOMINEE TRUST 487.68 

CAPE PORPOISE VILLAGE NOMINEE TRUST 9,529.92 
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CAPONE, GARY D & JENNIFER E 3,243.84 

CAPPS, NOBLE F & NANCY H 3,506.88 

CAPRIO, TERESA A & MULLIKEN, SCOTT P 4,859.52 

CARD FAMILY REAL ESTATE TRUST 11,237.76 

CARDILLO FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST 3,102.72 

CARDIN, CAROLYN JVC & RAYMOND J 3,171.84 

CARET, ELIZABETH R 3,283.20 

CARLSON, ELAINE M 951.36 

CARLSON, ELAINE M & O'KEEFE, NANCY L 1,880.64 

CARNEY, DONALD A 11,768.64 

CAROL J. STEELE LIVING TRUST 1,211.52 

CAROL L LABOISSONNIERE TRUST 3,622.08 

CAROLYN S MEHLHORN REVOCABLE TRUST 2,265.60 

CARON, JOHN V 5,901.12 

CARON, RONALD G JR 378.24 

CARPENTER REALTY TRUST 1,117.44 

CARPENTER REALTY TRUST 6,433.92 

CARPENTER, CHRISTOPHER 2,658.24 

CARREAU, ROBERT W & JOHN C 1,844.16 

CARREAU, ROBERT W & JOHN C 4,602.24 

CARREIRO, ROBERT M 2,251.20 

CARRIAGE HOUSE INVESTMENTS, LTD 9,738.24 

CARROLL, DANIEL P & LISA M 5,251.20 

CARROLL, MICHAEL P 8,727.36 

CARTER EVANS REVOC TRUST 13,008.96 

CASE, DARREN M 612.48 

CASE, WILLIAM & BRENDA 3,886.08 

CASEY, IRENE M 4,189.44 

CASEY, LINDA A & HARDING, WARREN 91.20 

CASEY, LINDA A & HARDING, WARREN 99.84 

CASEY, LINDA A & HARDING, WARREN 101.76 

CASEY, LINDA A & HARDING, WARREN 192.00 

CATALDO, MARY B 6,942.72 

CATARIUS, PAUL F & ELIZABETH T 4,774.08 

CATHERINE E CASEY-FLAVIN REVOC TRUST 3,244.80 

CAVASSA, ANNE M 3,641.28 

CAYFORD, GREGORY R & SUSANNE M 3,686.40 

CAYO, CAROL L 2,012.16 

CCAM, LLC 7,381.44 

CD MN REVOCABLE TRUST 16,311.36 

CECILE A HARRIS REVOCABLE TRUST 5,208.96 

CECILE NASSISE REVOCABLE TRUST 1,323.84 

CECILIA ALTHOFF REVOCABLE TRUST 5,748.48 

CECILIA M DIBELLA REV TRUST OF 2013 5,280.00 

CELI, CHRISTOPHER & SEVERY, SUZANNE 2,612.16 

CENTEIO, ELENA 827.52 

CENTRAL MAINE POWER COMPANY 1,456.32 

CENTRAL MAINE POWER COMPANY 61,682.88 

CENTRELLA, STEVEN M & GAIL F 3,467.52 

CERONE, JOHN M., JR 1,263.36 

CHADBOURNE, JEFFERY & BRADBURY 2,832.00 

CHAMBERS, JOHN G II & ELIZABETH 5,036.16 

CHAMBERS, JOHN G II & GEORGE P 4,633.92 

CHAMPAGNE, LUCIEN L & MARILYN J 2,826.24 

CHAPIN, MARY ELLEN & GAROFALO, WENDY F 5,728.32 

CHAPMAN, KENTON W & KARINA M 3,532.80 

CHAPPELL, CHRISTOPHER & MARTHA 7,161.60 

CHAPPELL, ELIZA 3,750.72 

CHARBONNEAU, BRENDA & LEO 525.89 

CHARLES & LAURIE WITHINGTON LIVING TRUST 5,488.32 

CHARLES P COMERFORD 1999 REVOCABLE TRUST 11,515.20 

CHARLTON, KENNETH B 3,197.76 

CHARTWELL REALTY TRUST 5,095.68 

CHASE, JULIE 2,184.00 

CHASE, LYNN E 592.32 

CHASE, LYNN E 677.76 

CHASE, LYNN E 4,235.52 

CHASE, LYNN E 8,913.60 

CHASE, LYNN E & TOMPKINS, RICHARD P 3,793.92 

CHEESMAN, CLAIRE 2,098.56 

CHENARD, ALFRED J 2,078.98 

CHERYL E CARRICK REV LIVING TRUST 15,687.36 

CHESTER E & SHIRLEY B HOMER REVOCABLE TR 9,288.00 

CHESTER E HOMER III REVOCABLE TRUST 600.96 

CHEW, WILLIAM B & MARGARET D 3,442.56 

CHEZ ROSA BISTRO 226.08 

CHICK, PAUL W & CATHY A 3,753.60 

CHICKS MARINA 78.43 

CHILTON, JANE E 2,582.40 

CHISHOLM, MARGARET H 28,027.20 

CHRISTO, JANICE 3,320.64 

CHRISTOPHER C MCMAHON TRUST 27,403.20 

CHRISTOPHER DIEBENKORN LIVING TRUST 7,290.24 

CHRISTOPHER, TYRONE L & ERIN N 3,585.60 

CHRISTOPHRER B ASPLUNDH GST TRUST 17,184.96 

CHRISTOS & HANNAH COTSAKOS TRUST 12,840.00 

CHRYSSE C. DOW REVOCABLE TRUST 3,225.60 

CHURCH LANE REALTY TRUST 3,146.88 

CHURCH ON THE CAPE TRUSTEES 2,443.20 

CHURCH, BRUCE 1,896.00 

CHURCHILL, NATALIE ABBOTT 8,271.36 

CIARAMETARO FAMILY TRUST 7,338.24 

CIARDELLO, JOANNE R 4,097.28 

CIARDELLO, JOANNE R & HENKE, LUCY L 554.88 

CICCONE, PATRICE M 1,650.24 

CIDERMILL PRESS BOOK PUBLISHER 69.79 

CIPRIANI, NICHOLAS A & LISA M 2,708.16 

CIRAOLO, ANTONINA MARIE 2,366.40 

CKM REALTY TRUST 1,216.32 

CKM REALTY TRUST 2,107.20 

CLANCY, JILL 1,579.20 

CLANCY, PATRICK E & MARY JANE 7,862.40 

CLARENCE T NELSON REVOCABLE TRUST 19,541.38 

CLARK A CRAWFORD DECLARATION OF TRUST 530.88 

CLARK IRREVOCABLE TRUST 2,377.54 

CLARK, CALEB J 732.48 

CLARK, ELIZABETH 6,359.04 

CLARK, ERIC A & MARIA BEAUDOIN 3,552.96 

CLARK, JEANNE Y 3,468.48 

C-LARK, LLC 16,024.32 
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CLARK, ROBERT G JR & ELAINE B 1,350.72 

CLARKE, DAVID & HACKETT, GAIL S 8,704.32 

CLASBY, MIRIAM LIFE TENANCY 4,684.80 

CLAUS, WILLIAM C 433.92 

CLAUS, WILLIAM C 4,982.40 

CLAWSON, LINDA L 4,969.92 

CLEAVES COVE TRUST 20,472.00 

CLEMENT, CYNTHIA 5,583.36 

CLIFTON & MARLENE RAUM REVOCABLE TRUST 3,890.88 

CLINTON REALTY TRUST 2,807.04 

CLINTON REALTY TRUST 5,628.48 

CLOCK FARM REALTY TRUST 1,053.12 

CLOCK FARM REALTY TRUST 1,321.92 

CLOCK FARM TRUST 4,973.76 

CLUFF FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST 1,834.56 

CLUFF, ARNOLD & DOROTHY ANN 1,331.52 

CLUFF, ARNOLD R 92.16 

CLUFF, ARNOLD R 816.00 

CLUFF, CRYSTAL LEE 1,391.04 

CLUFF, JAMES P 4,028.16 

CLUFF, JANET L 1,651.20 

CLUFF, MILDRED M 1,759.68 

CLUFF, TODD A & CHERILYNN L 1,932.48 

CLUFF, WILBUR JR 1,671.36 

CLUFF, WILBUR JR 2,952.96 

CMAYLO, MARK R & KATHRINE L 3,746.88 

COBURN, DONALD W JR 9,358.08 

COCA-COLA BOTTLING CO 211.20 

COCKFIELD, ELINOR M 4,264.90 

COFFIN, BENJAMIN W & STEPHANIE L 10,214.40 

COFFIN, CHRISTOPHER J & GERALDINE H 5,163.84 

COHEN, J SOLOMON & COFER, DORCAS H 6,014.40 

COHEN, LEE S 4,726.08 

COLBY, JUDITH RICE 6,622.08 

COLDRECK, HARRY IV & JULIETTE 3,583.68 

COLE REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 3,959.04 

COLE, DEBORAH M 1,689.60 

COLINET, CHRISTOPHE CC 2,636.16 

COLINET, SUSAN W 1,825.92 

COLLINS, KEVIN & PAULA REVOCABLE TRUST 2,949.12 

COLLINS, MONIQUE D 5,100.48 

COLLINS, ROBERT A & ADAMS, KATHLEEN M 2,434.56 

COLLINS, SUSAN A 2,556.48 

COLONIAL PHARMACY 35.71 

COLONY HOTEL 246.91 

COMEAU LIVING TRUST 1,384.32 

COMEAU LIVING TRUST 3,180.48 

COMEAU LIVING TRUST 4,249.54 

COMMONWEALTH COLLECTIVE, LLC 5,359.68 

COMPAGNA, TYLER N 1,073.28 

COMPLIMENTS 39.46 

CONATY, HELEN M & JEAN A 6,149.76 

CONDON, MICHAEL J 3,343.68 

CONIARIS, DEAN & ELLEN 2,213.76 

CONLEY, PETER & PAUL 3,263.04 

CONLEY, RONALD G & DEBORAH A 4,122.24 

CONNELLY, THOMAS H & CYNTHIA M 5,682.24 

CONNOLLY, EDWARD J 1,876.80 

CONNOLLY, JAMES G 1,185.60 

CONNOLLY, ROBERT C & KATHLEEN R 1,206.72 

CONNOR, THOMAS J. & MAZEIKA, ALYSSA K. 6,647.04 

CONNORS, JAMES P & SANDRA A 5,799.36 

CONNORS, PATRICK E 6,039.36 

CONRAD, ELIZABETH P & RICHARD J 4,104.96 

CONROD, BEVERLY E & SCOTT 5,849.28 

CONSOLIDATED COMM. OF NNE 10.37 

CONVERY FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST 4,308.48 

CONVERY, TIMOTHY M 2,019.84 

CONWAY, DAVID R & ALICE V 3,011.14 

COOK, CAROL G 2,642.88 

COOK, NANCY L 2,068.80 

COOK, RICHARD F JR 5,808.00 

COOK, TIMOTHY H 1,037.76 

COOKE, EUGENE L III 8,326.08 

COOPER, EBAN 11,334.72 

COOPER, GREGORY E & CHRISTOPHER E 5,280.00 

COOPERBERG, STEPHEN D 15,556.80 

COPP, RICHARD W JR & CAROLYN A 3,464.64 

COPPOLA FAMILY REALTY TRUST 15,377.28 

COPPOLA, JOHN FRANK SR & JOHN FRANK JR 1,627.20 

COPPOLA, JOHN JR 15,131.52 

CORELLE REALTY TRUST 12,101.76 

CORINNE C LONGO IRREVOCABLE TRUST 6,144.96 

CORRADO,  BERNADETTE A 3,105.60 

CORRIGAN, ED & KIM 106.18 

CORSIE, PAMELA & MICHAEL 2,818.18 

CORSIE, STACY A & MICHAEL S 3,728.64 

CORTEZ, ANNE 3,981.12 

COSTA COTTAGE, LLC 3,595.20 

COSTA, ALLEGRA 10,786.56 

COSTELLO, ELIZABETH B & BRETT E 2,643.84 

COSTELLO, NICHOLAS J & SAMANTHA A 2,142.72 

COTTER LIVING TRUST 5,142.72 

COTTER, SHANNON M 1,965.12 

COTTMAN, CLARENCE III & CARON F 17,318.40 

COUTURE, STEPHEN & VIOLETTE, SUSAN 4,601.28 

COVEL, WILLIAM P 2,894.98 

COVENTRY EAGLE, LLC 4,329.60 

COVERT, JODY W 11,875.20 

COVESIDE RESORT, LLC 19,074.24 

COX, KATHLEEN A 2,696.64 

COX, KAY H 15,306.24 

COX, KELLY A 6,273.60 

COYNE, JOHN E & ROBIN A 7,105.92 

CP VILLAGE, LLC 2,825.28 

CRANDALL, DAVID J & CONSTANCE M 3,703.68 

CRAVINGS, LLC 3,115.20 

CRAWFORD, LORI & BRIAN 3,108.48 

CREAMER, STEPHEN P & LINDA M 5,285.76 

CREDIT SHELTER TRUST 4,960.90 

127



CROW, CHARLES E & ELAINE M ET AL 2,586.24 

CROW, ELAINE MARY & DIANA ET AL 1,410.24 

CROWLEY, LISA M. REVOCABLE TRUST 3,163.20 

CROWLEY, ROBERT E 155.52 

CROWTHER, DAVID J & DULCIE K 2,029.44 

CUCCHIARA, VINCENT  D 6,788.16 

CUCCHIARA, VINCENT D & FRANCES L 9,995.52 

CUCCHIARA, VINCENT D & FRANCES L 35,404.80 

CULLEN, DIANE B 11,387.52 

CULOT, LOUIS J JR & MACK, CHELSEA M 5,885.76 

CUMMINGS, KELLI M 2,185.92 

CUMMINGS, WILLIAM M 1,104.96 

CUMMINGS, WILLIAM M 3,735.36 

CUMMISKEY, ADAM J 3,727.68 

CUNNIFF, JM JR & ELIZABETH E 2,526.72 

CUP AND SAUCER, LLC 12,694.08 

CURLEY, BRIAN J & SAVAGE, CHRISTINE M 4,930.56 

CURRAN, KEVIN R & PRUDENCE M 6,422.40 

CURRTELLI MAINE FAMILY TRUST 4,632.96 

CURRY, HELEN A 3,425.28 

CURTIS & MOON IRREVOCABLE TRUST 4,340.16 

CURTIS REALTY TRUST 5,446.08 

CURTIS, ANDREW 1,172.16 

CUSKLEY, COLIN & JONES, SARAH E 8,876.16 

CUTONE, ROBERT & FORSMAN, JENNIFER ANN 3,440.64 

CYNTHIA A JOYCE REVOCABLE TRUST 2,981.76 

CYNTHIA L HOPKINS TRUST 3,408.00 

CYR, HEATHER 3,504.00 

D MICHAEL WESTON TRUST 11,924.16 

DAGGETT, ALLEN A  & WANDA L 1,055.04 

DAGGETT, ALLEN A & WANDA L 90.24 

DAGGETT, ALLEN A & WANDA L 3,778.56 

DAGGETT, JOHN R 1,431.36 

DAGGETT, JOHN R & WANDA C 3,546.24 

DAHER, KENNETH E & MARY ELIZABETH 10,278.72 

DAHLSTEDT, JACQUES R & STACY A 5,365.44 

DAILY, ROSE & FRANK 521.95 

DAKERS, DANA O & BELIK, BARBARA I 3,562.56 

DAKERS, HUGH B JR & WOGAN, KAREN L 3,698.88 

DAKERS, TREVOR L & LINDSAY A 916.80 

DAKIN, MICHAEL N & MAKA, ANNE E 12,155.52 

DALEY, CYNTHIA C 21,327.36 

DAMADU USA LTD 3,386.88 

DANE, STEPHEN T & PATRICIA W 2,316.48 

DANFORTH, TOBIAS F 4,331.52 

DANIEL N COOKE TRUST INSTRUMENT 3,497.28 

DANIEL, JENNIFER M 2,544.00 

DANIS, GEORGE C & MARILYN Y 2,863.68 

DANT, JEFFREY 2,254.08 

DARDIA, JANET L 3,426.82 

DASCOULIAS REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 3,099.84 

DASKA HOLDINGS LLC 900.48 

DATZENKO, DARISE 1,880.64 

DAVID & MARY E  JONES FAMILY TRUST 2,552.64 

DAVID C KRIEG LIVING TRUST 9,967.68 

DAVIS, BLAKESLEE G 3,968.64 

DAVIS, CHARLENE D 2,143.68 

DAVIS, CHRISTOPHER T & GAIL 2,885.76 

DAVIS, DEBORAH D 4,996.80 

DAVIS, JEFFREY S & PAMELA A 2,552.64 

DAVIS, KIRK W & SHELLY D 777.60 

DAVIS, KIRK W & SHELLY D 915.84 

DAVIS, MICHELLE K 4,950.72 

DAVIS, RICHARD A & SHERYL D 6,647.04 

DAVIS, ROBERT E & DEBORAH D 10,285.44 

DAWS, KENNA 3,859.20 

DAY LIVING TRUST 3,205.44 

DAY, MICHAEL M 1,602.24 

DAY, MICHAEL M & PHILLIPS-DAY, CHERYL A 1,162.56 

DAYDREAMER NOMINEE TRUST 2,880.00 

DAYTRIP SOCIETY, LLC 117.12 

DEANGELIS, JOSEPH & VIRGINIA TRUSTEES 8,514.24 

DEBENEDICTIS, TERESA 7,115.52 

DEBENEDICTS, LAURA 2,058.24 

DEBORAH L JANTZEN TRUST 9,842.88 

DECHIAZZA, JOSEPH P & VICKI F 3,313.92 

DEFEUDIS, GENE J 24,095.04 

DEFILIPP, CHRISTINA ANN 2,208.00 

DELAGE, NORMAN 1,420.80 

DELANCEY-KAY REVOCABLE TRUST 3,572.16 

DELANEY, CASEY & ROBERT M 5,463.36 

DELANEY, PETER & SUSAN 4,075.20 

DELHOME, ROBERT 14,266.56 

DELONG, WENDY 2,098.56 

DEMARRE, JAMES P & CHERYL B 5,266.56 

DEMARRE, KATHLEEN A 5,160.96 

DEMARRE, ROBERT A 3,039.36 

DEMPSEY, ELLEN K 4,894.08 

DEMPSEY, JANE ELIZABETH 3,874.56 

DENNIS, ROBERT & MARJORIE TRUSTEES 9,533.76 

DENOFA, JR, ERNEST 3,193.92 

DENOIA, MARC 2,980.80 

DEPREZ, PETER G SR & PAMELA J 11,111.04 

DEREK A WITTNER REVOCABLE TRUST 5,121.60 

DEROSIER, ELAINE 406.94 

DERSHAM, CHARMAINE C & GEORGE H 1,721.28 

DESALVIO, DONALD R & KRAMER, JODI L 2,823.36 

DESANTIS, PATRICK L & MARGARET A 4,925.38 

DESCHENES, JANET D 14,604.48 

DESCHENES-MARLEY, DENISE M 5,364.48 

DESIMONE, DAVID S & MORDA, GINA C 798.72 

DESROCHERS, LEE P & DELPHINE R 2,406.72 

DETESO, PETER W 2,149.44 

DEVAUL, WILLIAM D 2,152.32 

DEVEAU, JOSEPH E & RENDICH, KATHLEEN 4,261.44 

DEVINE, DOROTHY F 3,899.52 

DEVITA, JAMES T 824.64 

DEVORONINE, PHYLLIS J & BERNARD J 4,297.92 

DEXTER, GEORGE O III & ELLEN 3,831.36 

DIANNE J BOURQUE REVOCABLE TRUST 2,842.56 
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DICESARE, HELENE F 4,992.00 

DICKINSON, JOHN 762.24 

DICKINSON, JOHN 1,023.36 

DICKINSON, JOHN 1,239.36 

DICKSON, DAVID M JR & AMELIA D 16,852.80 

DICOSTANZO, JERANE 14,722.56 

DIGESER, NANCY J 7,259.52 

DIGNAN ZUICHES FAMILY TRUST 5,046.72 

DIGNAN ZUICHES FAMILY TRUST 15,124.80 

DIGREGORIO, MICHAEL E & DIANNA L 2,862.72 

DILLON, ROBERT E & JOANNA C 4,896.96 

DINARDO, ANGELO & JEANNE 6,347.52 

DINARDO, GREGG W & ALLISON A 5,655.36 

DINYARI, SARA C 2,882.88 

DIPIETRO, PAUL & ELEANOR 3,179.52 

DIPIETRO-POGGIOGALLE REVOCABLE TRUST 30,628.80 

DIRECT TV LLC 64.90 

DISH NETWORK LLC 15.17 

DITTAMI REALTY TRUST 1,131.84 

DMV INVESTMENT PROPERTIES, LLC 2,057.28 

DOAN, LIANNA M 1,117.44 

DOCK SQUARE CLOTHIER 44.16 

DOCK SQUARE COFFEE HOUSE 105.79 

DODD, SARA T & GREEN, NANCY A 5,810.88 

DOE, STEPHEN G & ANN K 2,834.88 

DOHERTY, LEITH C & SCOTT C 646.08 

DOLAN, EDWARD C & SUSAN K 6,094.08 

DOLAN, EDWARD C & SUSAN K 10,147.20 

DOLBEARE, LORRAINE A 5,860.80 

DOLINSKY, GARY N & ANNE E 1,863.36 

DOMBROWSKI, GREGORY & AMY 2,082.24 

DOMIJAN-BRINDLE, NANCY C 2,971.20 

DOMINE, ROBERT M & CYNTHIA H 689.28 

DOMINE, ROBERT M & CYNTHIA H 9,253.44 

DONAGHY, MICHAEL RS & VICTORIA L 6,059.14 

DONAHUE, JAMES A 5,260.80 

DONAHUE, ROBERT E & GAYLE M 6,545.28 

DONESKI, DAVID J & SANDRA D 3,533.76 

DONNA B THOMPSON REVOC TRUST 15,957.12 

DONNA K LENCKI REVOCABLE TRUST 1,020.48 

DONNA K LENCKI REVOCABLE TRUST 1,328.64 

DONNA K LENCKI REVOCABLE TRUST 7,685.76 

DONNA K LENCKI REVOCABLE TRUST 9,275.52 

DONNA M TRUDO REVOCABLE TRUST 3,636.48 

DONOVAN BRENDAN R & MARION L 10,121.28 

DONOVAN FAMILY LIVING TRUST 4,330.56 

DONOVAN, LUCILLE 2,664.96 

DORAN, PAUL R & DENISE R TRUSTEES 5,531.52 

DORAN, WILLIAM M & SUSAN L 14,119.68 

DORMAN, SHARON L & TURNER, HERMAN E JR 3,766.08 

DOROTHY LEWIS, LLC 3,373.44 

DOROTHY SOLA LIVING TRUST 4,451.52 

DORRANCE, LLC 9,527.04 

DOTY, ELIZABETH A 2,118.34 

DOUGHERTY, KEVIN S & O'DONNELL, ELISA A 5,108.16 

DOUGHTY, JAY & LORI 1,208.64 

DOUGHTY, JAY & LORI 2,534.40 

DOUGLAS & JANET DICEY IRREVOC TRUST 2,069.76 

DOVETAIL PROPERTIES, LLC 8,831.04 

DOW FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 10,313.28 

DOW, CARL 849.60 

DOW, CARL 1,729.92 

DOW, GEORGE F 1,061.76 

DOW, GEORGE F 2,783.04 

DOW, KIM 1,130.88 

DOW, PATRICIA J 1,338.24 

DOWD, MICHAEL R & TRACI C 3,255.36 

DOWLING, JESSE W & JENNIFER 5,357.76 

DOWLING, ROBERT M & LESLIE B 10,105.92 

DOWNEY, JOHN R & CHRISTINE M 3,056.64 

DOWNS, EVA M 4,751.62 

DOYLE, GREGORY & ANN MARIE 1,563.84 

DOYLE, JOHN  P 2,755.20 

DOYLE, JOHN R & PATRICIA A 5,961.60 

DOYON, ERICA & GUY 5,864.64 

DRAGHETTI, MATTHEW J & MICHELLE L 4,768.32 

DRAGHI, JOHN MARK & CASSIDY, KATHLEEN A 5,406.72 

DRAKE, JOHN D & DELIA R 4,996.80 

DRALEAU, STEVEN L & GILLIAN A 4,056.00 

DREW, GIA ALEXANDRA 2,792.64 

DRIES, LISA M H 72.96 

DRIES, RICHARD E & VIRGINIA A 756.48 

DRIES, WILLIAM & LISA M H 6,350.40 

DRIGOTAS, ETHAN 2,705.28 

DRINON, JUDITH 3,187.20 

DRISCOLL, SEAN & FREDO, GREGORY 1,833.60 

DRISCOLL, SEAN & FREDO, GREGORY 3,593.28 

DRIVER REAL ESTATE TRUST 6,011.52 

DROMGOOLE, JOHN & CAROL ANN 2,976.96 

DROZDAL, PAULA L 3,870.72 

DRPT FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 7,148.16 

DUBAY, ADAM & JENNIFER 5,149.44 

DUBEY, ANNE M 1,428.48 

DUCHEMIN, JEFFREY 3,977.28 

DUCHEMIN, JEFFREY A 1,747.20 

DUCHEMIN, PAUL & JOANNE 1,484.16 

DUCKETT, MATTHEW & ELISABETH 10,484.16 

DUFFIELD, JAMES E III & SUZANNE E 1,202.88 

DUFFY, TAYLOR & MEGAN 4,970.88 

DUFFY, TAYLOR & MEGAN 7,422.72 

DUFOE, APRIL R 6,820.80 

DUFOSSE, RICHARD F & PATRICIA B 3,169.92 

DUGAN LIVING TRUST 5,661.12 

DULEY, BRIGITTE I 2,921.28 

DUNCAN, JANE E 2,281.92 

DUNLAY, MICHAEL  J 8,015.04 

DUPRAS, ARLENE STIRK TRUSTEE 6,179.52 

DURHAM, EARLE L & ANN R 1,694.40 

DURKIN, WILLIAM & DONNA 2,715.84 

DURRELL, PHILIP F & LOUISE A 1,892.16 
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DUSSAULT, JAMES R & CYNTHIA A 3,022.08 

DWIGHT-SPANG, LOUISE J 792.96 

DWORKIN, GERALD M & DONNA J 1,727.04 

DWYER, ROBERT & SABADIE, FRANCISCA A 6,756.48 

DWYER, WALTER T & TERRI L 6,572.16 

DYDOWICZ, KATHRYN A 2,580.48 

DYER, KERRY F & PATTI J 6,668.16 

DYER, MATTHEW 2,728.32 

DYKSTRA, JON & CONSTANCE 4,640.64 

DYNIA, DIANE W 3,119.04 

EAGLESON, JON 7,789.06 

EARLE ENTERPRISES, LLC 7,520.64 

EASTWOOD FAMILY RESIDENCE TRUST 14,894.40 

EATON, DAVID & SCULLY-EATON, JENNIFER 15,056.64 

EATON, DEBORAH H & EUGENE P 2,303.04 

EATON, GARY 1,080.96 

EATON, GARY D & SCOTT D 3,879.36 

EATON, SCOTT D 3,204.48 

EATON, SCOTT D & KATHLEENE O 106.56 

ECKE, RICHARD  A 5,941.44 

EDDLESTON, GRAHAM & LAURA 9,067.20 

EDELHOCH, MARILYN J & RITCHIE, HANNAH E 2,694.72 

EDGEWOOD 16 REALTY TRUST 8,016.96 

EDGEWOOD AVENUE NOMINEE TRUST 4,399.68 

EDITH HG MCCONNELL REVOCABLE TRUST 8,986.56 

EDMANDS, PETER L & CLARK-EDMANDS, SHEILA 72.00 

EDMOND & BONITA DOYLE REVOCABLE LIVING T 2,155.20 

EDWARD A TONELLO LIVING TRUST 198.72 

EDWARD B SHIBLE CREDIT SHELTER TRUST 6,097.92 

EGLINTON, DAVID G & METTE A 7,801.92 

EID, TAREK & JESSICA N 8,491.20 

EILEEN BARRETT PROPERTY TRUST 39,441.60 

EILEEN HEATHER CHISHOLM LIVING TRUST 7,497.60 

EISELEN, THEODORE W & LOUISE 65.28 

EISELEN, THEODORE W & LOUISE 2,256.00 

EISING, PETER A & SUSANNE 6,432.00 

ELAINE D MURPHY REVOCABLE TRUST 2,209.92 

ELAINE D MURPHY REVOCABLE TRUST 2,244.48 

ELDRIDGE,III, JOHN S 3,154.56 

ELEVEN HALCYON WAY, LLC 1,724.16 

ELEVEN HALCYON WAY, LLC 21,377.28 

ELICKER, JOAN C TRUSTEE 14,254.08 

ELIZABETH A MITCHELL REVOCABLE TRUST 2,643.84 

ELIZABETH I AMES-FITZGERALD REVOCABLE TR 3,985.54 

ELIZABETH S NAPLES REVOCABLE TRUST 6,931.20 

ELIZABETH S RUSSELL REV. TRUST 6,765.12 

ELIZABETH S WASSELL LIVING TRUST 2,983.68 

ELKINGTON, CHRISTIAN M & CAROL-LEE 3,798.72 

ELLIOT J SIDERIDES REVOCABLE TRUST 36,447.36 

ELLIS, ALEXANDER III & ROBIN R 1,270.08 

ELLIS, ALEXANDER III & ROBIN R 3,717.12 

ELLIS, ANN W 6,774.72 

ELLIS, BRIAN M & MENDEZ-ELLIS, DINORAH M 3,360.96 

ELLIS, CHRISTOPHER & SHANNON 9,742.08 

ELLIS, NATHAN M REVOCABLE TRUST 7,737.60 

ELMORE, CHARLOTTE & O'QUINN, LISA 1,466.88 

ELSA H QUINN IRREVOCABLE TRUST 3,223.68 

ELY, JOHN C & ANGELICA C 7,156.80 

EMANOUIL, JOHN T 3,408.96 

EMERY & STAPLES COTTAGES, LLC 12,237.12 

EMERY & STAPLES COTTAGES, LLC 12,370.56 

EMERY, DAVID J, TRUSTEE 3,689.28 

EMERY, GEORGE W & PATRICIA K 4,684.42 

EMILY COOPER REVOCABLE TRUST 21,481.92 

EMMAS REALTY TRUST 8,369.28 

EMMERT, ROBERT Y & JOSEPHINE A 10,772.16 

EMMONS CLOCK FARM TRUST 1,261.44 

EMMONS FAMILY REALTY TRUST 7,261.44 

EMMONS FISHERIES, LLC 1,257.60 

EMMONS, BARBARA A & TARR, DONALD P 2,902.08 

EMMONS, BETTY 2,202.24 

EMMONS, BONNIE A 10,209.60 

EMMONS, BONNIE A & JOHN H 8,144.64 

EMMONS, ERIC & AMY L 2,475.84 

EMMONS, GEORGE H & MARY L TRUSTEES 946.56 

EMMONS, GEORGE H & MARY L TRUSTEES 1,047.36 

EMMONS, GROSVENOR B HEIRS 102.72 

EMMONS, JOHN H., JR 1,094.40 

EMMONS, MICHAEL P 2,682.24 

EMMONS, PAUL & JOAN K 2,461.44 

EMMONS, WENDY 2,148.48 

ENGBORG, ALAN R 1,839.36 

ENGESSER, STEWART A 3,769.92 

ENOCH, MATTHEW S & DONNA C 6,683.52 

EPPINGER, MATTHEW F & LEIGH 3,752.64 

EPSTEIN, REBECCA W 9,408.00 

EQUITY TRUST COMPANY CUSTODIAN 3,655.68 

ERAKLIS, KATHERINE S 20,710.08 

ERB, RYAN A & AMANDA J 2,533.44 

ERIN R. CAMPBELL REVOCABLE TRUST 4,897.92 

ERLICH, JASON & DEBORAH 3,758.40 

ESCH, STEVEN & JULIE 3,192.96 

ESJH, LLC 2,459.52 

ESKANDER, MEGAN N & MARK S 15,638.40 

ESONIS, MEREDITH A & ALEK G 3,838.08 

ESSER, JOHN P & LINDA 6,800.26 

ESSER, PAIGE 2,418.24 

EUNICE M KELLEY LIVING TRUST 9,308.16 

EVANS, WILLIAM B & THERESE N 5,893.44 

EVELYN, ALLAN J & JANE W 6,361.54 

F HAROLD KUSHNER MD LIVING TRUST 8,303.04 

FAESSLER, WILLY A & JANICE M 5,370.24 

FAIELLA FOODS, LLC 5,772.48 

FAIELLA, JAMES & CHRISTINE 5,005.44 

FAIRBANKS, ROBERT D & MARIE L 2,440.32 

FAIRCHILD, ROBERT B & DIANA M 2,532.48 

FAIRFIELD, AMY L 3,574.08 

FANTON, ROMA F 3,979.20 

FARNDELL IRREVOCABLE TRUST 4,044.10 

FARNELL-DUNEGAN REVOCABLE TRUST 2,028.48 
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FARNHAM, ELIZABETH & PAUL C 2,297.28 

FARRELL ISLAND, LLC 1,793.28 

FARRELL, NANCY 1,221.12 

FARRELL, THOMAS J 5,667.84 

FARROW, JASON & LAUREN C 3,437.76 

FATSI, MICHELLE M & TIMOTHY J 2,184.96 

FAULKNER, BRUCE & JESSICA 498.43 

FAULKNER, JAMES M & NANCY J 719.04 

FECKO, JEFFREY M & STEPHANIE A 6,639.36 

FEDERMAN, FRANK & LINDA 4,679.04 

FEEHAN, ET AL 122.88 

FEEHAN, JOHN DAVID & KATHRYN 6,048.00 

FEHNEL, DAVID J & GABRIEL, ANDREA 8,595.84 

FELDMAN, MARC D & KING, MAUREEN 3,168.96 

FELICIA A DUPLER TRUST 31,651.20 

FELTON, BRANDON R 1,728.96 

FENN, SETH & LANGSHAW-SIMON, REBECCA 2,446.08 

FENNELL, DAVID C 3,025.92 

FERNANDEZ, RUTH S 1,380.48 

FERNANDEZ, RUTH S 1,581.12 

FERNANDEZ, RUTH S 6,098.88 

FERRARA, ROBERT & DEENA 1,206.72 

FERRARA, THOMAS G & PHILOMENA R 4,115.52 

FERRARA, THOMAS G & PHILOMENA R 17,195.52 

FERRIS, MICHAEL 924.48 

FERRIS, MICHAEL 1,410.24 

FESSENDEN, WENDELL WAYNE II 9,456.00 

FIA FIA 36.96 

FICARRA, JAMES & BOONE-FICARRA, VIRGINIA 1,455.36 

FICARRA, JAMES & BOONE-FICARRA, VIRGINIA 4,272.96 

FICK, SUSAN K 1,776.96 

FIELD, ANN C 5,173.44 

FIELD, JOSEPH T 2,229.12 

FIELD, JOSEPH T & WARD, JEANINE A 3,852.48 

FIJAL, ALAN A 1,206.72 

FILTEAU, TIMOTHY J & SANDRA A 1,184.64 

FINE, PHILIP E & BAZELMANS, GENEVIEVE 2,032.32 

FINEMAN, STANLEY J 8,817.60 

FINKENBINDER, DAVID O & MARY R 4,807.68 

FINNEGAN, JUDITH 6,014.02 

FINNERAL, CHRISTOPHER 18,416.64 

FIORELLI, TRACEY E & MICHAEL K 1,828.80 

FIORELLI, TRACEY E & MICHAEL K 2,864.64 

FIORENTINO, JACQUELINE 2,652.48 

FIRTH IRREVOCABLE TRUST 895.68 

FIRTH IRREVOCABLE TRUST 1,781.76 

FISCHER, PAUL & KIRSTEN 474.24 

FISHING POLE LANE, LLC 654.72 

FISHING POLE LANE, LLC 28,920.00 

FISHING POLE LANE, LLC 54,063.36 

FITZGERALD, MICHAEL J III & MARILYN A 8,379.84 

FITZPATRICK, EDWARD F & JUNE 3,926.40 

FITZPATRICK, JAMES L & ELIZABETH M 3,048.96 

FITZPATRICK, JAN S 12,218.88 

FITZPATRICK, MICHAEL G & JANICE A 1,200.00 

FITZPATRICK, RUTH 5,536.32 

FIVE CENTS, LLC 15,996.48 

FIVE GRIER ROAD TRUST 13,677.12 

FIVE MILLS ROAD, LLC 2,898.24 

FIVE SUNSET LANE REALTY TRUST 5,976.00 

FLAGG, ALYSSA M & TRAVIS W 2,840.64 

FLANAGAN, MARTIN R & MARINA S 2,612.16 

FLAVIN LIVING TRUST 3,428.16 

FLAVIN-CASEY, CATHERINE TRUSTEE 4,416.00 

FLEAGLE, MICHELLE A & JOSEPH 1,881.60 

FLETCHER, WARNER S & MARY F 28,126.08 

FLEURY, PASCAL & KIRSTEN 1,177.92 

FLINT, LINDA & FLINT-HOOKER, ELIZABETH 3,024.00 

FLORA J. JORDAN REVOCABLE TRUST 3,921.60 

FLORENTINE CORPORATION 3,144.96 

FLYNN, EDWARD T 3,700.80 

FLYNN, SEAN M & AMY S 9,532.80 

FLYNN, SIMON A JR ET AL 14,831.04 

FOEHL, C ALLEN 4,512.00 

FOLEY, ELIZABETH J 3,614.40 

FOLEY, MICHAEL D & ANNE H 5,774.40 

FOLEY, THOMAS J & MARYELLEN 2,667.46 

FONTAINE, RENE M & LORI A 3,562.56 

FORBES, EDWARD K & MARTHA P 6,099.84 

FORD, ALEXANDRE 4,213.44 

FORMAN, JOEL M 2,100.48 

FORREST, WILLIAM D & JULIAN, NANCIE M 14,863.68 

FORRESTAL, KATHLEEN & LITOWITZ, DOUGLAS 2,715.84 

FORTIN, BLAINE & TRACY 2,364.48 

FORTIN, BLAINE & TRACY E 4,038.72 

FOUR GRANDVIEW, LLC 11,586.24 

FRACASSA, CHRISTOPHER M & JENNIFER M 6,183.36 

FRANCIS, EDWARD C & AMY V 6,474.24 

FRANCOEUR, DOLORES 75.46 

FRANCOEUR, JUDY M 1,581.12 

FRANCOEUR, RICHARD L & OKEEMA L 2,366.40 

FRANCOEUR, ROBERT E 2,591.04 

FRANCOEUR, RONALD P & DAWN M 2,767.68 

FRANCOEUR, RONALD P JR 4,123.20 

FRANCOEUR, TYLER R 3,411.84 

FRANK, JOSEPH & GIKNIS, MARY 5,001.60 

FRANZ FAMILY KPT IRREVOCABLE TRUST 3,360.00 

FRASER, DOROTHY S 5,685.70 

FRASER, ELAINE B 1,591.68 

FRAWLEY, ANDREW & JULIANNE 20,710.08 

FRECHETTE, CARL P & LOUISE 2,088.96 

FREDERICK & DONNA TRUDO TRUSTS 3,088.32 

FREDERICK C KAEMMER REVOCABLE TRUST 4,477.44 

FREDERICK G TRUDO REVOCABLE TRUST 4,130.88 

FREDERICK G TRUDO REVOCABLE TRUST 8,959.68 

FREDERICK G WAHTERA REVOC TRUST 4,264.32 

FREDERICK L FOX TRUST 1,833.60 

FREDERICK L. HAYNES REVOC TRUST 194.88 

FREDERICK, SR, CHRISTOPHER L 38,401.92 

FRENCH, RONALD G & JODI B 7,854.72 
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FRENCH, RONALD G & JODI B 11,256.00 

FREUD, CYNTHIA P 5,596.80 

FRIED, MARTHA 4,043.52 

FRIEDMAN, MICHAEL M & TATYANA 5,640.00 

FRIEDPORTE LIVING TRUST 6,884.16 

FRIEND, MATHEW 451.10 

FRIES, THOMAS A & JENNIFER 3,363.84 

FRINK, PETER H 2,850.24 

FRIOT, CHRISTOPHER & JANET 2,232.96 

FRISCHER, HARRY & DEBRA K 6,780.48 

FROEHLICH, DENISE 3,064.32 

FUHRMANN, CALVIN & DENISE 4,632.96 

FULFORD, RAVEN R & JONATHAN M 5,409.60 

FUSCO, JOHN & ROBIN L 3,737.28 

FUSCO, LINDA 2,324.16 

G WILLIAM III & CAROL N ELLIS REV TRUST 5,976.00 

G WILLIAM III & CAROL N ELLIS REV TRUST 12,028.80 

GABLE, CHRISTOPHER & JAMIE L 3,420.48 

GABRIELE, RICHARD P TRUSTEE 6,012.48 

GABRIELIAN, KEVIN & MICHELLE 2,322.24 

GADBOIS, ROGER U 2,178.24 

GAETA, CHERYL & GUIOD, DIANE 449.38 

GAFNER, STEFAN & BERGERON, CHANTAL 2,762.88 

GAGNON TRUST 4,794.24 

GAGNON, GEORGE A & DEBORAH B 3,235.20 

GAGNON, JACQUES L JR 2,816.64 

GAIL DANCKERT REVOCABLE TRUST 7,419.84 

GAL FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 6,171.84 

GALEAZZI, THOMAS J & LYNDA J 2,058.24 

GALLAGHER, DAVID W 2,130.24 

GALLAGHER, MARK C & JENNIFER M 3,987.84 

GALLAGHER, MICHAEL W & LINDA R 8,514.24 

GALLANT FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 2,929.92 

GALLANT, JOHN  O 13,458.24 

GALLIGAN, THOMAS J III & ANN C 7,128.96 

GANGER, NANCY L & WARD L 3,434.88 

GANNON, STEPHEN D & BARBARA 3,141.12 

GANO, RHETT W 6,502.08 

GARDINIER, NANCY J 3,227.52 

GAROTTA, CHRISTIAN 3,793.92 

GARRETT, BRUCE W & BONNIE 4,128.00 

GARY A KOCH REVOCABLE TRUST 45,112.32 

GASINK, DONALD J 1,091.52 

GASINK, NANCY C 8,318.40 

GAUTHIER, CHRISTOPHER P & KRISTEN L 5,497.92 

GAYA, LLC 2,354.88 

GAYA, LLC 5,804.16 

GAYNOR, WILLIAM J & AMY 4,338.24 

GEARY, CHRISTINE & LIND, RICHARD J 7,137.60 

GENEST, CHRISTOPHER R & GWEN R 4,275.84 

GENTSCH, LUCILLE 2,606.40 

GEORGE A VICENZI TRUST 1,416.96 

GEORGE A VICENZI TRUST 7,533.12 

GEORGE P FLECTHER REVOC TRUST 3,198.72 

GEORGE, CRAIG L & KATHLEEN F 4,648.32 

GEORGES, STEPHEN & PATRICIA 4,152.96 

GEORGITIS, JAMES W 51.84 

GEORGITIS, JAMES W 5,457.60 

GERACE FAMILY REALTY TRUST 5,124.48 

GERALD E & MARILYN B FORD TRUST 6,551.04 

GERALD J. LUSSIER TRUST 7,865.28 

GERALD S MORRILL SURVIVORS TRUST 92.16 

GERALD S MORRILL SURVIVORS TRUST 110.40 

GERALD S MORRILL SURVIVORS TRUST 139.20 

GERBER FAMILY IRREVOCABLE RE TRUST 2,879.04 

GERE, NICHOLAS D & TRACI L 5,393.28 

GERGES SAMIR B & MALAK M 11,734.08 

GERRISH,  JULE 429.12 

GERRISH,  JULE 14,979.84 

GERRY, SCOTT & MARGARET 2,013.12 

GERVAIS, STEPHEN L & ALISON L 3,619.20 

GESING, RAND W & HEATHER H 3,406.08 

GESING, RAND W & SUSAN D 4,105.92 

GHAYOUR, BABAK & ANNE P 28,200.00 

GIACOBBE, MARGARET 2,313.60 

GIFFEN, GARY D 6,327.36 

GIFFORD, JOYCE & GEORGE 10,939.20 

GIGGEY, PAUL 2,380.80 

GIKNIS, MARY L 1,674.24 

GILBERT, THOMAS J & JANE E 6,746.88 

GILES, LAWRENCE W 3,324.48 

GILLESPIE, JANE TRUST 2,688.96 

GILLIS, KEVIN C 7,947.84 

GILLMORE, ALAN H & MAUREEN L 3,243.84 

GILMAN, RICHARD L & JUDITH ANN 6,161.28 

GIOBBIE, ALBERT E 3,658.56 

GLAUZ-TODRANK, STEPHEN 163.20 

GLAUZ-TODRANK, STEPHEN K 8,924.16 

GLAVIN, FRANCIS J & MARY 8,598.72 

GLAVIN, JULIE S 3,402.24 

GLICKMAN, THEO & SNYDER, STEVEN 3,146.88 

GLOBEVEST CAPTIAL REAL ESTATE 16,156.80 

GLODE, JAMES M & BRENDA L 4,780.80 

GOEDECKE, WILLIAM S & JANET C 1.92 

GOGOS, SUSAN V 942.72 

GOGOS, SUSAN V 4,361.28 

GOLDENFARB, BARBARA J & HOWARD A 29,352.96 

GOLDENFARB, HOWARD A 6,092.16 

GOLDSTEIN, LARRY & MICHELMAN, BONNIE 6,868.80 

GOLINI, DONALD J & KATHLEEN E 1,604.16 

GOLINI, DONALD J & KATHLEEN E 5,258.88 

GOMEZ, JEANNE 3,280.32 

GOMEZ, ROBERT & CYNTHIA 3,878.40 

GONNELLA, LISA C & ANTHONY J 3,353.28 

GONNEVILLE, MAURICE G & PRISCILLA J 2,861.76 

GOOD FAMILY TRUST 3,258.24 

GOOD, TIMOTHY H & WENDY 853.44 

GOODMAN, MARY L & LAVOIE, ROGER J 1,853.76 

Goodrich, Corinne 3,260.74 

GOODWIN, KAREN A 2,512.32 
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GOOSE ROCKS BEACH ASSOCIATION 91.20 

GOOSE ROCKS BEACH ASSOCIATION 358.08 

GOOSE ROCKS BEACH ASSOCIATION 4,531.20 

GOOSE ROCKS BEACH GENERAL STOR 67.10 

GOOSE ROCKS BEACH HOLDINGS, LLC 7,542.72 

GOOSE ROCKS BEACH HOLDINGS, LLC 8,551.68 

GOOSE ROCKS BEACH HOLDINGS, LLC 16,541.76 

GOOSE ROCKS BEACH, LLC 14,970.24 

GOOSE ROCKS DAIRY 178.46 

GOOSE ROCKS REALTY TRUST 6,561.60 

GORDON FAMILY HOME PLACE, LLC 6,892.80 

GORDON, DEBORAH L 1,988.16 

GORDON, ROBERT A & CATHY M 5,731.20 

GORDON, SHANNON C 2,539.20 

GORNY, ERIC 15,713.28 

GOSSELIN, RAYMOND M & ELIZABETH M 12,550.08 

GOTT, JAKE E & SARA B 5,270.40 

GOWER, III, THOMAS W 3,602.88 

GRACE GROUP, LLC 1,794.24 

GRADY, E RUSSELL JR & JULIE 3,433.92 

GRAHAM FAMILY TRUST 2012 3,222.34 

GRAHAM, DAVID J & DEBRA B 2,386.56 

GRAHAM, DAVID J & DEBRA B 4,087.68 

GRAHAM, JAY R & GALLAGHER, MAUREEN 3,616.32 

GRAHAM, KELLY & SCOTT, ANDREW 9,318.72 

GRAHAM, MARY ANN 3,093.12 

GRAMLING, ALEX D 2,664.00 

GRANETZ, MARC D & KRISTINE K 40,509.12 

GRANT, ELIZABETH 4,642.18 

GRANT, JUSTIN & ERIKA 2,556.48 

GRASSEY, AMY 3,293.76 

GRASSI, DAVID J P & MEGAN R 2,828.16 

GRAY FAMILY TRUST 5,017.92 

GRAY GOOSE ROCKS BEACH LLC 564.48 

GRAY GOOSE ROCKS BEACH LLC 15,590.40 

GRAY, CAROL RUTH 83.52 

GRAY, CAROL RUTH 1,692.48 

GRAY, PETER L 1,251.84 

GRAYDON HOLDINGS, LLC 3,361.92 

GRAYDON, NOEL B & REGINA S 6,789.12 

GRAYHAWK LEASING LLC 221.28 

GRAYLING, LLC 8,609.28 

GRAYLING, LLC 22,382.40 

GRB, LLC 15,316.80 

GRBKB PROPERTIES, LLC 9,005.76 

GREAT AMERICA FINANCIAL SERVS 19.39 

GRECO, CAROL ANNE & DOUGLAS ALAN 1,763.52 

GREELEY, LISA M 3,467.52 

GREEN MARINE CORP 14.59 

GREEN MARINE CORPORATION 1,037.76 

GREEN, FRANK T 5,443.20 

GREEN, SANDRA ANN & LIBBY, ROBERT TRSTEE 3,261.12 

GREEN, THELMA 1,308.48 

GREENBERG FAMILY TRUST 4,401.60 

GREENE REALTY TRUST 19,266.24 

GREENE, DAVID E 28,165.44 

GREENE, PATRICIA L 6,055.68 

GREEN-FRENCH REALTY TRUST 8,106.24 

GREGOIRE, NORMAN H 898.56 

GREGORIO, JOHN J & TARA M 1,968.00 

GREGORY, CHARLES J & PHILIP L JR 14,572.80 

GREID MANOR, LLC & IBCREID, LLC 3,758.40 

GREKIN, GABY L 3,288.00 

GRENIER, DANA R & LORI A 5,908.80 

GRIFFIN, MARTHA M 3,425.28 

GRIGGS, DONALD G 3,765.12 

GRIMES, JUSTIN P 6,110.40 

GRIMOLIZZI, JODY 177.31 

GRINDLE, ALDEN R & DONNA M 1,560.96 

GROLEAU, JAMES & DEVERE 2,119.68 

GROMAN, ELIZABETH L 3,246.72 

GRONBERG, KATHERINE & KEVIN 3,300.48 

GROTH, KEVIN P & LORI D 4,841.28 

GRUBER, FRANK J, V 3,774.72 

GUAY, KATHRYN ANN 5,108.16 

GUILFORD, THEODORE R & JUDITH A 1,177.92 

GULDBERG, ALEXANDRA B TRUSTEE 15,472.32 

GULF COAST COMMERCIAL CORPORATION 3,591.36 

GULF COAST COMMERCIAL CORPORATION 3,630.72 

GULF COAST COMMERCIAL CORPORATION 5,466.24 

GUNDLING, GERARD & LUCY 1,814.40 

GUNTHER, LISA C 2,303.04 

GURSKI, KIMBERLY A & JOHN E 4,032.00 

GUSTIN, JOANNE K 495.36 

GUSTIN, JOANNE K 5,429.76 

GUSTIN, JOANNE K & MICHAEL M TRUSTEES 17,843.52 

GUTERMANN, PETER & CYNTHIA 14,239.68 

GUTHRIE, WILLIAM A TRUSTEE 4,039.68 

GUTOFF, SOPHIA & EVAN 3,336.00 

HAAS, JENNIFER LEE 4,072.32 

HAGENS, ELIZABETH A 2,410.56 

HAGER, CHRISTIE L & STARK, ROYAL J 2,846.40 

HAGGERTY, ELIZABETH N 4,693.44 

HALEY, TIMOTHY M & LYNANNE N 6,625.92 

HALL, ANTHONY J & TRACY L 2,228.16 

HALL, DAVID S & SUZANNE B 4,086.72 

HALL, EDWARD R & ANNELIESE Z 4,538.50 

HALL, JOHN P & AMY L 9,026.88 

HALL, JONATHAN S 3,840.00 

HALL, KAREN E 4,021.44 

HALL, SUSAN J 5,536.32 

HALL, THOMAS A & KRISTINE C 2,058.24 

HAMEL, SEAN & DEBRA A 4,476.48 

HAMILTON, DANIEL W & BOGDAN, GERALD J 2,334.72 

HAMMEL, CLIFFORD P & BETSY 1,344.96 

HAND, JEFFREY M & ANN R 4,652.16 

HANDLEN, FRANK W & CUMMINS, SHARON L 6,629.76 

HANDLER, LAUREN TEEL 8,291.52 

HANIFY, ELIZABETH H 6,634.56 

HANIFY, JOHN D & BARBARA F 2,058.24 
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HANIFY, KATHERINE & DAVIS, JOHN T 4,152.96 

HANIFY, MARISSA M 2,490.24 

HANNA, LINDA B & STEVEN R 7,431.36 

HANNAFORD, GRAZYNA Z & ELSPETH H 3,092.16 

HANNON, PATRICIA & WALTER LIFE ESTATE 4,401.60 

HANSCOM, DONNA 156.48 

HANSEN, CHRISTINA  R 1,713.60 

HANSEN, VANESSA & LEVEILLE, RYAN 1,208.64 

HANSON WOODTURNING 249.22 

HANSON, CHRISTOPHER & LISA 8,450.88 

HANSON, GALE M 2,224.32 

HANSON, THEODORA B & STEPHEN M 7,467.84 

HARDING, WARREN A & CASEY, LINDA A 87.36 

HARDING, WARREN A & CASEY, LINDA A 1,488.96 

HARDY, II, S. MICHAEL 2,035.20 

HARDY, II, S. MICHAEL 3,698.88 

HARLOW, MICHAEL 1,555.20 

HARMON, WILLIAM E & SCHWEITZER, DIANE 4,630.08 

HARMS, MARK T & LUCAS, KAREN L 3,307.20 

HAROLD COWLES TRUST 4,338.24 

HAROLD HIMMELMAN REVOC TRUST 13,287.36 

HARRIMAN, SHIRLEY M & MATTHEWS, TARI LEE 2,401.54 

HARRINGTON, KEVIN P & SUSAN E 3,737.28 

HARRINGTON, TIMOTHY 534.62 

HARRINGTON, TIMOTHY 1,833.60 

HARRINGTON, TIMOTHY 1,941.12 

HARRINGTON, TIMOTHY 2,827.20 

HARRINGTON, WARD 989.76 

HARRISON, LISA ROGERS 2,242.56 

HARTUNG, SAMUEL & MACKENZIE C 4,989.12 

HARTWIG, ADAM T & DIANE 1,918.08 

HARVEY, CAROL P & FRANCIS  S JR 2,244.48 

HASS, MICHAEL & RONNI 4,020.48 

HATHAWAY, W JOHN & SUE-ELLEN 1,714.56 

HATHAWAY, W JOHN & SUE-ELLEN 1,959.36 

HATHAWAY, W JOHN & SUE-ELLEN 3,953.28 

HAYDAY, KELLY H & CHRISTOPHER 2,949.12 

HAYES FAMILY TRUST 101.76 

HAYES FAMILY TRUST 2,770.56 

HAYES, JOHN T & CYNTHIA E 3,338.88 

HAYES, PATRICIA A & RONALD J 3,650.88 

HAYES, WILLIAM 1,177.92 

HAYS 2019 TRUST 4,584.00 

HAYS, ADELE 2,572.80 

HEADY, KEVIN T & MARYANNE 6,839.04 

HEAPHY, LOIS 7,704.96 

HEAVEN, BRADFORD 2,293.44 

HEAVEN, MARSHALL H & MARYANN 9,693.12 

HELEN O BARNARD IRR TRUST 2012 3,128.64 

HELGA POZNANSKI TRUST 3,124.80 

HELTON, JEWELL L 9,769.92 

HEMINWAY, ELIZABETH R 4,612.80 

HEMINWAY, ELIZABETH R 6,120.00 

HENDERSON, PAUL F & LISA A 7,741.44 

HENDERSON, PAUL F & LISA A 9,070.08 

HENKE, LUCY L 4,792.32 

HENNESSEY LIVING TRUST 3,425.28 

HENRY & SUZANNE PERKINS REVOCABLE TRUSTS 4,446.72 

HENRY, CHRISTIAN O & CHRISTA P 18,791.04 

HENRY, JANET & MOORE, VERNON L 3,552.00 

HENRY, JOHN G & AOIFE C 12,847.68 

HENRY, JUSTIN & LIZARDI, JORGE I 2,721.60 

HERRMANN, CHRISTIAN L & SUSAN S 5,923.20 

HESELTON, LAURIE L & DANIEL R 4,062.72 

HETZ FAMILY TRUST 10,808.64 

HETZ FAMILY TRUST 42,896.64 

HEWITT, MICHAEL J 5,262.72 

HICKEY, MATTHEW J & KATHLEEN F 3,449.28 

HIDDEN POND 6,220.61 

HIDELL, WILLIS & BURNETT-HIDELL, ANNE 1,882.56 

HIGGINS, SHAWN & D SARAH 2,825.28 

HILDRETH, RUSSELL 3,362.88 

HILL, BARBARA A & POLLARD, LAUREL L 4,261.44 

HILL, BRIAN P & SUSAN J 5,186.88 

HILL, LAURENCE R 2,298.24 

HILL, PATRICK E 6,405.12 

HIOS HOSPITALITY, LLC 124.80 

HIRSCHHORN, MARK K 6,362.88 

HIRSHON, STEPHEN B & NANCY E 1,172.16 

HIRST, DEREK & SALLYANNA 847.68 

HIRST, DONALD J & SALLYANNA 3,119.04 

HIRST, JOHN R & KATHERINE 2,458.56 

HIRST, JOLENE & LEACH, GAIL 1,334.40 

HIRST, SHAYNE 1,316.16 

HIRST, ZACHARY C 2,620.80 

HITZ, JOHN S & HITZ, JUDITH BARNES 8,752.90 

HLS REALTY TRUST 3,769.92 

HMF, LLC 2,409.60 

HOBSON, BARBARA ANN 2,742.72 

HODGDON, ELIZABETH & THOMAS 3,679.68 

HODGKINS, SCOTT A & CAROL J 4,881.60 

HOGAN, PAUL J & FITZGERALD, GERALYN 7,668.48 

HOISINGTON, KARA & ROBERTS, JOSHUA 2,133.12 

HOLBROOK, DAVID H & JANICE 2,251.20 

HOLBROOK, WAYLON & NICOLE 2,069.38 

HOLDEN, DAVID J., JR 5,437.44 

HOLLAN MAINE, LLC 17,818.56 

HOLLAND, DANA T & ROBERT W 9,430.08 

HOLLAND, LEE G & HEIDI Y 6,911.04 

HOLLAND, SCOTT W 2,316.48 

HOLLERAN, SUSAN C 3,329.28 

HOLLORAN, EDWARD P 7,267.20 

HOLMES, MELISSA L & JEFFREY A 4,353.60 

HOLTZ, HERBERT  L 16,506.24 

HOLWAY, MANDY J 5,834.88 

HOMA, DENNIS P & NANCY S 3,056.64 

HOMEPORT POTTERY STUDIO 37.92 

HOOPER, STEPHEN C & RUTT, BRIAN S 2,672.64 

HOOVER, CHARLES A & DEBRA S 2,745.60 

HOPKINS, WILLIAM HOLDEN 3,554.88 
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HORIGAN, RICHARD T & KATHLEEN A 3,239.04 

HOUTZ, HARRY JAMES & NANCY 2,108.16 

HOVIVIAN, TOROS F & MARIANNE C 9,768.00 

HOWARD J NIXON FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST 7,056.96 

HOWARD, III, PHILIP J 4,958.40 

HOWARTH, CHARLES S & CHRISTINE M 2,507.52 

HOWARTH, JEANNE 4,588.80 

HOWELL, ERIK M 3,590.40 

HOWELL, NATHAN H & JULIE 3,970.56 

HOWES, FREDERICK & SALLY-ANN 3,364.80 

HSIEH, SHENG-JU & YI-RU 1,450.56 

HSU, CHIA FU & CHEN XIAOLAN 7,735.68 

HUBACZ, CATHERINE 5,601.60 

HUBER, DONALD K & SALLY H 4,075.20 

HUDSON, ANDREA K & EVAN W 1,981.44 

HUFF, DONALD E & JOYCE E 2,535.36 

HUGHES, DAVID L J & TRACY L A 2,459.52 

HUGHES, DAVID L J & TRACY L A 3,599.04 

HUGHES, JESSICA 4,355.52 

HUGHES, JOHN  E 3,304.32 

HULTGREN, JOAN M 3,461.76 

HULTGREN, KENNETH J 4,096.32 

HUMPHREY, PAUL & KATELYN 6,072.00 

HUNT, RALPH M & DIANNE C 2,540.16 

HUNTER, JAMES & JOAN 2,482.56 

HURLEY, ROBERT P 4,795.20 

HURRICANE RESTAURANT 151.87 

HURST, JILL P 3,121.92 

HUSSEY, KATHRYN A 4,967.04 

HUTCHINS FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST 55.68 

HUTCHINS, DEXTER & DANA & MARY R 9,189.12 

HUTCHINS, DIANE S 603.84 

HUTCHINS, DIANE S 2,901.12 

HUTCHINS, EDWARD W II & CHRISTINA 2,448.00 

HUTCHINS, EDWARD W II & CHRISTINA M 1,887.36 

HUTCHINS, HERBERT H & CLARA MAY 1,907.14 

HUTCHINS, JON E & KATHERINE A 2,376.00 

HUTCHINS, KENNETH E 17.28 

HUTCHINS, KENNETH N 2,612.74 

HUTCHINS, MAURICE B & PATRICIA 579.84 

HUTCHINS, MAURICE B & PATRICIA 598.08 

HUTCHINS, MAURICE B & PATRICIA 3,061.06 

HUTCHINS, MICHAEL A & ANN 3,201.60 

HUTCHINS, NICOLE T & MICHAEL W 1,646.40 

HUTCHINS, VICTOR W & JENNIE & KENNETH 384.00 

HUTCHINS, VICTOR W & PAMELA G 1,043.52 

HUTCHINS, VICTOR W & PAMELA G 1,982.40 

HYLAND, CHRISTOPHER S 4,015.68 

HYLAND, FRANK & DIANE 4,870.08 

HYMAN, DIANE J & SEBOTNICK, ALLAN B 5,020.80 

IAFOLLA, MICHAEL F JR & DENISE G 11,782.08 

IANNACCI LIVING TRUST 4,071.36 

INGLESI, MARIA A 7,767.36 

INNISS, MELISSA H 5,612.16 

INOUE, KALE & JESSICA L 1,105.92 

INOUE, NAOTO 569.28 

INOUE, NAOTO 1,950.72 

IRENE CYR IRREVOCABLE TRUST 5,457.60 

IRVING S WILCOX LIVING TRUST 3,928.90 

ISRAEL FAMILY TRUST 3,603.84 

IVES REVOCABLE FAMILY TRUST 2,972.16 

IVES, CORDELIA I 2,755.20 

IVY ONE, LLC 4,835.52 

IVY ONE, LLC 17,672.64 

IVY THREE, LLC 2,101.44 

IZBICKI, JENIFER B & RICHARD R 2,841.60 

JACANIN, JAMES 4,770.24 

JACKSON, BRUCE R 2,523.84 

JACKSON, VALERIE P & TURRISI, MICHAEL J 5,045.76 

JACOB, GABRIELE K 3,117.12 

JACOBSEN, JEFFREY W & EILEEN 4,444.80 

JAK DESIGNS 46.46 

JAKMAR REAL ESTATE INC. 5,257.92 

JAMES & CHERYL ARSENAULT REVOC TRSTS 5,255.04 

JAMES E STEELE LIVING TRUST 3,214.08 

JAMES H DUFFY REVOC TRUST 5,804.16 

JAMES H KIRSCH REVOCABLE TRUST OF 1997 2,975.04 

JAMES M FAULKNER FAMILY EDUCATION TRUST 3,222.72 

JAMES M MURRAY SR TRUST 6,019.78 

JAMES R GRANA TRUST 2,238.72 

JAMES, LISANNE A & DAVID E 8,699.52 

JAMIE D RAMSEY REVOC TRUST 2,649.60 

JANDL, MARGARET M 1,535.04 

JANDL, MARGARET M 1,620.48 

JANDL, MARGARET M 16,625.28 

JANE E FIRTH TRUST 2,150.40 

JANE WEINTRAUB TRUST 13,449.60 

JANE, NICHOLAS R & ANDREA B 3,604.80 

JANELLE, NORMA JEAN 1,848.00 

JANET & MICHAEL BURD TRUST 11,808.96 

JANET H LOMBARD TRUST OF 2013 5,996.16 

JANN B LEVIN REVOCABLE TRUST 5,903.04 

JAS REALTY TRUST 6,192.00 

JDMSK, INC 59.23 

JDMSK, INC 4,196.16 

JEAN L WHITTAKER TRUST 10,473.60 

JEANNETTE I MURPHY REVOC TRUST 5,672.64 

JEFFREY & KRISTY DOUGLAS REVOCABLE TRUST 275.52 

JEFFREY & KRISTY DOUGLAS REVOCABLE TRUST 5,837.76 

JELLISON, JOHN L 1,583.04 

JENKINS, DAVID W 4,760.64 

JENKINS, DAVID W & DIANE 96.00 

JENKINS, DAVID W & DIANE 458.88 

JENKINS, DAVID W & DIANE 1,146.24 

JENKINS, DAVID W & DIANE 1,339.20 

JENKINS, DAVID W & DIANE 3,330.24 

JENKINS, DAVID W & DIANE 3,900.48 

JENKINS, DAVID W & DIANE 4,145.28 

JENKINS, DAVID W & DIANE 4,329.60 

JENKINS, DAVID W & DIANE 6,124.80 
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JENKINS, DIANE 1,788.48 

JENKINS, DONALD R & KELLEY 10,266.24 

JENKINS, DONALD R & KELLEY 16,075.20 

JENKINS, JESSICA D & WEST, ANDREW M 3,100.80 

JILL C NESHER REVOCABLE TRUST 2,902.08 

JILL C NESHER REVOCABLE TRUST 12,336.00 

JJCN PROPERTIES LLC 1,290.24 

JJPT REALTY PARTNERS, LLC 4,366.08 

JJWZ, LLC 1,222.08 

JJWZ, LLC 2,322.24 

JJWZ, LLC 2,413.44 

JJWZ, LLC 2,551.68 

JK REVOCABLE TRUST OF 2011 16,304.64 

JMS REALTY TRUST 8,687.04 

JO ANNE GARVEY REVOCABLE TRUST 18,199.68 

JOAN ASHWORTH WULF LIVING TRUST 1,881.60 

JOANNE M POWELL REVOCABLE TRUST 6,815.04 

JODOIN, RICHARD W & JANET S 3,593.28 

JOEL-MUDD, HOLLY TRUSTEE 13,833.60 

JOERGENSEN, TORGRIM & INGUNN M 5,132.16 

JOHN A PARKER QUALIFIED PR TRUST 22,404.48 

JOHN BOURNE HOUSE, LLC 8,559.36 

JOHN C LOMBARD TRUST OF 2013 5,360.64 

JOHN C POLI REVOCABLE TRUST 1,587.84 

JOHN C POLI REVOCABLE TRUST 1,864.32 

JOHN D ZIMMERMANN REALTY TRUST 1,920.00 

JOHN F RINALDI REVOCABLE TRUST 6,216.96 

JOHN F RINALDI REVOCABLE TRUST 11,504.64 

JOHN F RINALDI, LLC 6,396.48 

JOHN HARRIS REVOCABLE TRUST 7,065.60 

JOHN HARRIS REVOCABLE TRUST 7,140.48 

JOHN J MCEVOY JR TRUST 5,748.48 

JOHN NAGLE COMPANY 597.12 

JOHN R LEEMAN REVOCABLE TRUST 7,331.52 

JOHNSON, DAVID L & AMY B 3,608.64 

JOHNSON, DEAN & HOLLY B 3,100.80 

JOHNSON, DEAN C & DENYSE D 2,289.60 

JOHNSON, DONALD J 5,089.92 

JOHNSON, ELIZABETH 7,768.32 

JOHNSON, FRED M 4,349.76 

JOHNSON, KATHERINE R 4,616.64 

JOHNSON, PATRICIA C & CURTIS C 749.76 

JOHNSON, STEVEN G & ROSELL F 10,082.88 

JOHNSON, WALTER C & PATRICIA 2,827.20 

JOHNSTON, DOUGLAS & PERKINS, CORNELIA N 5,047.68 

JOHNSTON, HEATHER 1,470.72 

JONATHAN D LEVINE TRUST 7,656.00 

JONATHAN DEGREGORIS REVOCABLE TRUST 4,288.32 

JONES, ROBERT & DEBORAH 4,932.48 

JONES, SABRA R 3,682.56 

JONES, SABRA R 4,933.44 

JOOS, MICAH T 3,126.72 

JOSEPH C OAKLEY REVOCABLE TRUST 2,628.48 

JOSHI, ANNE C 6,548.16 

JOSSELYN-ROSE, LESLIE A 12,921.60 

7,425.60 

10,368.00 

6,046.08 

3,261.12 

6,042.24 

5,588.16 

5,695.68 

510.72 

1,768.32 

5,492.16 

2,521.92 

3,054.72 

2,446.08 

6,816.96 

5,111.04 

13,808.64 

7,440.00 

1,803.84 

2,353.92 

5,931.84 

4,385.28 

518.40 

2,904.00 

4,149.12 

2,811.84 

1,917.12 

6,702.72 

7,718.02 

4,911.36 

3,065.28 

3,304.32 

1,524.48 

13,200.00 

14,802.24 

4,818.24 

16,769.28 

3,210.24 

3,078.72 

49,552.32 

40,127.04 

6,375.36 

7,449.60 

5,286.72 

6,197.76 

7,848.00 

9,105.60 

5,616.00 

4,888.32 

807.94 

5,058.24 

28,795.20 

1,726.08 

5,306.88 

1,196.16 

JOURDAN, DAVID W & LYNN R 

JOY CORTI REVOCABLE TRUST-2001 

JOYCE E CURTIS FAMILY TRUST 

JOYCE HINDS REVOCABLE TRUST OF 2009 

JOYCE HINDS REVOCABLE TRUST OF 2009 

JOYCE L ROSE REVOCABLE TRUST 

JOYCE, WILLIAM D & LINDA A 

JRD, LLC 

JSK GROUP, LLC 

JUDGE, JANET & HERMAN, KERRY 

JUDGE, STEPHEN D 

JUDITH A BARRETT REVOCABLE TRUST 

JUDITH D BIUSO REVOCABLE TRUST 

JUDY L MANSCHRECK REVOCABLE TRUST 

JULIA A. POWERS TRUST 

JULIAN, NANCIE M 

JUNKER, WILLIAM A & MARIA 

JURESSEN, ADELE H 

JURGA, CAROL E 

JURGA, STANLEY M & CAROL E 

JW COVERT PROPERTIES 1, LLC 

JW GROUP LLC 

KADING, KELLY B JR & AMY R 

KANDYBIN, ALEXANDER 

KANE, CHERYL 

KANE, TIMOTHY & PERRIN, IAN FREDERICK 

KARAKHANIAN, ALEXANDER & RENA 

KARALUS, RONALD R & JO-ANN 

KARCHER, CHRISTOPHER 

KAREN SUZANNE LOBELLO TRUST 

KASA, PAMELA 

KASPRZAK, STEPHEN M & PAULA J 

KASPRZAK, STEPHEN M & PAULA J 

KASYAN, ANN M & ALPEYRIE, JEAN-LOUIS 

KATHLEEN BAUER BURKE LIVING TRUST 

KATHLEEN H WALSH TRUST 1997 

KATHY F ANUSZEWSKI LIVING TRUST 

KATSIMPAS, CHARLES & DIANE 

KATZ, JOANNE R 

KATZ, MARLA J 

KAYPORT, LLC 

KCC-CGH HOLDINGS, LLC 

KEATING, SALLY R 

KEATING, SALLY R 

KEEFE CHRISTOPHER A & JENNIFER A 

KEEFE FAMILY MAINE REALTY TRUST 

KEENE, DANIEL D & KAREN M 

KEHOE, BRENDAN & KATHRYN ANN 

KEITHLEY, LINDA 

KELLAR, DORIS E 

KELLER, PATRICIA N 

KELLETT, ALICIA N 

KELLEY REALTY TRUST 

KELLEY, KEVIN J & DALY, ANNE T 

KELLEY, MARTHA A & MICHAEL W 853.44 
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KELLEY, MARTHA A & MICHAEL W 2,064.96 

KELLO, ALEXANDER & LORETTA M 5,126.40 

KELLY, DAVID L 8,234.88 

KELLY, MICHAEL L & DONNA G 16,543.68 

KELLY, PATRICK F & JANICE C 10,977.60 

KELLY, RICHARD B & SHARON A 3,663.36 

KELLY, RYAN & CARDUCCI, RACHEL 3,631.68 

KELLY, VINCENT K & ANNE H 7,632.00 

KEMBER, ROBERT F 4,047.36 

KEMPINSKI, HEIDI 716.16 

KEMPINSKI, HEIDI 2,494.08 

KENNEBUNK RIVER CLUB 39.36 

KENNEBUNK RIVER CLUB 1,902.72 

KENNEBUNK RIVER CLUB 4,780.80 

KENNEBUNK RIVER CLUB 9,173.76 

KENNEBUNK RIVER CLUB 13,521.60 

KENNEBUNK RIVER CLUBHOUSE 60.86 

KENNEBUNKPORT CAPTAINS COLLECT 57.41 

KENNEBUNKPORT CAPTAINS COLLECT 172.51 

KENNEBUNKPORT CAPTAINS COLLECT 223.10 

KENNEBUNKPORT CAPTAINS COLLECT 268.42 

KENNEBUNKPORT CAPTAINS COLLECT 408.00 

KENNEBUNKPORT CAPTAINS COLLECTION, LLC 8,264.64 

KENNEBUNKPORT CAPTAINS COLLECTION, LLC 13,914.24 

KENNEBUNKPORT CAPTAINS COLLECTION, LLC 14,317.44 

KENNEBUNKPORT CAPTAINS COLLECTION, LLC 18,127.68 

KENNEBUNKPORT CONSERVATION TRUST 59.52 

KENNEBUNKPORT CONSERVATION TRUST 517.44 

KENNEBUNKPORT CONSERVATION TRUST 896.64 

KENNEBUNKPORT CONSERVATION TRUST 4,368.00 

KENNEBUNKPORT COTTAGE TRUST 9,726.72 

KENNEBUNKPORT INN 6,428.16 

KENNEBUNKPORT MARINA 846.72 

KENNEBUNKPORT MOTOR LODGE, LLC 5,365.44 

KENNEBUNKPORT REALTY TRUST 1,551.36 

KENNEDY, CHARLES & SUHRHOFF, KAREN 4,970.88 

KENNEDY, KEVIN J & JENNIFER B 4,048.32 

KENNEDY, MICHAEL C 2,061.12 

KENNEDY, MICHAEL P REVOCABLE TRUST 2,813.76 

KENNETH E ROWE TRUST 18,800.64 

KENNETH J GIMBEL REVOCABLE TRUST 2,536.32 

KENNETH J GIMBEL REVOCABLE TRUST 12,148.80 

KENNEWAY, SETH C & ALISON Z 2,521.92 

KERN, BARBARA H 2,749.44 

KEVIN J REGAN REVOCABLE TRUST 8,025.60 

KEZAR, LYNN M 4,930.56 

KIECKHAFER, WILLIAM L & REGINA M 9,820.80 

KIEZULAS, CHARLES 2,941.44 

KILBURN HOUSE, LLC 4,511.04 

KILCOYNE FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 4,010.88 

KILFOYLE, DOLORES T & MEEHAN, MARIA L 3,623.04 

KILLYBEGS, LLC 8,568.00 

KIMBALL, JED & JESSICA 2,695.68 

KIMBALL, JED K & JESSICA M 3,658.56 

KIMBERLY KNICKLE TIERNEY REVOCABLE TRUST 4,954.56 

8,230.08 

3,131.52 

5,163.84 

25,017.60 

1,974.72 

9,386.88 

7,341.12 

13,368.96 

1,538.88 

1,654.08 

7,439.04 

4,497.60 

16,471.30 

7,314.24 

1,803.84 

2,990.40 

7,091.52 

2,095.68 

1,184.64 

2,704.32 

4,231.68 

10,797.12 

2,306.88 

1,184.64 

2,138.88 

1,584.58 

9,205.44 

6,489.60 

12,017.28 

2,716.80 

5,966.40 

2,666.50 

3,574.08 

2,705.28 

6,167.04 

336.48 

2,743.68 

17,289.60 

10,557.12 

74.88 

295.68 

296.64 

2,747.52 

4,429.44 

18,835.20 

6,962.88 

4,665.60 

6,684.48 

3,821.76 

1,896.00 

5,285.76 

4,857.60 

5,308.80 

2,380.80 

KING FAMILY TRUST 

KING, BRUCE E 

KING, DOROTHY J 

KING, JENNIFER C & FREDEL, TIMOTHY C 

KING, KAREN A 

KING-GUFFEY TRUST 

KINGS COTTAGE, LLC 

KINGS HIGHWAY REALTY, LLC 

KINGSBURY, NICHOLAS N 

KINGSTON, J STEVEN & JENIFER 

KINGSTON, J STEVEN & JENIFER 

KINGSTON, LINDA R 

KINGSTON, THOMAS P & LANA S 

KIRBY, MARGARET A 

KIRKPATRICK REVOCABLE TRUST 

KLACZYNSKY, JOSEPH 

KLEIN REALTY TRUST 

KLEINMAN, LINDA T & JEFFREY H 

KLEMER, BENJAMIN P & SUE A 

KLH EXPORTS/IMPORTS, LLC 

KLIMCSAK, THOMAS M & DEIRDRE A 

KNERAM, KATHLEEN & DAVID 

KNOWLES, ROBERT W 

KNOX, BONNIE JEAN 

KNOX, ELIZABETH H & FRANCIS V JR 

KNOX, HELEN B 

KNUDSEN, JAY M 

KNZ PROPERTIES, LLC 

KOEHLER, ANN R TRUSTEE 

KOESTER, DAVID M & GRANT, MARYJANE 

KOFFS, RICHARD L & KATHLEEN ANN 

KOHL, HELMUT & JANET 

KOKOSKIE, DONALD S 

KONRAD, RICHARD N 

KOROBKIN, STEVEN M & ELLEN M 

KOSH, DAVID 

KOVACS, GENE & HSU, AMY C 

KOWLZAN, MARK W & SUE C 

KOWLZAN, SUE CANTLEY 

K-PORT NATURAL SPRING WATER

KPORT TRUST, LLC 

KPORT TRUST, LLC 

KPORT7 TRUST, LLC 

KPT MARINE, LLC 

KPT MARINE, LLC 

KRAEUTER, JOHN N 

KRAMER, BERRI
KRAMER, EDWARD & ROBERTA 

KRATOVIL, ROSE M & FLYNN, KEVIN & ERICKA 

KRETZ, LISA & DEROCHE JANICE 

KRUMSIEK, DAVID W & JAMES H 

KRUSZENSKI, DAVID J & TERI L 

KRZMARZICK, DAN 

KSB FAMILY, LLC 

KSB FAMILY, LLC 9,627.84 
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KUBIAK, FAITH & KATHERINE 5,933.76 

KUDAS HOTEL COMPANY, LLC 8,031.36 

KUDAS, JACEK & SHARRY 3,503.04 

KUDAS, JACEK & SHARRY 9,193.92 

KUDAS, MAREK 10,353.60 

KUDAS, WOJCIECH & IWONA 3,047.04 

KUDRIKOW, JASON & SARAH 2,203.20 

KUEHNLE, JOHN K & KRISTEN 8,402.88 

KUEHNLE, KRISTEN J 2,206.08 

KUENZEL, STEFAN & DARCY 510.91 

KUHN, RONALD L 1,700.16 

KUKLIS, STEPHEN 2,771.52 

KULLAWAY LIVING TRUST 3,290.88 

KURLANSKI, ZBIGNIEW J & KATHLEEN M 1,837.44 

KVAKA, MARY BETH 3,166.08 

LABOUVE, PAUL V & JULIE ANN 3,780.48 

LABRIE, HENRY G III 5,274.24 

LABRIE, HENRY G III &, MARTINE R 35,659.20 

LACASSE, KENNETH R & BEVERLY A 4,370.88 

LACEY, STEVEN L & JOCELYN M 8,457.60 

LACHANCE, SARAH K & PAUL G 6,809.28 

LACHIATTO, JUDITH A & ALEXANDER M 6,726.72 

LACKNER, JOHN T & KATRINA M 5,243.52 

LAFLAMME, DONALD N & JANICE 1,332.48 

LaFlamme, Marc 1,698.24 

LAFLAMME, MICHAEL & LABBE, CAROL 1,959.36 

LAFLAMME, VICKY 5,518.08 

LAFOLLETTE, JAMES O 3,804.48 

LAJR TRUST 16,469.76 

LAKEMAN, ERIKA 974.40 

LALANDE, MICHEL 7,485.12 

LAMARRE, GILBERT O 5,494.08 

LAMB, ALLYN & NORMA 9,680.64 

LAMB, STEPHEN A 1,146.24 

LAMB, STEPHEN A & SUSAN E 2,580.48 

LAMBROS SIDERIDES TRUST 4,714.56 

LAMONTAGNE, ELLIOTT LIFE ESTATE 3,747.84 

LAMONTAGNE, FRANCES 133.44 

LAMONTAGNE, JAMIE LYNN & CORY 802.56 

LANDERGAN, MARY 3,969.60 

LANDS END PARTNERSHIP, LLC 3,622.08 

LANE, CAROL ANN 2,185.92 

LANE, CAROL J 12,090.24 

LANG, EILEEN 3,054.72 

LANG, JOY E 5,961.60 

LANG, ROBERT E 3,060.48 

LANGSFORD PROPERTIES, LLC 1,718.40 

LANGSHAW, DEBORAH & SIMON, RANDAL E 6,031.68 

LANIO, VICTOR 6,697.92 

LANTAGNE, SCOTT A 1,703.04 

LANZETTA, THOMAS M & DONOVAN, JOAN L 6,357.12 

LAPALME, STEPHEN & JOANN 6,866.88 

LAPLANT, MATTHEW J & KATHERINE B 3,920.64 

LAPOINT, JOANN 3,049.92 

LARGEY, ELIZABETH A 4,046.40 

LAROCHELLE, PETER M 5,713.92 

LARRABEE, JONATHAN F & HEATHER A 6,913.92 

LASSALETTA, ANTONIO 3,334.08 

LATCHFORD, MICHAEL & DONNELLY, RYAN 6,635.52 

LATINO, ANTHONY 2,875.20 

LAVALLEE, JR, WILLIAM 1,364.16 

LAVERRIERE, JAMES M & SUSAN J 3,744.96 

LAVERY, BRIAN & JULIE A 5,180.16 

LAVOIE, DAVID J 1,017.60 

LAW, SCOTT & NANCEANN 214.18 

LAWRENCE, STEWART D & BETSY I 2,976.96 

LEA RAE LEVINES REVOCABLE TRUST 4,589.76 

LEACH, LINDA P & RAYMOND D 1,834.56 

LEACH, LINDA P & RAYMOND D 3,012.48 

LEAF CAPITAL FUNDING LLC 95.71 

LEAHY, LEE A 9,334.08 

LEAHY, RICHARD & STEPHANIE 2,620.80 

LEBARGE, NICOLE ELISE 1,714.56 

LEBRUN, ERICK S & KATHERINE W 2,973.12 

LEE, W SCOTT & BRIDGET B 1,798.08 

LEFORT, MARIO & NASH, DEBORAH 3,599.04 

LEGAY, MARTIN & DAWN 528.10 

LEIDENFROST, MICHAEL D 2,576.64 

LEIGHTON, DEBORAH S 4,967.04 

LEMAITRE, ELLEN MARY 10,384.32 

LEMAITRE, KATHLEEN M 3,552.96 

LEMAITRE, KATHLEEN M & DALY, BRIEN 27,214.08 

LEMAY, ARTHUR P & MARY ELLEN 6,983.04 

LENCKI, DONNA K 6,597.12 

LENCZYK, ANDREW J & ULLMANN, KAREN A 2,679.36 

LENNON, DEBRA A & NILL, THOMAS J 5,182.08 

LEONARD, DANIEL F ET AL 4,841.28 

LEONARDI, JOHN J & LYNDA L 5,846.40 

LEPROHON, LINDA 72.96 

LEROY, GARY L & SHERI A 2,795.52 

LESCURE, JOHN M., III & ISABEL F 8,834.88 

LESKO, LLC 133.44 

LESSARD, JEFFREY 2,750.40 

LEVEY, DANIEL L 4,304.64 

LEVIN, ARTHUR L 4,831.68 

LEVIN, ERIC 4,204.80 

LEVIS, S JAMES JR 1,846.08 

LEVISON, RYAN & ELIZABETH 756.86 

LEVY, ROBERT & LISA 5,521.92 

LEWAND, HELENE MARIE 5,622.72 

LEWAND-KOCH, ADAM & ASHLEY BAKER-KOCH 3,629.76 

LEWIA, NICHOLAS E & AMY L 2,191.68 

LEWIA, TOBIAS A 2,862.72 

LEWIA, TOBIAS A 2,863.68 

LEWIS FAMILY REALTY TRUST 8,387.52 

LEWIS, GORDON S & ELIZABETH W 5,122.56 

LEWIS, SCOTT G & HSIEH CHIA-JU 3,651.84 

L'HOMME, THERESA 2,476.80 

LICHTE, GEORGE L 4,887.36 

LIEBEL, JAMES D & MARYANN 2,225.28 
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LIFESAVING RESOURCES LLC 19.87 

LIGHTHOUSE PROPERTIES, LLC 2,176.32 

LINCOLN, BRIAN C 6,720.96 

LINNEMANN, PATRICIA M & ROGER E JR 11,867.52 

LINNEMANN, ROGER PATRICK 9,144.96 

LINT, ERIC B 3,428.16 

LISA R KRANC LIFETIME TRUST 20,389.44 

LISSAUER, LIANNE E 2,715.84 

LITCHFIELD, COREY & GILLIAN 508.03 

LITTLE, NORMA E & CLYDE G 2,717.38 

LITWILLER, LONNIE S & JOANNE F 3,233.86 

LITWILLER, SARA R & FARMER, BRANDON 2,761.92 

LIVINGSTON-HUGHES SURVEYORS 73.34 

LLC I 297.02 

LOBELLO, MARK D & MEAGAN E 3,356.16 

LOCKARD, RAY E & ALLISON 8,422.08 

LOCKE STREET PROPERTIES, LLC 4,048.32 

LOCKHART, STEPHEN E & MARY F 4,400.64 

LOCONTE NORTHWOOD DRIVE TRUST 7,968.96 

LODGE AT TURBATS CREEK 125.28 

LODGE ON THE COVE 900.48 

LOGOVSKY, LUKYAN & ESTHER WEBSTER 465.60 

LOIKA FAMILY REALTY TRUST 5,779.20 

LOIS W BAYLIS REVOCABLE TRUST 17,777.28 

LONGSTRETH, GEORGE B & BETSY B 8,391.36 

LONGWORTH, BENJAMIN T & EGAN, EMILY 2,158.08 

LONSBERG, JOHN V 8,535.36 

LORA MCGRATH REVOCABLE TRUST 4,315.20 

LORA MCGRATH REVOCABLE TRUST 8,575.68 

LORD & HARRINGTON, LLC 3,416.64 

LORD FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 5,028.48 

LORD, KEVIN M & KELLY M 16,032.96 

LORDEN, PETER J & PAULINE F 6,643.20 

LORING, ROBERT S & ANNETTE S 10,692.48 

LOSARDO, DONNA M & WENTRUP, HEIDELORE K 3,114.24 

LOT 8 BOATSWAIN LANE, LLC 6,137.28 

LOUCKS, ANDREW C 4,510.08 

LOUIS BIGLIANI PERSONAL RESIDENCE TRUST 31,817.28 

LOUIS F & JILL A MILLER REVOCABLE TRUST 5,654.40 

LOVEJOY BUILDERS, INC. 354.24 

LOVEJOY FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 4,082.88 

LOVEJOY, J. ROBIN 480.00 

LOVEJOY, KENNETH R - LIFE ESTATE 1,902.72 

LOVEJOY, MICHAEL J & CHISHOLM, KERRI H 4,029.12 

LOVEJOY, RICHARD J & ROBIN 905.28 

LOW, DARLENE 1,845.12 

LOYNS, LYNN A & GIA L 3,406.08 

LRH LLC 5,745.60 

LTG FAMILY TRUST 84.48 

LTG FAMILY TRUST 18,618.24 

LUBY, JOHN E 716.16 

LUBY, JOHN E 6,786.24 

LUCCHESI, SARAH 2,620.80 

LUCERO, JOHN 10,671.36 

LUCIANO, JOSEPH S 3,127.68 

LUCKY DOG FARM, LLC 1,420.80 

LUDWIG FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 13,602.24 

LURO, BRIAN D & ANGELIQUE M 5,862.72 

LUSH, DEBORA C & VIOLETTE THERESA 565.44 

LUSH, ERNEST L & VANNESS M 1,700.74 

LUSH, JOHN & FAITH 81.60 

LUSH, JOHN & FAITH 96.96 

LUSH, JOHN & FAITH 104.64 

LUSH, JOHN & FAITH 110.40 

LUSH, JOHN & FAITH 147.84 

LUSH, JOHN & FAITH 384.00 

LUSH, JOHN & FAITH 3,542.40 

LUTHERN, WILLIAM R & JOAN B 9,113.28 

LUTJEN, PAUL M & DONNA A 1,132.80 

LYLE, ROBERT A & KATHERINE B 2,153.28 

LYONS, BARBARA E 2,477.76 

LYONS, KATHLEEN A & FONTAINE, LISA M 5,864.64 

LYONS, MICHAEL & JACQUELINE 1,202.88 

M&J JONES REVOCABLE TRUST 11,471.04 

M3300790 CANADA INC - MOLSON ERIC 38,355.84 

MABEE, CARLETON H & ANDREA 5,189.38 

MABELS HOUSE 175.58 

MABELS LOBSTER CLAW RESTAURANT 96.77 

MACCACHRAN, ROBERT F & SUSAN H TRUSTEES 4,766.40 

MACDONALD, BRIAN & SUSAN 10,079.04 

MACDONALD, PAUL & KELLEY 9,832.32 

MACDONALD, RODERICK & E LAFAVE TRUST 5,664.00 

MACDONALD, RODERICK D 3,625.54 

MACE, CLAIRE M 6,087.36 

MACGREGOR, KAREN L 2,726.40 

MACLEOD FAMILY TRUST 2,512.32 

MACLEOD, CAROL H & ROBERT B JR 102.72 

MACLEOD, CAROL H & ROBERT B JR 3,181.44 

MACLEOD, CAROL H & ROBERT B JR 4,037.76 

MACLEOD, EDWARD 5,293.44 

MACMARTIN, J ALEXANDER JR 5,112.96 

MACMILLAN, DARLENE & JOHN 3,578.88 

MADDEN, KATHERINE L 492.48 

MADDEN, ROBERT A & CAROLE P 4,632.00 

MADDEN, RUTH C 2,596.80 

MADEIRA, MARCIA T 6,725.76 

MADGE, RANDALL H & KATHLEEN J 7,530.24 

MADORE, MARILYN A D 1,425.60 

MAGRI, ELIZABETH C 5,845.44 

MAHER, CELESTE 271.68 

MAHONEY, ANN-MARIE R 2,431.68 

MAHONEY, CHRISTOPHER D & LINDA L 9,129.60 

MAHONEY, D SCOTT & CHERYL L 10,749.12 

MAINE PEARL LLC 7,141.44 

MAINE SUNSHINE TRUST 1,301.76 

MAINE, LLC 10,895.04 

MAINE-LY ENGLISH INC 12,837.12 

MAIUCCORO, CATHIANN 9,160.32 

MAIUCCORO, CATHIANN 47,240.64 

MALLOCH, JESSE & CANDACE 4,234.56 
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MALONEY, BETH 3,470.40 

MALONEY, RICHARD A & ALICE 5,280.96 

MALTE LUKAS REVOCABLE TRUST 7,117.44 

MANDELL, JAMES A 9,970.56 

MANECHE REVOCABLE TRUST 4,950.72 

MANETTI, PETER & DENISE E 4,441.92 

MANGANO, PAUL 4,557.12 

MANIKIAN, REBECCA D & MAXWELL R 2,894.40 

MANLEY, ARTHUR G & SANDRA L 11,709.12 

MAPLEWOOD AT GOOSEROCKS BEACH, LLC 6,947.52 

MARAVELIS, ARTHUR  E 8,114.88 

MARCIA J LUKAS REVOCABLE TRUST 7,708.80 

MARCOCCIO, NICHOLAS D & KATHERINE A 5,595.84 

MARCOTTE, CHRISTINE L 3,164.16 

MARCUS FAMILY TRUST 5,970.24 

MARGARET P MIX RE TRUST 88.32 

MARGARET P MIX RE TRUST 17,608.32 

MARGUERITE J WATERS REVOCABLE TRUST 3,002.88 

MARIAN SIMPSON PROPERTY TRUST 6,171.84 

MARIANA VORCE FAMILTY REALTY TRUST 7,272.96 

MARIE B HENRIKSEN REVOCABLE TRUST 5,256.96 

MARIE C CONDON TRUST 5,304.96 

MARIE, DEE ANNE 1,012.80 

MARITIME COTTAGES, LLC 3,399.36 

MARITIME COTTAGES, LLC 3,400.32 

MARITIME COTTAGES, LLC 3,400.32 

MARITIME COTTAGES, LLC 3,559.68 

MARK C LAMARRE REVOCABLE TRUST 11,084.16 

MARK E WALLBRIDGE TRUST 11.52 

MARK E WALLBRIDGE TRUST 2,313.60 

MARKOWITZ, DAVID 6,674.88 

MARLEEN E CLARK LIVING TRUST 5,948.74 

MARON, MICHAEL B & DAWN W 4,636.80 

MARQUIS, ALFRED C JR & JULIE A 36,899.52 

MARR, RODNEY C & ROSALIE 7,000.32 

MARROCCO, SUZANNE & PAUL A 5,726.40 

MARSH WINDS, LLC 5,901.12 

MARSHALL POINT REALTY, LLC 29,797.44 

MARSTERS, PATRICIA W 2,813.76 

MARTEL, JEANNE & ELLIOT 5,617.92 

MARTHA NIKITAS STONE REV TRUST 2,920.32 

MARTIN, ANDREA 5,564.16 

MARTIN, GARY E & TAMMY M 3,890.88 

MARTIN, JAMES & ANNE MARIE TRUSTEES 14,834.88 

MARTIN, JOHN E 8,448.00 

MARTIN, KRISTYN R 5,121.60 

MARTIN, SUSAN L 3,604.80 

MARTINEZ, FELIPE 491.14 

MARTUCCELLI, PETER J & DIANE L 5,813.76 

MARY BANKS STROHM REVOCABLE TRUST 8,963.52 

MARY C. KUDAROSKI REVOCABLE TRUST 6,420.48 

MARY H ABBOTT TRUST 9,525.12 

MARY L DOXSEE REVOCABLE TRUST 12,601.92 

MARY RAUSCHER CAPE PORPOISE TRUST 2,895.36 

MARYANNE K SORGE REVOCABLE TRUST 8,910.72 

1,172.16 

1,957.44 

122.88 

180.48 

468.38 

4,194.24 

4,609.92 

6,932.16 

8,345.28 

6,181.44 

3,850.56 

661.44 

798.72 

3,690.24 

6,322.56 

6,312.00 

152.64 

11,416.32 

3,279.36 

3,302.40 

18,105.60 

3,846.72 

7,147.20 

7,684.80 

4,611.84 

8,054.40 

4,396.80 

3,521.28 

MAS HOLDING, LLC 

MASON, JANICE M 

MASON, JOSEPH W L & GLORIA L 

MASON, JOSEPH W L & GLORIA L 

MASTERS, MICHAEL & DEB 

MATSON, ANITA E & LACOUR, RAYMOND M 

MATTHEWS REALTY TRUST 

MATTHEWS, JOHN R & HEATHER L ET AL 

MATTHEWS, JUSTIN & JILL 

MATTHEWS, KASSANDRA ET AL 

MATTHEWS, KYLE H 

MATTHEWS, MITCHELL F & EMILY W 

MATTHEWS, MITCHELL F & EMILY W 

MATTHEWS, ROBERT R & TARA LYN 

MATTHEWS, ROBERT R & TARA LYN 

MATTHEWS, SHEILA 

MATTHEWS, WILLIAM R JR & MARCIA H 

MATTHEWS, WILLIAM R JR & MARCIA H 

MATTHYSEN, JAN L 

MATTUCHIO FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST 

MATVEI, LLC 

MAUCIERI, NICHOLAS R JR & DEBORAH 

MAUCIERI, NICHOLAS R JR & DEBORAH 

MAULE FAMILY GOOSE ROCKS BEACH TRUST 

MAUSHART, BRADFORD S & DONNA M 

MAY, DOUGLAS D & WISE, WENDY 

MAYFIELD, MELISSA A 

MAYNARD LIVING TRUST 

MAYNARD, JOSEPH D & HEIDI B 170.88 

MAYNARD, JOSEPH D & HEIDI B 462.72 

MAYNARD, JOSEPH D & HEIDI B 696.00 

MAYNARD, JOSEPH D & HEIDI B 2,037.12 

MAYNARD, JOSEPH D & HEIDI B 3,542.40 

MAYNARD, LEE A & GREGORY R 3,876.48 

MCALEER, EDWARD J 11,426.88 

MCALPINE, DEBORAH M 30,384.96 

MCALPINE, PAULETTE HOLDEN 1,763.52 

MCALPINE, WILLIAM 77.76 

MCANDREW, JEFFREY S & BRIANA G 3,005.76 

MCAVOY, GEORGE D & ANN M 18,715.20 

MCAVOY, MICHAEL J & KATHLEEN M 2,024.64 

MCBRINE, RICHARD L & SUSAN M 1,172.16 

MCCABE, F RICHARD 312.00 

MCCABE, FRANCIS R 7,527.36 

MCCABE, SHARON R 2,786.88 

MCCALL, LEWIS W JR & JUDY M 4,165.44 

MCCALL, ROBERT J & RITA F 5,044.42 

MCCAMMOND, KATHERINE T 73.92 

MCCAMMOND, KATHERINE T 678.72 

MCCAMMOND, KATHERINE T 3,494.40 

MCCANN, JAMES E & HELEN I 745.92 

MCCANN, JAMES E & HELEN I 2,459.52 

MCCANN, RYAN P & ALYSSE N 2,104.32 

MCCARTHY REALTY TRUST 15,229.44 

MCCARTHY, GEOFFREY D & STACEY A 3,861.12 
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MCCARTHY, JENNIFER A 5,790.72 

MCCARTHY, RUTH Y & RONALD J 889.92 

MCCARTHY, SEAN  T 15,240.96 

MCCARTHY, SEAN P & KAREN S 2,133.12 

MCCARTHY, STEPHEN E & CHERI M 6,965.76 

McCarthy, Virginia 3,247.68 

MCCASKEY, III, EDWARD A 2,380.80 

MCCLELLAN, BRUCE & LINDA 3,334.08 

MCCRACKEN, KRISTEN 425.28 

MCCRAE, DOUGLAS M & VIRGINIA B 5,358.72 

MCCRILLIS, ROBERT A 131.52 

MCCRILLIS, ROBERT A 149.76 

MCCRILLIS, ROBERT A 767.04 

MCCRILLIS, ROBERT A 1,116.48 

MCCRILLIS, ROBERT A 1,265.28 

MCCRILLIS, ROBERT A 6,314.50 

MCCRILLIS, ROBERT A & SUZANNE M 102.72 

MCCRILLIS, ROBERT A & SUZANNE M 1,116.48 

MCDERMOTT, JOHN R JR & LEAH 2,539.20 

MCDEVITT, BRIAN A & JESSICA 2,841.60 

MCDONNELL, KEVIN B & MARY LORETA 4,529.28 

MCDONNELL, MARTHA & SCOTT, TIMOTHY J 2,097.60 

MCDOUGALD, FRANK A 9,780.48 

MCDOUGALD, FRANK A JR & MARTHA L 10,738.56 

MCELWEE, NEAL D & JOAN M 3,760.32 

MCEWEN, MORGAN 3,437.76 

MCGANNON, MARTHA E 2,817.60 

MCGOVERN, KEVIN M & TRACY G 5,571.84 

MCGUIRE, JANE B & ROBERT R 92.16 

MCGUIRE, JANE B & ROBERT R 2,173.44 

MCHUGH, ALFRED T 2,952.00 

MCINNIS, CRAIG W 929.28 

MCINNIS, CRAIG W & HEATHER J 3,047.04 

MCINNIS, HEATHER J 923.52 

MCKAY, LAWRENCE A & GLORIA A 3,993.22 

MCKAY, SALLY M 1,676.16 

MCKELLAR, HEATHER & MICHAEL 4,976.64 

MCKELVY, KEVIN W 3,465.60 

MCKENNEY, RAYMOND E 1,819.20 

MCKINNON, ROBERT C & GAIL P 2,500.80 

MCLAUGHLIN, CHARLES H IV & SUSAN E 2,095.68 

MCLAUGHLIN, GEORGE S JR 5,538.24 

MCLAUGHLIN, MARY T 2,752.90 

McLaughlin, O'Regan 2,034.24 

MCLAUGHLIN, ROBERT A & TRIPLETT, OLETA 5,139.84 

MCLEAN, GLADYS H 2,380.80 

MCLEAN, GLADYS H 2,418.24 

MCLEAN, GLADYS H & HARRISON G 2,290.56 

MCLUSKEY, PETER K 5,817.60 

MCMAHON, JAMES T & SUSAN W 6,631.68 

MCMAHON, SUSAN W 2,006.40 

MCMANN, JAMES A & COLLEEN P 3,712.32 

MCMULLEN, MIRRIL & COHEN, BARRIE 5,016.58 

MCNALLY, ELIZABETH A & ROBERT J 5,295.36 

MCNAMEE, AGNES C 2,817.60 

MCNELIS, SEAN & MARY 3,114.24 

MCNICHOLAS, SUZANNE E & REGIS 2,297.86 

MCPARTLAND, JOHN & PAULA J 1,589.76 

MCPHEETERS, PETER 2,139.84 

MCSWEENEY, DENIS P & CELESTE M 7,745.28 

MCTAGUE, PAUL M 4,296.00 

MCWILLIAMS FAMILY TRUST 5,647.68 

MDM REALTY, LLC 7,824.00 

MEAD, J MARTIN 2,699.52 

MEAGHER FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 5,409.60 

MEAGHER FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 7,365.12 

MEDEIROS, ROSS & KATHRYN 3,413.76 

MEEHAN MAINE REALTY TRUST 2,994.24 

MEEHAN, DAVID J 2,758.08 

MEIER FAMILY TRUST 3,340.80 

MENARD, RAYMOND I & CLAIRE D 81.60 

MERCER, GERTRUDE & HEWARD, JOSEPH 4,101.12 

MEROLLA, TODD P & KRULIS, JOSEPH J 5,076.10 

MERRILL REALTY TRUST 6,840.00 

MERRILL, GEORGE H HEIRS 105.60 

MERRILL, REBECCA A & RICHARD K 1,309.44 

MERRILL, TERRY C & CAROLINE B 3,426.24 

MERROW, WESCOTT R & ELIZABETH B 561.60 

MERROW, WESCOTT R & ELIZABETH B 3,621.12 

MERRY, JOHN C III 2,164.80 

MESERVE LANE REALTY TRUST 1,688.64 

MESSER, MARK W & CARLSON, ELIZABETH A 3,277.44 

METCALFE, MICHAEL S & JENNIFER L 2,372.16 

MEYER FAMILY REALTY TRUST 508.80 

MEYER FAMILY REALTY TRUST 10,261.44 

MEYER, COLLEEN A & CHRISTOPHER J 1,945.92 

MEYER, ELAINE A 2,393.28 

MEZOIAN DEVELOPMENT, LLC 902.40 

MICHAEL C MAKA 2019 TRUST 13,944.00 

MICHAEL S MORTON REVOCABLE TRUST 5,569.92 

MICHAUD, JOYCE M & DIMITRI M 5,525.76 

MIDDLETON, MARJORIE D & JOHN L JR 3,858.24 

MIDGLEY FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 8,536.32 

MIGNOGNA, JOHN & ROSEMARIE 4,485.12 

MIHAILOV, IGOR & KAYA, YALCIN 2,422.08 

MIKLOS MARK A & JENNIFER L 7,019.52 

MIKLOS MARK A & JENNIFER L 8,396.16 

MILBRANDT, KEITH L & CONLEY, JEAN C 6,923.52 

MILES, DANIEL F 2,005.44 

MILES, DANIEL F & ANDREA 4,031.04 

MILLARD FAMILY TRUST 6,033.60 

MILLER ROGER H & LISA R 4,636.80 

MILLER, BARRY M & STACY 3,051.84 

MILLER, DOUGLAS & SUSANNE 13,687.68 

MILLER, G CHRISTOPHER & D KIMBERLEY 2,100.48 

MILLER, JUDITH L 4,781.76 

MILLER, KAREN A 7,885.44 

MILLER, PAUL J & JESSICA D 2,418.24 

MILLS ROAD DEVELOPMENT, LLC 3,710.40 

MILLS ROAD, LLC 786.24 
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MILLS ROAD, LLC 792.96 

MILLS ROAD, LLC 796.80 

MILLS ROAD, LLC 876.48 

MILLS, ROBERT T & UGOLINI, ELAINE M 4,324.80 

MILTON, KATHLEEN M 1,718.40 

MINCHELLO, JAMES B & LINDA J 26,415.36 

MISTRETTA, DAVID A & RITA H 2,015.04 

MITCHELL, BRADFORD W & HEIDI B 2,092.80 

MITCHELL, JOSEPH F & LORD, LAURIE S 3,655.68 

MITCHELL, ROBERT J & DANA, DEBORAH A 4,358.40 

MITCHELL, STEPHEN & SUZAN 2,879.04 

MOAN, JOSEPH & JANET 6,105.60 

MOBILE STUDIO CONSTRUCTION, INC 1,992.96 

MOBLEY, ALICE BURR 4,570.56 

MOIR, DONNA  L 1,997.76 

MOLINARI, MARIO W 2,875.20 

MOLLER FAMILY KENNEBUNKPORT RE TRUST 15,138.24 

MOLLOY, JOHN W & KATHLEEN S 6,815.04 

MOLSON FAMILY REAL ESTATE TRUST 1,809.60 

MOLSON, GEOFFREY E 17,230.08 

MONIKA K BONSER TRUST 3,753.60 

MONTAGNER, MARC & LAROSE, MARY KAE 37,297.92 

MONTEMERLO, KEVIN R 6,816.96 

MOODY, KAVIN W & VIRGINIA C 4,567.68 

MOONEY, LOUISE J 397.44 

MOONEY, LOUISE J 987.84 

MOORE FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST 4,032.96 

MOORE, JOHN & ANN MARIE TRUSTEES 3,540.48 

MOORE-RENFROM, SHERRY & PAUL W 8,447.04 

MORAN, JOHN T & BEDELIA A 5,269.44 

MORELLI, MICHAEL J & KERRY H 4,090.56 

MORGAN RICHARDSON REVOCABLE TRUST 1,189.44 

MORGAN RICHARDSON REVOCABLE TRUST 1,266.24 

MORGAN RICHARDSON REVOCABLE TRUST 4,614.72 

MORGAN, CAROLYN M 2,555.52 

MORGAN, TREVOR D 1,193.28 

MORGENSTERN, SAUL & ROTHENSTEIN, JULIE 9,225.60 

MORIN, JOHN W 2,113.92 

MORRIS, CYNTHIA P & STEPHEN A 5,609.28 

MORRISSEY, MARY ANN & JOHN 4,893.12 

MORROW, DAVID & DENISE 6,445.44 

MORSE, ALBERT H & PRISCILLA G 2,383.68 

MORSE, DEAN 1,193.28 

MORTON, ALISON J 1,153.92 

MORTON, WENDY 1,184.64 

MOSER, STEPHEN J & DENISE A 3,853.44 

MOSHER, RAYMOND E SR & DOROTHY M 1,134.72 

MOTES, HEATHER 1,891.20 

MOULTON, CHRISTOPHER H & MAIRIN E 4,809.60 

MOULTON, JEAN C 2,918.40 

MOUNTAIN TOPS 63.55 

MOUNTAIN TOPS INC 4,472.64 

MOYER, DANIEL T & ELIZABETH T 3,456.96 

MULBERGER, VIRGINIA A. 3,827.52 

MULLEN, SEAN P & MARY LOU J 2,968.32 

MULLER, BARBARA ANN 3,566.40 

MULLIGAN, JAMES L JR & GWEN L 3,317.76 

MULLIN, JEROME L 2,917.44 

MULVIHILL, KRISTEN ANDREA 15,072.00 

MULVIHILL, MARY JANE & JASON D 17,675.52 

MUNSON, CHRISTOPHER & SUSAN 5,096.64 

MURPHY, ANGELA C & THOMAS W 6,486.72 

MURPHY, CHARLES M 9,274.56 

MURPHY, EDMUND J & ELAINE 3,134.40 

MURPHY, PAUL P 4,391.04 

MURPHY, PAUL P & GOLDMAN, MEGAN M 1,319.04 

MURPHY, ROBERT & ELIZABETH LIVING TRUST 25,226.88 

MURPHY, TIMOTHY J & WENDY 2,811.84 

MURRAY, DEAN L & AMANDA D 5,957.76 

MURRAY, ERIN W 2,250.24 

MURRAY, JR.,  JAMES M 2,123.52 

MURRAY, MARGARET J 4,595.14 

MUSE, CHRISTOPHER P & MINDY M 4,091.52 

MUSE, THOMAS M & SUE ELLEN 1,015.68 

MUSE, THOMAS W & SUE ELLEN 5,752.32 

MUSETTE LLC 266.11 

MYATT, THOMAS C 5,426.88 

MYLES, SCOTT A & LANG, AMY M 5,105.28 

NABOR TRUST 1,390.08 

NADEAU, MARK E & CHRISTINA B 11,126.40 

NAGLE, JOHN CO 1,415.04 

NAGORNIAK, JILL H 4,589.76 

NAMIOTKA, MICHAEL J & KAREN 3,671.04 

NANCY B ELLIS CHILDRENS TRUST 8,244.48 

NANCY R O'NEILL REVOCABLE TRUST 4,923.84 

NANCY S. BRAVIN REVOCABLE TRUST 5,828.16 

NAPOLITANO FAMILY TRUST 11,665.92 

NASH, LINDA 443.23 

NASH, LINDA 521.95 

NASH, LINDA S 14,256.96 

NASSAU TOWER REALTY, LLC 5,116.80 

NATHAN A SHMALO REALTY, LLC 5,400.00 

NATIONAL BANK & TRUST CO. 13,794.24 

NATOLI, JOAN E & RICHARD 7,795.20 

NC & MM MANAGEMENT, LLC 7,765.44 

NEFF, KIMBERLY 2,383.68 

NELLIGAN, JAMES P & KATHRYN A 3,631.68 

NELSON, CLIFTON A JR & DANIELS, ALYSON 4,947.84 

NELSON, EDWARD J & JOYCE G 2,556.48 

NELSON, ELLEN 1,812.48 

NELSON, THOMAS J. & LOEFFLER, KATHRYN 2,744.64 

NESBIT, CATHERINE A 4,567.68 

NEST, BENJAMIN F JR 2,606.40 

NEUFELD, THOMAS & PATMAN, ANN 3,718.08 

NEVINS, BRIAN & INGRID 3,662.40 

NEVINS, KRISTAN K & KYLE W 21,900.48 

NEW POINT, LLC 1,684.80 

NEW, COREY A & KARLA H 3,489.60 

NEWCOMB, CHARLES & DUFFY, CATHERINE 7,131.84 

NICHOLAS FRANK SERIGNESE REVOCABLE TRUST 7,502.40 
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NICHOLS REALTY TRUST 1,817.28 

NICHOLS ROSEMARY DICKINSON 1,132.80 

NICKERSON, ALAN A & ARPINO, LAWRENCE R 1,945.15 

NICKERSON, GARY W & KAREN L 7,461.12 

NICKERSON, SCOTT C & PAMELA A 3,303.36 

NICKERSON, WILLIAM M & LAURA 4,262.40 

NICKERSON-SMITH, MARJORIE 5,370.24 

NICOLETA THEODOSIOU TRUST 11,977.92 

NIEUWKERK, WILLEM & DEBORAH 3,825.60 

NIEUWKERK, WILLEM F & MARIA N 7,534.08 

NILAND, ALLISON & HANNON, KEVIN 2,058.24 

NILAND, WILLIAM C & PATRICIA A 2,191.68 

NINE OLD FORT, LLC 9,085.44 

NIXON, WILLIAM A & KATHERINE O 17,720.64 

NOBLE, KENT J & KIMBERLY A 4,526.40 

NOBLE, SANDRA E 3,500.16 

NOEL, WILLIAM D 12,321.60 

NOMAD REAL ESTATE, LLC 5,184.96 

NOMPLEGGI, S JOHN & PAULA 1,828.42 

Nonantum Resort 390.82 

NONIS, GREGORY & E H 908.16 

NORBY, DORSET 3,290.88 

NORMANDIN, KELLY G 1,216.32 

NORTHERN NEW ENGLAND TELEPHONE 2,853.12 

NORTHERN RIDGE REALTY TRUST 91.20 

NORTON, MARY LOUISE 4,128.00 

NORTON, ROBERT & LYNNE 485.18 

NORWOOD ROAD REALTY TRUST 4,085.76 

NOTMAN, DONALD D JR & PAMELA B 10,837.44 

NOTMAN, GERTRUDE, HEIRS 11,828.16 

NOVAK, JOSEPH & CARTER, KARIE 4,019.52 

NOVOTNY JAMES F & MARILYN S 3,076.80 

NOWAK, LORI 4,070.40 

NOWAK, LORI 4,116.48 

NOWAK, LORI A & SOLARI, TAYLOR 3,183.36 

NOYES, JONATHAN E & MONICA B L 5,111.04 

NOYES, MONICA B L 1,349.76 

NOYES, MONICA CUSTODIAN 1,415.04 

NUCHAI-HOPKINS LIVING TRUST 1,070.40 

NUNAN, CHRISTOPHER J 2,835.84 

NUNAN, ELEANOR 1,066.56 

NUNAN, ELEANOR 2,210.50 

NUNAN, JONATHAN H & JILLIAN M 942.72 

NUNAN, KEITH B & KIMBERLY A 2,989.44 

NUNAN, KEITH B & RICHARD C 3,190.08 

NUNAN, NORMAN H & SHIRLEY C 2,286.34 

NUNAN, RICHARD C & TERRI L 2,029.44 

NUNANS LOBSTER HUT 59.62 

NUTTER FAMILY RESIDENCE TRUST 2,907.84 

NYPE, RUSSELL L 4,255.68 

NYPE, RUSSELL L 5,484.48 

OAKLEY, GLEN C & JANE M 6,063.36 

OAKLEY, GLEN C & JANE M 6,984.96 

O'BRIEN CHILDRENS GIFT TRUST 3,422.40 

O'BRIEN, ANDREW L & LISA A 5,093.76 

O'BRIEN, CHRISTINA  D 1,438.08 

O'BRIEN, CORNELIUS L & ELEANOR G 4,402.56 

O'BRIEN, PATRICK G & GERALDINE 12,165.12 

O'BRIEN, SUSAN & GUARINO LUCAS 5,105.28 

OCEAN AVE REALTY TRUST 13,351.68 

OCEAN AVENUE REALTY TRUST 4,851.84 

OCEAN NATIONAL BANK 5,830.08 

OCEAN RENTAL LLC 15,917.76 

OCEAN VIEW TRUST 5,810.88 

OCEAN WOODS RESORT 387.07 

OCEAN WOODS RESORT OWNER, LLC 17,124.48 

OCEANS 7, LLC 22,571.52 

O'CONNOR, ALEXEI L 1,184.64 

O'CONNOR, CHRISTOPHER & JANA 4,082.88 

O'CONNOR, ERIN M 4,230.72 

O'CONNOR, JAY JR & MICHAEL 9,951.36 

O'CONNOR, JO-ANNE F 3,511.68 

O'CONNOR, MALYSA 3,722.88 

O'CONNOR, TERRENCE G & LEAHEY, JOAN M 17,791.68 

ODDY, JOHN G III & DIANE M 3,785.28 

O'DONNELL, JOHN M & FERREIRO, ROXANA M 22,080.96 

O'DONNELL, JOHN M & FERREIRO, ROXANA M 22,560.96 

O'DONNELL, THOMAS M 5,656.32 

ODORSKI, DAVID & DIANE 494.69 

OGDEN, BENJAMIN M 3,555.84 

OGDEN, DAVID 2,550.72 

OGDEN, JENNIFER 122.88 

O'HARA, JOHN & BARBARA 5,996.16 

O'HARA, KARL J & BARBARA 4,545.60 

OLD FORT INN 2,621.47 

OLD OAKS TRUST 8,594.50 

OLD SALT PANTRY & GIFTS 25.44 

OLD SCHOOL HOUSE FARM LLC 43.20 

OLSEN, ERIC & SALLY 3,837.12 

O'NEILL, EUGENE F JR 7,406.40 

O'NEILL, LINDA D 1,961.28 

O'NEILL, LINDA D 10,458.24 

O'NEILL, LINDA D 17,359.68 

O'NEILL, TIMOTHY J 95,519.04 

O'NEILL, TIMOTHY J & LINDA D 6,707.52 

ORAHAM, STEVEN K & SAMSON, JAMES I 4,370.88 

ORANSKY, LORI L 3,198.72 

ORCIANI, JANE A 1,337.28 

O'REILLY, ROBERT & SEIFRIDSBERGER, WALTR 2,378.88 

ORKNEY FAMILY TRUST 2,497.92 

ORMSBY, CHARLES C & COLLEEN 4,366.08 

ORRINO, ANTHONY J 7,325.76 

ORY RESIDENCE TRUST OF 2010 23,754.24 

ORY, ANDREW DAVID & HAMMETT, LINDA GAIL 423.36 

ORY, ANDREW DAVID & HAMMETT, LINDA GAIL 16,702.08 

ORZECH, THEODORE R 529.92 

O'SHEA, KELLY O 2,692.80 

OSICH, JOSHUA M & JESSICA C 2,922.24 

OSTHUES, ROBERT H & DAVIS, BETH A 6,024.00 

O'SULLIVAN, AMY 3,182.40 
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OTIS FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 3,964.80 

OTIS, KAREN L & JAMES C 288.96 

O'TOOLE, TIMOTHY & DIONNE K 2,818.56 

OTTMAN, MARK S 2,574.72 

OTTS, MARY ESTHER 5,131.20 

OWEN B PICKUS TRUST 10,755.84 

OWEN, ANDREW P 5,215.68 

OWEN, CHRISTOPHER JOHN & MARY HELEN 4,790.40 

P & K REALTY TRUST 2,737.92 

PAGANO, ROBERT & DIANE 7,129.92 

PAGE, BRYAN 3,161.28 

PAGE, ERIC I & KELLY N 284.16 

PAGE, GILLET T 11,444.16 

PAINE, W ROBERT & EVELYN 3,152.26 

PAINTER, STEPHEN H III & CORBEY, ANN K 7,580.16 

PALAIMA, ALPHONSE J & LEONORA 7,336.90 

PALEY FAMILY HOMES 19,241.28 

PALMER, GRETCHEN E 3,827.52 

PALMISANO, SAMUEL & GAIER N 22,953.60 

PAMELA E PHINNEY 2017 TRUST 5,715.84 

PAMELA T REYNOLDS REVOCABLE TRUST 6,346.56 

PANAGIOTU, MATTHEW W 18,854.40 

PANAMA, LLC 6,507.84 

PANETTA, DANIELLE M 3,987.84 

PANTING, ROY A & TOBY J 7,285.44 

PAPAZ, G MICHAEL & JANE 5,567.04 

PAPPAGEORGE, PATRICIA 4,829.76 

PAPPALARDO, ELAINE R 2,537.28 

PAPPAS, ROBERT A 2,948.16 

PAPPAS, ROBERT A & KATHLEEN A 1,385.28 

PAQUETTE, EMILY 502.46 

PAQUETTE, MARK R & CYNTHIA S 3,789.12 

PARDY, RICHARD  E 3,220.80 

PARENT, KAREN J & GILMAN B 2,396.16 

PARIS, JONATHAN B 5,790.72 

PARISEN, MARGARET A & RICHARD 3,367.30 

PARK, SUSIE S 3,034.56 

PAROLIN, JAMES & NANCY TRUSTEES 6,718.08 

PARRA, SALVADORE J III 2,207.04 

PARRISH, WILLIAM D & SHARON S 3,636.48 

PARSONS, BRADFORD D 2,956.80 

PARSONS, LISA SOTIR 15,559.68 

PATEL, TEJASH J & SUPPER, KERI 1,409.28 

PATRICIA A GALLAGHER REVOCABLE TRUST 12,516.48 

PATRICIA D SKEIRIK TRUST 7,350.72 

PATRICIA L DUKAKIS 2009 REVOCABLE TRUST 3,948.48 

PATRICIA STAPLES FAMILY RESIDENCE TRUST 2,185.92 

PATRICIA T SMITH REVOCABLE TRUST 9,280.32 

PATRICIA WHITE REVOCABLE TRUST 6,973.44 

PATRICK E ECHLIN LIVING TRUST 3,419.52 

PATRICK REGAN IRREVOCABLE TRUST 6,664.32 

PATTILLO, LINDA L 10,001.28 

PATTISON, TIMOTHY 3,881.28 

PATTY ANN BENORE TRUST 11,344.32 

PAUL & AUDREY LAKIN REVOCABLE TRUST 3,219.84 

PAUL & AUDREY LAKIN REVOCABLE TRUST 7,881.60 

PAUL L. MAHONEY REVOCABLE TRUST 9,202.56 

PAULA KELSON 2018 REVOCABLE TRUST 5,160.00 

PAYNE, LEO R & SUZANNE M 3,695.04 

PEARLMUTTER, NINA & FRINK, ORRIN 8,167.68 

PEARSE, DEBORAH M & DONATH, BRUCE R 4,811.52 

PEARSON, JACQUELINE W 1,414.08 

PEEL, NANCY B 6,915.84 

PELLETIER FAMILY 2020 REVOCABLE TRUST 5,634.24 

PELLETIER, DAVID G & SARRETTE, SUSAN M 4,157.76 

PELLETIER, THOMAS J & CYNTHIA L 3,886.08 

PENDERGAST, CHERYL L & BAKER, MORGAN 6,428.16 

PENDERGAST, CRAIG A 179.52 

PENDERGAST, CRAIG A 4,172.16 

PENDERGAST, CRAIG A REVOCABLE TRUST 3,711.36 

PEOPLES UNITED BANK 470.59 

PEPIN, KARL A 2,304.00 

PERIER, MAURA C & FRANCIS L., JR 10,116.48 

PERKINS REALTY TRUST 4,383.36 

PERKINS, CARLA L 3,748.80 

PERKINS, DONALD F & JEAN M 4,231.68 

PERKINS, DONALD F & JEAN M 6,137.86 

PERKINS, GILMAN C 23,668.80 

PERLMUTTER, RICHARD M & MAUREEN 10,789.44 

PERLOFF, DAVID S & SANDRA L TRUSTEES 23,745.60 

PERRI, MEEGHAN 4,314.24 

PERRY, CHRISTOPHER L & ANN MARIE 4,644.48 

PERRY, JANET 4,269.12 

PERRY, RICHARD J & CARLSON, ELAINE 5,989.44 

PETE MURPHY REVOCABLE TRUST 6,845.76 

PETER & JENNIFER WASSERMAN TRUST 16,896.96 

PETER BOGINSKI TRUST 6,847.68 

PETER E WEISS LIVING TRUST 5,113.92 

PETER G TALMAGE REVOC TRUST 1,625.28 

PETER G TALMAGE REVOC TRUST 2,296.32 

PETER H & JOANNE D TANNER TRUST 18,662.40 

PETER H MCDONALD TRUST 4,761.60 

PETER J MURPHY TRUST AGREEMENT 6,901.44 

PETERS, SUSAN BABCOCK 134.40 

PETERSEN, BRAD M 1,088.64 

PETERSON, ANNE 9,566.40 

PETERSON, DONNA M 1,206.72 

PETERSON, LAURIE E 4,384.32 

PETERSON, MARK A & ANNE M 25,181.76 

PETROS FAMILY TRUST 7,419.84 

PETSCHEK, ROLFE G & JANE P 6,527.04 

PETTEGROW, BRENT A 3,577.92 

PETTEGROW, MARK D & WITEK, JAMES 5,370.24 

PFISTER, PETER B 7,092.48 

PHILBIN, THIA M 2,058.24 

PHILBRICK, CATHY A 1,408.32 

PHILBRICK, KEVIN L 2,792.64 

PHILBRICK, MATTHEW 3,585.60 

PHILBRICK, SHARON J 2,474.88 

PHILBRICK, TERRY & RENAE 2,474.88 
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PHILIP J MCCABE REVOCABLE TRUST 2,074.56 

PHILIP J MCCABE REVOCABLE TRUST 2,163.84 

PHILIP J MCCABE REVOCABLE TRUST 6,164.16 

PHILIP J MCCABE REVOCABLE TRUST 42,911.04 

PHILLIPS TRUST 21,621.12 

PHILLIPS, JOHN S 4,191.94 

PHILLIPS, LELAND A 2,607.36 

PHILLIPS, NICHOLAS & JUDITH 6,831.36 

PHILLIPS, ROBIN 3,185.28 

PHILLIPS, WESLEY H & ELIZABETH A 7,053.12 

PHIN'S LANDING 8,675.52 

PIASECKI, JOHN J JR 3,350.40 

PIER 77/THE RAMP GRILL 787.20 

PIERCE, GLORIA F 1,982.40 

PIERCE, MARY T 16,950.72 

PIERCE, PHILLIP T & PATRICE 3,582.72 

PIERRE BOULANGER LIVING TRUST 6,331.78 

PILCHER, DEBORAH 3,129.60 

PIMLEY, SCOTT M & LANNING, LORRI L 4,207.68 

PINCKNEY FAMILY TRUST & ELLIS, JEAN 5,910.72 

PINKHAM, JASON 7,782.72 

PIRYLIS, TRACY 1,818.24 

PLAISTED, SCOTT L 2,488.32 

PLAMONDON, CHRISTOPHER J 2,487.36 

PLATTS, RYAN 688.32 

PLOURDE, PAUL A & WESTCOTT, LANA M 2,441.28 

PLUNKETT, ROBERT E & CATHERINE 3,992.64 

PMC REALTY 16,050.24 

POCHEBIT, STEPHEN M & CELINE M 18,343.68 

PODOLSKY REVOCABLE TRUST 2,202.24 

POINT ARUNDEL SEASCAPE, LLC 5,015.04 

POIRIER FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 5,366.40 

POLI, JO ANN 2,875.20 

POLI, RITA 618.24 

POLO, JANET 1,342.08 

POLO, JANET M 1,339.20 

POLO, WILLIAM 1,341.12 

PONDVIEW PROPERTIES, LLC 1,113.60 

PONDVIEW PROPERTIES, LLC 3,742.08 

PONDVIEW PROPERTIES, LLC 4,236.48 

POORE, NATHAN & JENNIFER 2,751.36 

POPE, SHELDON P & HAMMOND, MELANIE R 2,962.56 

POPO, LLC 3,544.32 

PORELL, TRACY A & TRACY L 6,120.00 

PORPOISE PLACE PROPERTIES, LLC 6,065.28 

PORT LOBSTER COMPANY 179.33 

PORTOFINO REALTY TRUST 26,852.16 

POSNANSKY, DANIEL & JUVELIS, PRISCILLA 5,285.76 

POTENZA, DANIEL P & JANET L 2,175.36 

POTTLE, GREGORY & CASS-POTTLE, SALLIE 11,074.56 

POWELL LIVING TRUST 2,186.88 

POWELL LIVING TRUST 6,632.64 

POWELL, DAVID GOULD & ELAINE CATHERINE 4,398.72 

POWELL, JULIE M 1,699.20 

POWER, MAURICE E & JANET L 1,196.16 

POWER, ROBERT A & ANN E 5,343.36 

PRASKAVICH, CRAIG S 2,806.08 

PREBLE, GAIL G 5,459.52 

PRENDERGAST, MICHAEL D 1,302.72 

PRENDERGAST, MICHAEL D JR & KATHRYN L 3,301.44 

PRESCOTT, ROBERT F & MARY ELLEN 4,534.08 

PREVET, JAMES & PATRICIA 3,534.72 

PRIANI, KEVIN A & NICOLE 3,188.16 

PRICE, EUGENE THOMAS & KRISTEN E 5,741.76 

PRICHARD BRIAN R & LINDSEY C 5,334.72 

PROCTOR, HIRAM HEIRS 376.32 

PROTRAK REVOCABLE TRUST OF 2004 3,677.76 

PULSIFER, DAPHNE & BATES, DANIEL W 3,666.24 

PUTNAM, JOSEPHINE F 1,962.24 

PUTNAM, JOSEPHINE F & ARNOLD 1,928.64 

PUTNAM, THOMAS J 2,832.96 

QUEEN, GRACE EST 5,897.28 

QUEZADA, ANNETTE P 7,055.04 

QUIGLEY, LESLIE CARGILL & WILLIAM F 7,254.72 

QUIGLEY, STEVEN F & KAREN I 3,156.48 

R & B HEINEMANN, LLC 1,470.72 

R GUY BOYLE PERSONAL RESIDENCE TRUST 29,787.84 

RADFORD, JOEY D & MEREDITH C 3,345.60 

RADHAM PARK PROPERTIES LIMITED 2,398.08 

RAINES, KRISTEN B 16,244.16 

RAINES, MERILEE 191.04 

RAINES, MERILEE 1,974.72 

RAINES, MERILEE 8,241.60 

RAMSEY, DAVID L & TRACY A 93.12 

RAMSEY, DAVID L & TRACY A 10,298.88 

RAMSEY, DAVID L & TRACY A 13,291.20 

RAMSEY, ROBERT J & MCHUGH, KRISTIN 5,986.56 

RAMSEY, THOMAS M ET AL 16,416.96 

RANDALL, DEBORAH 2,629.44 

RANDALL, KAREN 2,976.96 

RANDALL, KENNETH W & BEVERLY 2,289.60 

RANDALL, LINDA A 2,107.20 

RANNEY, HEATHER 1,880.64 

RANWELL, CHRISTOPHER J & NICOLA A 2,499.84 

RAVANELLO, RENATO TRUSTEE 2,514.24 

RAY, LORI A 14,296.32 

RAYMOND BARRETT PERS RESIDENCE TRUST 14,832.96 

RAYMOND E HOPKINS REVOCABLE TRUST 4,822.08 

RAYMOND F WHITE FAMILY TRUST 8,074.56 

RAYMOND SHMALO REVOC LIVING TRUST 13,809.60 

RAYMOND, BRYAN 2,247.36 

RAYMOND, JENNIFER & WILSON, CAMERON 2,576.64 

RAYMOND, KYLIE A 1,680.96 

RAYMOND, KYLIE A 3,932.16 

RAYMOND, MARTINE B 3,128.64 

RAYMOND, PETER W 1,510.08 

RAYNOR FAMILY TRUST 2014 2,374.08 

RAYNOR KENNETH C & ANNE F 4,156.80 

RAYWORTH, DOUGLAS W & LINDA L 3,229.44 

READ, REBECCA & JAMES 3,158.40 
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READ, STEPHEN C & KATHERINE J 4,344.00 

REAGAN, JEAN M 1,960.90 

REAGAN, MARIAN A & CHRISTOPHER 2,267.52 

REALE NANCY & THEODORE 6,590.40 

REALE, NANCY M & THEODORE J 11,328.96 

REARDON, PAUL J 6,032.64 

REBECCA A GOSSELIN REALTY TRUST 2,841.60 

REBECCA B SHEPARD REVOCABLE TRUST 6,772.80 

RED BUILDING TRUST 4,441.92 

REDDEN CHILDREN TRUST 3,740.16 

REDMOND, JOHN J & STEPHANIE T 2,020.80 

REDMOND, JOHN J & STEPHANIE T 5,360.64 

REDMOND, MICHAEL P & KAREN E 2,343.36 

REEVES, ROBYN 4,338.24 

REGAN FAMILY TRUST 4,297.92 

REGER FAMILY TRUST 9,332.16 

REID, GREGORY W & LYNN I 1,007.04 

REID, GREGORY W & LYNN I 3,804.48 

RENSEL, JOHN R & WIGLE, CHRISTOPHER C 3,632.64 

RENY, MARTIN A 5,224.32 

REVOCABLE TRUST OF ALICE L ROSE 2,477.76 

REYNOLDS, ANNE 17,620.80 

REYNOLDS, GARRETT 5,682.24 

REYNOLDS, LEIGH L 5,508.48 

RHUMB LINE MOTOR LODGE 42.62 

RHUMB LINE MOTOR LODGE INN 25,371.84 

RICE, LOUISE S 1,378.56 

RICE, ROBERT 14,396.16 

RICE, STEPHEN H & LOUISE S 60.48 

RICE, STEPHEN H & LOUISE S 3,036.48 

RICH, JENNIFER L 4,465.92 

RICHARD & REVA FETZNER ME REALTY TRUST 271.68 

RICHARD & REVA FETZNER ME REALTY TRUST 4,667.52 

RICHARD A YEAGER FAMILY TRUST 11,351.04 

RICHARD D O'LEARY REVOCABLE TRUST 5,065.92 

RICHARD F GREENE TRUST 2,230.08 

RICHARD T STEIGER FAMILY IRR TRUST 5,736.00 

RICHARD, CATHERINE A 1,501.44 

RICHARD, CATHERINE A & GERALD M 5,847.36 

RICHARDS, SUSAN H 4,284.48 

RICHARDSON FAMILY IRREVOCABLE TRUST 3,160.32 

RICHARDSON, JUDITH 6,670.08 

RICHMOND, LILI 773.76 

RICKER, ROBERT & MARY 2,473.92 

RIDINGS, ROSEANN M & MACHADO, ROBERT B 2,047.68 

RIDLON, GARY & MARJORY 2,606.98 

RIDLON, GARY B 378.24 

RIEDEL, ERIC J & LAURIE 2,141.76 

RIGGIERI LIVING TRUST 6,468.48 

RILEY, DANIEL  P 1,246.08 

RIMMER FAMILY SPOUTING ROCK TRUST 17,328.96 

RINALDI, JOHN F & POWELL, BRIAN 4,613.76 

RINEHART, DONALD J & CHRISTINE M 4,349.76 

RIPTON, JOHN & BARBARA 3,468.48 

RISIGO, LAWRENCE J & SUSAN P 5,992.32 

RIVERSIDE COTTAGE, LLC 3,401.28 

RIVERVIEW, LLC 8,666.88 

RIZZO, BRENDA L ET AL 1,617.60 

RIZZO, JOSEPH A 1,087.68 

RIZZO, MICHAEL J 1,320.96 

RIZZOTTI, DANA J & MCCAFFREY, ERIKA M 2,453.76 

ROACH, WILLIAM N 2,356.80 

ROBER F. ALMEDER IRREVOCABLE TRUST 6,803.52 

ROBERGE, RICHARD J & ELAINE J 8,760.96 

ROBERGE, SCOTT D & DIANE L 2,554.56 

ROBERT & ANN H MURPHY IRREV TRUST 6,376.32 

ROBERT & JANE GARVEY REVOC TRUST 3,343.68 

ROBERT & JANE GARVEY REVOC TRUST 7,360.32 

ROBERT & JANE GARVEY REVOC TRUST 18,808.32 

ROBERT & JUNE HERRON IRREVOCABLE TRUST 4,898.88 

ROBERT B MEYER REVOCABLE TRUST 1,624.32 

ROBERT C BLANKS REVOCABLE TRUST 6,045.12 

ROBERT E ANUSZEWSKI LIVING TRUST 3,285.12 

ROBERT E ANUSZEWSKI LIVING TRUST 3,317.76 

ROBERT F. ALMEDER IRREVOCABLE TRUST 16,674.24 

ROBERT H BROWN INC 435.26 

ROBERT H PEARCE TRUST 1,777.92 

ROBERT H PEARCE TRUST 6,996.48 

ROBERT HEATON TRUST 4,312.32 

ROBERT J & DIANE P BALSIS REALTY TRUST 5,655.36 

ROBERT J PREBLE LIVING TRUST 887.04 

ROBERT J WASKIEWICZ REV TRUST 5,888.64 

ROBERT JOB IV 2012 REVOCABLE TRUST 3,465.60 

ROBERT JOB IV 2012 REVOCABLE TRUST 12,926.40 

ROBERT L DELHOME FAMILY TRUST 3,222.72 

ROBERT M BAYLIS REVOCABLE TRUST 16,098.24 

ROBERT M BAYLIS REVOCABLE TRUST 23,539.20 

ROBERT R FORSBERG REVOC TRUST 7,022.40 

ROBERTS, EVERETT L 1,290.24 

ROBERTS, EVERETT L 6,603.84 

ROBERTS, FREDERICK N 538.56 

ROBERTS, SUSAN B 3,511.68 

ROBINSON, DAVIS R & SUZANNE W 3,911.04 

ROBINSON, DAVIS R & SUZANNE W 6,815.04 

ROBINSON, PETER D & ELIZABETH 4,045.44 

ROCHE, MATHEW R & KELLY M 5,280.96 

ROCK LEDGE, LLC 22,017.60 

ROCKY COAST REALTY LLC 717.12 

ROCOCO ICE CREAM 86.11 

RODGERS, ALLAN G 4,970.88 

RODIGER, ALBERT A 6,307.20 

RODIGER, WILLIAM K 7,220.16 

ROGERS, DENNIS A & GRAY, SUSAN S 2,799.36 

ROGERS, MARK J & ALISON S 5,659.20 

ROHRBACKER, LESLIE C & NEIL 7,941.12 

ROLAND F EMERO TRUST 1,202.88 

ROLLER, MARK A & GAIL L 2,713.92 

ROLLERI, ANDREA & VAN SICKLE, DENNIS E 10,304.64 

ROMA PIZZA/MANGIAMO 33.60 

ROMANO, DOMINICK M 3,114.24 
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ROMINE, DONALD J & RHODA M 2,833.92 

ROMINE, DONALD J & RHODA M 8,883.84 

RONAN, CHRISTOPHER J & JANET M 2,572.80 

ROONEY, LINDA M 5,858.88 

ROPER, MATTHEW A & KRISTIN 4,128.96 

ROSLYN R WILDES REVOCABLE TRUST 2,160.58 

ROSS, AMY A & KENNETH L 13,261.44 

ROSS, DAVID S & MELISSA 5,952.96 

ROSS, FREDERICK & MILLIGAN, ELIZABETH 3,469.44 

ROSS, LAURA J & GERARD 3,095.04 

ROSS, LAURA J & GERARD 6,350.02 

ROSS, MARY E 4,286.40 

ROSS, STEPHEN J & HOLLY C 2,155.20 

ROSSI, BRIAN M 4,324.80 

ROSSICS, DAVID J & NICOLE J 2,744.64 

ROTE, ESTHER LOUISE 960.96 

ROTHBURD, CRAIG E 8,176.32 

ROTHROCK, EILEEN & STEVEN H 2,263.68 

ROUSSEAU, DOUGLAS E 5,349.12 

ROWELL-VERALLO, VERMEN 100.80 

ROWELL-VERALLO, VERMEN 4,705.92 

ROYER, BERNARD E & ANNIE 4,864.32 

RPF, LLC 1,759.68 

RPF, LLC 22,104.00 

RUBERO, DEBORAH 2,180.16 

RUBIN, BENJAMIN & KENNEY, TARA 5,345.28 

RUBIN, PETER 3,571.20 

RUEL, JENNIFER A & RICHARD R 3,695.04 

RUGGLES TURBATS CREEK LAND TRUST 550.08 

RUGGLES TURBATS CREEK LAND TRUST 3,054.72 

RUSCONI, MARK & BRIDGE, MARY 2,974.08 

RUSKOSKI, LINDA M 6,573.12 

RUSSELL, LLC 2,458.56 

RUSSELL, THOMAS 3,433.92 

RUSSO, MARK J & NANCY A 5,246.40 

RUSSOTTO, ALINE 5,580.48 

RYAN, BRENDAN T 8,854.08 

RYAN, CHRISTINE M & STEPHEN F 3,395.52 

RYAN, TRACY M & JOSEPH 4,608.00 

RYBCZYK, STEPHEN M & CAROLE A 7,610.88 

RYDER, JANE F & EARLY, RUTH A 2,889.60 

SAAD, LISA & GABRIEL 517.15 

SABALL, JUSTIN & DEBORAH 112.32 

SABALL, JUSTIN & DEBORAH 3,298.56 

SABOSKI, ELEANOR M 798.72 

SABOSKI, ELEANOR M 1,836.48 

SAHIN, KENAN E 1,933.44 

SAHIN, KENAN E 12,426.24 

SAHIN, KENT E 13,787.52 

SAINT-AMOUR, JOHN R & BARBARA L 2,878.08 

SALEM CAPITAL GROUP, LLC 5,446.08 

SALO, JOHN E & KRISTINE E 3,772.80 

SALTER, BARRY M & MORRIS, CAROL R 4,079.04 

SALVADOR, TARA M.H.  & ERIC B. 4,740.48 

SAMPSON COLL REVOCABLE TRUST 6,621.12 

SAMPSONS COVE SHORES CONDO 4,034.88 

SAMPSONS COVE SHORES CONDO 4,111.68 

SAMPSONS COVE SHORES CONDO 4,489.92 

SAMUELS, LOIS A 730.56 

SAMUELS, WILLIAM P & LOIS ANN 9,686.40 

SANBORN REALTY TRUST 18,312.00 

SANBORN, ROBERTA A 2,134.08 

SAND DOLLAR HOLDINGS, LLC 4,972.80 

SAND POINT REALTY TRUST 20,369.28 

SANDERS, ANN C & COURNOYER, KATHLEEN 2,049.60 

SANDERS, KATHRYN J 4,530.82 

SANDERS, ROBERT W & ANN CM 2,923.20 

SANDERSON, ELEONORE P 3,665.28 

SANDIFER, MICHAEL & ALICE B TRUSTEES 20,573.76 

SANDRA J KIMPLE REVOCABLE TRUST 1,298.88 

SANDY PINES LLC 16,545.60 

SARA E SINCLAIR REVOCABLE TRUST 3,456.96 

SARAH G. MCRAE LIVING TRUST 4,012.80 

SARBACKER, MICHAEL R & DEBORAH S 2,369.28 

SARGENT, PAMELA E 1,520.64 

SAUNDERS, DANIEL J & PATRICIA L 2,613.12 

SAVAGE, LYNNSEY 3,211.20 

SAVONA, JACK & ANNE 3,031.68 

SCANLON, JANE ETHERINGTON & JAMES 2,223.36 

SCANNELL, JOHN W & BELL, LORI L 28,291.20 

SCANNELL, MARY M & MARK E 4,053.12 

SCARBOROUGH, WILLIAM B JR 4,594.56 

SCHAEFFER, JOHN A & JENNIFER GRAVES 5,471.04 

SCHAUB, JANET S & SCHAUB THOMAS F 585.60 

SCHAUB, JANET S & SCHAUB THOMAS F 1,299.84 

SCHAUB, JANET S & SCHAUB THOMAS F 1,371.84 

SCHENA, MARK & CHRISTINA 2,191.68 

SCHERER, ELIZABETH A & STEVICK, GLEN R 8,415.36 

SCHERWIN, RONALD J 3,902.40 

SCHIFF, MARK & ERICK 1,044.48 

SCHLEGEL, KAREN A 1,463.04 

SCHLEGEL, RITA A 2,567.04 

SCHLEIF, KELVIN O & STACY L 5,316.48 

SCHMALZ, CARL N JR & DOLORES T 4,842.24 

SCHMID, PETER & FARRELL, MARGARET 24,680.26 

SCHMIDT, BRUCE W & JILL K 681.60 

SCHMIDT, BRUCE W & JILL K 2,968.32 

SCHMIDT, BRYAN A & KAREN A 2,198.40 

SCHMIDT, STEPHEN R & ELIZABETH 2,664.00 

SCHMITT FAMILY TRUST 60.48 

SCHMITT FAMILY TRUST 65.28 

SCHMITT FAMILY TRUST 137.28 

SCHMITT FAMILY TRUST 198.72 

SCHMITT FAMILY TRUST 14,664.00 

SCHOENER, CAROL L 3,133.44 

SCHOFIELD, BETTE 6,606.72 

SCHOLDER, DAVID M & TARA E 3,924.48 

SCHRIESHEIM, CHESTER A & LINDA M 3,848.64 

SCHUDROFF, MICHAEL 23,792.64 

SCHUHMANN, RICHARD & HOUSER, COLLEEN 4,420.80 
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SCHUHMANN, RICHARD J 1,232.64 

SCHULER, ROBERT & LINDA 5,393.28 

SCHUMAN, JAIME S 2,162.88 

SCHURIAN, NANCY C & HERBERT G TRUSTEES 8,016.96 

SCHWARTZ, HAROLD E 4,879.68 

SCHWEMM, HEATHER 3,401.28 

SCIERA, KARI L 3,784.32 

SCIPIO REAL ESTATE INVESTMENTS LP 17,606.40 

SCOLLINS, JOHN R JR & JEAN M 5,817.60 

SCONTSAS FAMILY TRUST 3,884.16 

SCOTT A GOFFSTEIN TRUST 1,886.40 

SCOTT, DENIS & PATRICIA 2,428.80 

SCOTT, WILLIAM W & NINA SAVIN 3,793.92 

SCOTTS WOODS, LLC 1,494.72 

SCRIBNER, ROBERT H & JULIAN, CLAIRE A 6,996.48 

SEABURY, JOHN D & CAROL L 6,677.76 

SEACOAST HOLDINGS, LLC 10,098.24 

SEAN & MICHELLE DERRAH REVOCABLE TRUST 1,185.60 

SEAPORT DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 494.40 

SEAPORT DEVELOPMENT GROUP, LLC 7,512.00 

SEARLE, ROBERT & MELINDA 2,472.00 

SEASIDE HOTEL ASSOCIATES LIMITED 7,839.36 

SEASIDE HOTEL ASSOCIATES LIMITED 21,238.08 

SEASIDE HOTEL ASSOCIATES LIMITED 50,274.24 

SEASIDE SERENITY, LLC 4,459.20 

SEAVEY ENTERPRISES, LLC 1,800.96 

SEAVEY LIVING TRUST 2,768.64 

SEAVEY, H STEDMAN & ELIZABETH P 4,475.52 

SEAWARD, CLAIRE & RANSONE, JANE S 3,129.60 

SECKINGER PROPERTIES, LLC 33,290.88 

SEELEY, MARK E 1,574.40 

SEIBEL, KELLY & PETER 2,809.92 

SEITZ, BRADLEY J & HEIDI E 5,048.64 

SENNING, BENJAMIN & SARAH 2,781.12 

SENNING, BENJAMIN R & SARAH K 911.04 

SERPA, DEAN & IRENE 3,899.52 

SESSLER, STEPHEN M & ROBYN C 4,914.24 

SETTE, DANIELLE & GIANCARLO 936.96 

SEVEN SKYLINE DRIVE NOMINEE TRUST 3,242.88 

SEVERANCE, MICHAEL O & SANDRA K 581.76 

SEVERANCE, MICHAEL O & SANDRA K 4,206.34 

SHAFFER, CHRISTOPHER & MOULTON, BETTY 3,412.80 

SHAHIAN, DOUGLAS & LISA 9,685.44 

SHAKRA, LAURI A 2,424.96 

SHANNON, STEPHEN C & WINTERSON, BARBARA 122.88 

SHAPPEE, ROBERT D 3,024.00 

SHARKEY, MARGUERITE A 3,073.92 

SHARON K HAYES 2002 RESIDENCE TRUST 15,972.48 

SHAROOD, TIMOTHY J 2,229.12 

SHAROOD-DICKINSON, EMILY H 2,403.84 

SHARP, THAD J & DANIELLE 3,794.88 

SHARPE, TRACEY L 1,219.20 

SHARRI LEAR BANDEJAS LIVING TRUST 4,166.40 

SHARRON, SANDRA & JOSEPH A 4,161.60 

SHAW, ELIZABETH & DAVID W 7,298.88 

SHAW, KEITH S & SHARON L 5,250.24 

SHEA, KEVIN P & MAUREEN A 3,075.84 

SHEARER, TERRIE 3,336.96 

SHELDON, HARRY B JR & CLAIRE J 9,096.00 

SHEPARD, LINDA E 5,731.20 

SHEPHERD, HENRY H JR & JOYCE P 4,607.04 

SHERMAN KINNEY PROPERTIES II, LLC 17,661.12 

SHERMAN, ROBERT F & CAROLYN K 16,342.66 

SHERWOOD REALTY TRUST 3,408.96 

SHIELDS, LINDA C 7,160.64 

SHIVEL, GLEN L & JULIE A 4,933.44 

SHMALO FAMILY, LLC 5,185.92 

SHMALO FAMILY, LLC 5,471.04 

SHMALO FAMILY, LLC 9,096.96 

SHMALO, A NATHAN 4,665.60 

SHOOK, BARBARA A 1,674.24 

SHORE, BENJAMIN J & ROSS, ELIZABETH 6,556.80 

SHORE, WILLIAM H & ROSEMARY J 15,187.20 

SHORTHILL, DAVID W & PATRICIA M 3,813.12 

SHOTWELL, JENNIFER M 3,164.16 

SHOTWELL, JENNIFER M 3,260.16 

SHUSTER, G VIRGINIA 5,127.36 

SIDARI, JOSEPH N & KAREN O 6,484.80 

SIEGLER LIVING TRUST 11,423.04 

SIFUENTES, DEBBIE & ROBERTO 6,465.22 

SILLON, MICHAEL & MICHELLE 14,303.04 

SIMMONS, CHARLES L & KAY HR 7,434.24 

SIMMONS, RICHARD & MARGARET 3,294.72 

SIMOLA, FRANCIS L & ALICE H 1,491.84 

SIMONDS, JACQUELYN L 4,548.48 

SIMONS, LEONARD M & SHEILA T 1,473.60 

SIMPSON, KEVIN C & STEPHANIE L 3,633.60 

SIMS, TIMOTHY 9,003.84 

SINGER, KATHLEEN M 7,061.76 

SINOTTE, DANIEL A & THERESA K TRUSTEES 4,571.52 

SIPKA, ROSEANTOINETTE & BLOCK, EDWARD R 2,322.24 

SIREEN, GERALDINE F 1,992.00 

SISTERS ON THE ROCKS, LLC 5,638.08 

SKYLINE DRIVE REALTY TRUST 5,376.96 

SLAGER, RANDY J & BAIRD, SYBIL K 24,276.48 

SLARSKY, STEPHEN M & SHARON A 6,750.72 

SLOPER, JILL & MARQUIS KRISTIE 15,811.20 

SMALL-WILLIAMSON PROPERTIES, LLC 3,921.60 

SMALL-WILLIAMSON PROPERTIES, LLC 4,165.44 

SMATH, LLC 1,065.60 

SMG REVOCABLE TRUST 3,323.52 

SMG REVOCABLE TRUST 3,402.24 

SMG REVOCABLE TRUST 7,066.56 

SMITH BROOK HOLDINGS, LLC 6,628.80 

SMITH, BRIAN & LISA 5,142.72 

SMITH, BRIAN L REVOCABLE TRUST 1,092.48 

SMITH, COBY & JULIE ANNE 3,971.52 

SMITH, DAVID L & VALERIE M 3,403.20 

SMITH, ELIZABETH 10,301.76 

SMITH, ERIC G & LYN A 1,688.64 

148



SMITH, ERIC G & LYN A 2,072.64 

SMITH, FREELAND D & JOANNE 1,224.96 

SMITH, FREELAND D & JOANNE 3,962.88 

SMITH, FREELAND K & DRAKE AMY 2,308.80 

SMITH, IAN & SHONA 3,324.48 

SMITH, JOHN G & BENJAMIN ETHAN 1,171.20 

SMITH, MARGARET S 213.12 

SMITH, MARK A 6,728.64 

SMITH, MARK W 5,285.76 

SMITH, MARY C 1,202.88 

SMITH, PETER M 2,260.80 

SMITH, PETER M & NANCY A 6,658.56 

SMITH, PHILIP G 7,146.24 

SMITH, RALPH G & MARY A 533.76 

SMITH, RALPH G & MARY A 787.78 

SMITH, ROBERT N & MARY LOU 4,834.56 

SMITH, ROYAL S & ROSANNE L 1,734.72 

SMITH, SARAH E 1,397.76 

SMITH, SARAH E 4,627.20 

SMITH, SCOTT S & ROYAL S 2,800.32 

SMITH, SHAWN S & DUNBAR, ANN M 3,623.04 

SMITH, THOMAS & NEVIUS, ANN S 7,110.34 

SMITH, VIRGINIA D 121.92 

SMITH, WILLIAM H & FREELAND K 1,227.84 

SNOW, JILL K 105.60 

SNOW, JOHN ROBERTS & JENNIFER J 4,770.24 

SNUG PROPERTIES, LLC 1,387.20 

SOBEL, THEODORE 3,101.76 

SOLARI, JOHN TRUSTEE 8,849.28 

SOUCY, SUZANNE WILKINSON ET AL 6,120.96 

SOULE, LAWRENCE C III 25,320.00 

SOULE, LAWRENCE C III & ANNA C 3,012.48 

SOULE, SHARON T & CHARLES 3,210.24 

SOULE, WALTER F 409.92 

SOULE, WALTER F 4,478.40 

SOUSA FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 2,807.04 

SOUSA IRREVOCABLE TRUST 3,960.96 

SOUSA, RONALD J & PATRICIA A 8,040.96 

SOUTH CHURCH HOUSING CORP 3,324.48 

SOUTH CONGREGATIONAL CHURCH 4,421.76 

SOUTH MAINE, LLC 2,100.48 

SOUTHERN YORK PROPERTIES, LLC 7,265.28 

SPALDING, DINORAH 2,351.04 

SPALDING, DINORAH 3,614.40 

SPANG, DANIEL L 2,154.24 

SPANG, DANIEL L 2,767.68 

SPANG, JAMESON 3,841.92 

Spang, Kathleen 2,843.52 

SPANG, LOUISE D 913.92 

SPANG, LOUISE D 7,436.16 

SPANG, MARY 3,480.96 

SPANG, MICHAEL W 159.36 

SPANG, MICHAEL W & MARY 2,569.92 

SPANG, PRISCILLA A 1,779.84 

SPANG, PRISCILLA A 3,788.16 

SPANG, TIMOTHY C 2,670.72 

SPANG, TIMOTHY C & LOUISE D 6,433.92 

SPARLING, CHRISTIAN & JACQUELINE 2,261.76 

SPECTRUM NORTHEAST, LLC 90.14 

SPECTRUM NORTHEAST, LLC 8,378.69 

SPEERS, ELLIOTT C & ANNE W 7,427.52 

SPENARD, MICHAEL R & GLASER, BRIAN S 3,979.20 

SPENCER, MARY A 4,821.12 

SPENCER, NANCY C 12,189.12 

SPENCER, NANCY C & RICHARD H JR 262.08 

SPENCER, NANCY C & RICHARD H JR 3,799.68 

SPENLINHAUER, STEPHEN P 17,695.68 

SPENLINHAUER, STEPHEN P & ALICIA F 34,941.12 

SPICEWOOD MAINE, LLC 7,032.96 

SPILLANE, RICHARD J & CHRISTINE E 25,185.60 

SPITA, JOHN E 3,603.84 

SPOTTISWOODE, JOHN P 2,715.84 

SPOTTISWOODE, JOHN P 2,868.48 

SPOTTISWOODE, JOHN P 3,102.72 

SPOTTISWOODE, JOHN P 4,608.00 

SPRAGUE, STEPHEN O & MARGARET M 4,257.60 

SPRINGER, LEIGHANNE R 116.16 

SPRUCE CALLI, LLC 2,235.84 

SPUGNARDI DINO A 8,255.04 

SPUGNARDI, DINO A 7,025.28 

ST. ANNS EPISCOPAL CHURCH 35,312.64 

ST. JOHN, AMY H & KYLE M 1,476.48 

ST. LAURENT RAY B &  RHONDA J TRUSTEES 8,419.20 

ST. LAURENT RHONDA J & RAY B 1,714.56 

ST. MARTIN, RAYMOND & CATHERINE 3,410.88 

ST. ONGE, NATHAN & STACY 3,996.48 

ST. PIERRE, MICHAEL 2,571.84 

STACK, MICHAEL & KORI 3,202.56 

STAFFORD REALTY TRUST 5,809.92 

STAICH, LAURA & RUEDI, PHILIP 7,132.80 

STAMPLIS, JOANNE M & MATTHEW 6,524.16 

STANDISH, JOHN L & CAROL C 423.36 

STANDISH, JOHN L & CAROL C 981.12 

STANTON, JOHN M & SONDI 3,730.56 

STAPLES, SCOTT A 1,634.88 

STAPLES, SCOTT A & WENDY J 3,777.60 

STAR, PAUL H & LORRAINE B 3,160.32 

STARFISH POINT LLC 3,426.24 

STARITA, PAUL J & SAMPSON, LINDSAY A 936.00 

STARITA, SHAWN P 2,530.56 

STAVROS, DINO G & MARILYN 3,326.40 

STEAD, JOHN & ELAINE 2,947.20 

STEELE, JAMES E II & LYNNE M 394.56 

STELTZER, GORDON L & JOHANNE C 2,064.00 

STEPHEN C. PAGE REVOCABLE TRUST 9,120.96 

STEPHENS BENJAMIN F III 3,555.84 

STERLING REVOCABLE TRUST 1,473.60 

STEWART, CATHLEEN REVOCABLE TRUST 2,823.36 

STEWART, CRAIG P & MCGINNITY, TERRY L 1,699.20 

STEWART, EDWARD J III 2,094.72 
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STEWART, HELEN F & EDWARD J III 20,287.68 

STEWART, JENIFER J & CHARLES EVAN 4,050.24 

STIEVATER, DAVID N & KATHERINE V 3,090.24 

STIMPSON, ANNA M 2,429.76 

STIMPSON, DANIEL L & VIRGINIA W 5,454.72 

STIRES, DAVID & ALLISON 7,899.84 

STOCKMAN, JAMES & CORNELIA 2,874.24 

STOCKWELL, RICHARD S & ELIZABETH L 26,447.04 

STOHLMAN, SUZANNE 7,851.84 

STONE, THOMAS A & COPPOLA, LISA A 4,875.84 

STONEHOUSE, LLC 41,248.32 

STOREY, R LOUISE & RUSSELL G 4,108.80 

STORNELLI, MARK F & SUSAN J 5,902.08 

STOWERS, ELAINE R 7,969.92 

STRACHAN FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 4,266.24 

STRACHAN FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 9,527.04 

STRACK, BRIAN 3,376.32 

STRATER, HARRIET HARDING 3,054.72 

STRATFORD, MATTHEW J 7,663.68 

STRAUB, CHARLES W JR & CAROL J 2,534.40 

STRAUSS, JILL A & GLYNN, F VALERIE 3,730.56 

STRICKLAND, HELOISE L 2,129.28 

STRIPERS WATERSIDE RESTAURANT 167.23 

STROLL, EARLE B & LEIGHTON, KATHLEEN E 3,415.68 

STRONG, FREDERIC B 2,167.68 

STRONG, KEITH R 1,185.60 

STUART, ROBERT L JR 1,574.40 

STUDLEY, MICHAEL J 4,419.84 

SUBILIA, LINDA H 6,925.44 

SUCH, DANIEL J & WILLIAMS, ADRIENNE G 2,058.24 

SUDALTER FAMILY COMPANY, LLC 1,525.44 

SUDALTER FAMILY COMPANY, LLC 6,249.60 

SUDORA, TODD & MATERA, DAWN 3,720.00 

SUE A ROTH FAMILY TRUST & DAVIS, REBECCA 3,146.88 

SULLIVAN, ANN F 2,613.12 

SULLIVAN, ANNE & JACKSON, ELIZABETH 1,989.12 

SULLIVAN, BRIAN J & ANNE K 2,677.44 

SULLIVAN, CHARLES W & JUDITH 2,605.44 

SULLIVAN, CHARLES W & JUDITH 6,994.18 

SULLIVAN, JAMES & LINDA 6,664.32 

SULLIVAN, JEANNE C & HANLON, SUSAN E 2,924.16 

SULLIVAN, JOANNE M 4,032.96 

SULLIVAN, KEVIN J 5,827.20 

SULLIVAN, KEVIN J & REGINA M 1,142.40 

SULLIVAN, MARGUERITE C 1,119.36 

SULLIVAN, MARK J & LINDA L 8,284.80 

SULLIVAN, MICHAEL P & CHRISTINE E 5,946.24 

SULLIVAN, ROBERT & LESLIE 6,037.44 

SULLIVAN, ROBERT F & MARGUERITE C 2,956.42 

SUSAN BASSETT LIVING TRUST 2,919.36 

SUSAN J REES TRUST 7,617.60 

SUSAN P WRIGHT REVOCABLE TRUST 3,519.36 

SUSAN T BUCK TRUST 1,776.00 

SUSAN T BUCK TRUST 8,090.88 

SUTTON, MARK S 3,614.40 

SUZANNE WILSON TRUST 8,154.24 

SV17 LLC 32,387.52 

SWANTON, CHRISTINE E & BRUCE D 8,102.40 

SWEENEY, JOHN & ANN-MARIE 5,389.44 

SWEET PEA PARTNERS, LLC 7,265.28 

SWEETLAND, DAVID R & JOYANNE S REV TRUST 3,296.64 

SWENNES, JON R 5,770.56 

SWORDS, CANDACE E 10,820.16 

SZOSTOWSKI, DAVID J & SHELIA L 6,168.96 

SZUCH, RICHARD C & COLLEEN D 7,967.04 

T & L, LLC 4,017.60 

T&S FAMILY REALTY TRUST 4,403.52 

TACY, BETTY ANN & STUART 3,877.44 

TAGGART, GREGORY A & MICHELLE M 6,105.60 

TAHAN, MICHAEL A & BONNIE A 6,320.64 

TALMAGE, ARCHIBALD A III 4,292.16 

TANSEY, MARGARET L & JOSEPH L JR 4,796.16 

TARDIFF, JAMES 11,772.48 

TARKA, LORI A 2,865.60 

TAYLOR, DEAN M & SUZAN M 2,044.80 

TAYLOR, JOHN C & GINA S 2,305.92 

TAYLOR, JONATHAN J & SAN JUANITA 4,242.24 

TAYLOR, WAYNE C & LISA 5,431.68 

TAYLOR-REYNOLDS TRUST 15,424.32 

TEANY, DOUGLAS R. & MEREDITH 8,982.72 

TEDESCO, JOHN A 1,654.08 

TEELE LIVING TRUST 3,580.80 

TELLO, JOHN L & JANE R 2,268.48 

TEMAN, JUSTIN & ORLINOFF-MUSE, REBECCA 3,801.60 

TEMKIN, MARINA G 2,903.04 

TENNEY, DAVID B JR 3,283.20 

TENNEY, LAUREN S 4,618.56 

TEPPER, MICHELE K & STEPHEN C 4,101.12 

TERRY, MARK H & FRANCES K 2,457.60 

THAYER, DENNIS R & DIANE H 3,455.62 

THAYER, JENNIFER E 10,935.36 

THE BRYANT LANE TRUST 6,042.24 

THE LOST FIRE 212.45 

THELIN, VINCENT J & SUSAN E 4,216.32 

THEMENS, PIERRE-ANDRE & PERUSSE, JOHANNE 11,986.56 

THIBODEAU, MARGUERITE E 3,360.00 

THIBODEAU, MAXINE & OMER 6,596.74 

THIBODEAU, ROBERT 105.60 

THOMAS E BRADBURY REVOCABLE TRUST 839.04 

THOMAS E BRADBURY REVOCABLE TRUST 4,253.76 

THOMAS E BRADBURY REVOCABLE TRUST 5,664.00 

THOMAS L. GALLERANI TRUST 7,121.28 

THOMAS M REGAN REVOC TRUST 2,903.04 

THOMAS W MCCLAIN 2009 TRUST 1,689.60 

THOMAS W MCCLAIN 2009 TRUST 6,078.72 

THOMAS, ANDREA 1,878.72 

THOMAS, GORDON A & DEBORAH A 3,631.68 

THOMAS, RANDOLPH & SHANNON 1,958.40 

THOMPSON, ANDREW & VERBENA 4.80 

THOMPSON, BENJAMIN & 7,492.80 
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THOMPSON, DAVID M & LISA C 2,784.00 

THOMPSON, HARRY A III & JILL M 6,158.40 

THOMPSON, JACOB D 2,587.20 

THOMPSON, JOANNE 2,578.56 

THOMPSON, JOHN W & TERI L 7,581.12 

THOMPSON, KATHRYN H 3,482.88 

THOMPSON, PAGE H & HEATHER M 16,982.40 

THOMPSON, PAMELA 2,317.44 

THOMPSON, PAUL D & ANNE MARIE 1,833.60 

THORNTON, LYNDA J 2,211.84 

THREE DYKE ROAD LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 4,170.24 

THREE M TREATS DBA BEN & JERRY 12.00 

THRONE STOE CORPORATION 3,745.92 

THYBERG, JR, JOHN  E 2,146.56 

TIDEMARK CORPORATION 4,713.60 

TIDEMARK CORPORATION 19,711.68 

TIDES BEACH CLUB, LLC 1,312.32 

TIDES BEACH CLUB, LLC 23,064.00 

TIDES END, LLC 2,758.08 

TIDES INN 2,411.23 

TIDES SUITES OWNER, LLC 1,360.32 

TIDES SUITES OWNER, LLC 9,531.84 

TIDEWATER COTTAGE, LLC 2,895.36 

TIGER ELEVEN, LLC 23,470.08 

TIGHT LINES TRUST 32,000.64 

TILLOTSON, DEBRA J 5,137.92 

TILNEY, KATHERINE R 4,824.96 

TILNEY, PETER VR & GARVIN, KRISTEN L 9,910.08 

TILNEY, PETER VR & KATHERINE R 2,634.24 

TIMBER ISLE TRUST 3,793.92 

TIMOTHY GOOD TRUST 3,427.20 

TIMPERIO, NICHOLAS & ROBIN M 8,424.96 

TINA, LLC 5,978.88 

TITO, LISA 3,809.28 

TIZA, LLC 2,743.68 

TMW PROPERTIES, LLC 9,221.76 

TODHUNTER, STEPHEN J & JULIA L 5,569.92 

TOMASULO, MICHAEL & MELISSA 9,494.40 

TOMPKINS REVOCABLE LIVING TRUST 3,257.28 

TONNESON, H RICHARD & EVELYN 6,246.72 

TOO COOL 46.08 

TORTORA, DORA 501.50 

TOWNSLEY, SUSAN P & GREGORY O DAVIS 5,280.96 

TRACY L DURCAN REVOCABLE TRUST 6,952.32 

TRACY, ANN M & JONATHAN E REVOC TRUST 3,159.36 

TRACY, LAURENCE W JR & JOANNE E 2,394.62 

TRAVERSO, ANTHONY P & MARY 208.32 

TRAYNHAM, BROOKE 3,552.00 

TREE HOUSE REALTY TRUST 6,787.20 

TREETOPS, LLC 7,288.32 

TREMBLAY, CHARLES R 3,906.24 

TRENCHARD, WEBSTER T & MICHELE A 3,871.68 

TRIMPER, DANIEL IV & JANET H TRUSTEES 4,100.16 

TRIPLE L HOLDINGS, LLC 3,173.76 

TRIPLE L HOLDINGS, LLC 7,804.80 

TROEGNER, CLARA M 2,827.20 

TROIANO, JEFFREY S & ABBY D 6,526.08 

TRUDO, JONATHAN T & KAREN L 1,687.68 

TRUDO, MICHELLE 5,597.76 

TRUHAN, ANDREW P 5,611.20 

TRUMAN, THOMAS D & JEANNE L 1,995.84 

TRYON, NORA H & RICHARD D 2,916.48 

TUFTS, STEPHANIE A 81.60 

TULLER, DEBORAH J 873.60 

TULLER, DEBORAH J 4,741.44 

TURBATS CREEK PRESERVATION, LLC 1,655.04 

TURBATS CREEK, LLC 6,856.32 

TURGEON, STEPHEN G 2,354.88 

TURNER, HERMAN E JR & GIRROIR, DAWN 2,378.88 

TURNER, MARK R & JULIE M 4,732.80 

TURNER, STEVEN & HANLON, MARYJANE 6,839.04 

TUTHILL, GREGORY W & TRACEY W 3,092.16 

TUTHILL, GREGORY W & TRACEY W 3,422.40 

TWENTY OAK STREET, LLC 8,330.88 

TWITCHELL, WENDY E 1,919.04 

TYLER, JOAN A 23,841.22 

TYLER, TROY 4,460.16 

TYNAN, JOSEPH C & PATRICIA L 6,527.04 

TYNAN, PATRICIA 3,973.44 

TYNIK, JOSEPH J & SANDRA L 2,589.12 

TYZIK, NINA E 6,332.16 

UNDERWOOD, CHRISTOPHER K 3,696.96 

UNION MILLS TRUST 1,553.28 

URIARTE, MARCIA C 6,211.20 

US CELLULAR 62.02 

VAILAS, JAMES C & KELLEY, MARGARET E 10,960.32 

VALENZUELA FAMILY TRUST 7,555.20 

VALLS, NICHOLAS 4,656.96 

VALLS, NICHOLAS & MARIA I 2,102.40 

VAN BENTHUYSEN, WILLIAM & MAUREEN 3,381.12 

VAN LULING, RYAN P & ANDREA M 6,279.36 

VANDER SCHAAFF, THOMAS L & SARAH M 10,453.44 

VANDERPOOL, JOHN J & MEGHAN S 1,216.32 

VANSONS, INCORPORATED 6,823.68 

VARZAKIS, JAMES G & ROY, RENELLE M 2,378.88 

VASTARDIS, PAULINE L 3,796.80 

VAZQUEZ, ANTHONY 2,720.64 

VEILLET-CORELLO LIVING TRUST 6,011.52 

VELJI REALTY LLC 5,465.28 

VELJI REALTY LLC 7,387.20 

VENNELL, LAWRENCE M & BARBARA 1,959.36 

VERIZON WIRELESS 116.64 

VERNICK, JOHANNA B 9,446.40 

VESTA TRUST 2,309.76 

VETRANO, JOHN & PATRICIA 4,731.84 

VIDEN, ERIC A 2,938.56 

VIEHMANN, ANTHONY G & NANCY H 10,294.08 

VIEHMANN, DANIEL C 1,130.88 

VIEHMANN, DANIEL C & MELISSA J 2,156.16 

VIEHMANN, DANIEL C & MELISSA J 2,385.60 
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VIEHMANN, MELISSA J 1,263.36 

VIEIRA, THOMAS 1,151.04 

VIOLA JAMES & JENNIFER 4,537.92 

VIOLETTE, THERESA C 901.44 

VIRGINIA KOSLOW DIMOLA INVEST TRUST 3,557.76 

VIRGINIA L NELSON REVOCABLE TRUST 2,042.88 

VIRLINDA G WALSH TRUST 4,569.60 

VITALI, LOUIS 3,510.72 

VITALI, LOUIS 15,396.48 

VLACHOS, AIMEE T & GRIFFITH, CODY B 3,011.52 

W 131 KINGS HIGHWAY, LLC 7,750.08 

WABASHA LEASING LLC 198.91 

WAGNER, KAREN L ET AL 1,248.96 

WAGOR, DAVID & MARGARET 2,307.84 

WAHWA FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 1,283.52 

WAHWA FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 11,402.88 

WAHWA FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 11,592.96 

WAINMAN, PAUL R & HELEN J 9,641.28 

WAITT, ALBERT R III & KIMBERLY C 3,011.52 

WAKELAND, PAUL  R 2,107.78 

WALKER REALTY TRUST 2,911.68 

WALKER, JOHN C & KATHLEEN 5,209.92 

WALKER, JOHN W JR &, KAREN L 2,242.56 

WALKER, MARY A & WILDES, HELEN W 516.48 

WALKER, MICHAEL J & LESLIE A 4,560.96 

WALKER, STEPHEN A & MARGARET T 1,871.04 

WALKERS POINT FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 17,976.96 

WALKERS POINT FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 29,905.92 

WALKERS POINT FAMILY LIMITED PARTNERSHIP 81,606.72 

WALL, ROBERT C & LINDA L 2,785.92 

WALLIS, WARREN 20,521.92 

WALSH EDWARD M & PAULA A 3,151.68 

WALSH, GEORGE F, JR & CAROLYN 4,132.80 

WALSH, JOHN T & MADELEINE R 2,239.68 

WALSH, KEVIN F & LORRAINE M 11,294.40 

WALSH, NANCY G 2,324.16 

WALSH, RICHARD F 5,822.40 

WALSH, WILLIAM R & CAROL E 2,942.40 

WALTERS, ALAN S & TRACY 3,415.68 

WALTERS-SWIFT, TERRALYNN & KATRINA 3,959.04 

WALTON FAMILY REALTY TRUST 14,397.12 

WALTON, MARK A & HAGEMAN, MARY S 5,622.72 

WARD, DUANE E 2,102.40 

WARD, JOSEPH L & LEIGH ANNE 3,489.60 

WARD, KEVIN  C 2,732.16 

WARD, LINDA E & PRICE, STEVEN R 3,216.00 

WARE, JOHN 3,692.16 

WARNER, JENNIE & DOW, LEWIS A 1,029.12 

WARREN, PETER & GRETCHEN 10,290.24 

WASHINGTON SQUARE, LLC 16,431.36 

WASILESKI, MARY A 3,833.28 

WASKIEWICZ, ROBERT J 3,476.16 

WATER STREET WEST, LLC 19,509.12 

WATERHOUSE, MICHAEL S & COLLEEN P 1,913.28 

WATERMAN, JANET 3,243.84 

WATSON, MARY L 2,547.84 

WATSON, THOMAS C & MCCARTHY, JOAN A 3,535.68 

WAUGH, HARVEY J & MARGARET C 6,106.56 

WAUGH, KIMBERLY 1,915.20 

WEAGLE, STEPHANIE 510.34 

WEBB, JAMES S & PAULA 12,102.72 

WEBER, DEREK S 6,990.72 

WEBSTER, ERNA I & LOGOVSKY, ESTHER R 1,810.56 

WEBSTER, PATRICIA J TRUSTEE 269.76 

WEBSTER, PATRICIA J TRUSTEE 9,164.16 

WEED, GARY & KATHERINE B 3,284.16 

WEIDNER, WILLIAM E & CYNTHIA L 14,864.64 

WEIS, JEREMY A & PERKINS, CRAIG L 4,372.80 

WELCH, LYDIA K & ANDREW E 2,983.68 

WELLES, EDWARD O & KAREN E 2,644.80 

WELLESLEY GROUP, LLC 897.60 

WELLESLEY GROUP, LLC 1,477.44 

WELLESLEY GROUP, LLC 13,136.64 

WELLESLEY GROUP, LLC 18,833.28 

WELLS FARGO VENDOR FINANCIAL 32.26 

WENDLE, JANET L 3,433.92 

WENDY B CASE TRUST 16,235.52 

WENGEL, ROBERT & FORMICHELLI, GINA 19,676.16 

WENTWORTH, SARAH H 3,583.68 

WENTWORTH-BENNETT, TERRI L & MICHAEL A 4,728.96 

WENZEL, NINA  S ET AL 2,017.92 

WE'RE HERE, LLC 3,525.12 

WEST, ANGELA & PERFECT, DAVID W 1,282.56 

WEST, CHRISTOPHER SJ & JENNIFER M 5,581.44 

WEST, JOSHUA & STACY 903.36 

WEST, JOSHUA & STACY 948.48 

WEST, MICHAEL E 1,032.96 

WEST, RICHARD T 4,149.12 

WEST, SHEILA A 1,235.52 

WESTER, ROBERT H & DENISE D 3,917.76 

WESTERLY TRUST 15,393.60 

WESTPORT TRUST 7,427.52 

WEYL, THOMAS J III & PAMELA C 15,377.28 

WHALEN, JOHN F JR & CHRISTIN H 5,112.00 

WHALON, ROSALIND W & PETER G 8,318.40 

WHETSELL, M HEYWARD JR & SHERRILL A 4,296.00 

WHIDD, LLC 8,676.48 

WHIMSY SHOP 20.64 

WHITE CAP PROPERTIES, LLC 16,535.04 

WHITE, BLAINE C 1,776.96 

WHITE, JEFFREY  J 2,008.32 

WHITE, LLC 25,621.44 

WHITE, PRISCILLA K 13,302.72 

WHITEHEAD, HOWARD J & MARY ELLEN 8,964.48 

WHITNEY, SUSAN EMMONS 3,850.56 

WHITTAKER, LEIGH & DILLON, BRIAN 2,905.92 

WHITTEMORE LANE IRREVOCABLE TRUST 5,410.56 

WHITTEMORE, CHARLES R & KRISTINE S 9,251.52 

WHITTEMORE-BARCLAY, SUZANNE 23,803.20 

WHITWORTH, PAUL R JR & LUDDY, JOYCE W 10,983.36 
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WIELINSKI, THOMAS J & SUSAN 1,540.80 

WIEWEL, MICHAEL & SUSAN 4,171.20 

WILCOX, TED & DAVIS, IVORY 127.68 

WILD HORSE TAVERN, LLC 8,510.40 

WILDES, BROS JAMES ET AL 267.84 

WILDES, CHARLES L 1,041.60 

WILDES, CHARLES L SR ET AL 75.84 

WILDES, CHARLES L SR ET AL 106.56 

WILDES, CHARLES L SR ET AL 826.56 

WILDES, GREGORY GORDON 2,802.24 

WILDES, HOWARD G & S PATRICIA 2,869.44 

WILDES, SUZANNE I & PETER H 1,981.44 

WILDES, THOMAS E & BENJAMIN TRUSTEES 3,869.38 

WILDES, WILLIAM F & JANET 1,867.20 

WILDES, WILLIAM T & NANCY M 8,250.24 

WILEY, BRUCE E & CAROLYN B TRUSTEES 2,373.12 

WILKERSON, TARRYN & SEAN 520.90 

WILKINS, JAMES D & JANICE M 6,672.00 

WILLARD, FRANK H 3,607.68 

WILLEY, THOMAS A & VIOLET 1,002.82 

WILLIAM & SHEILA LONSTEIN REVOC TRUST 2,356.80 

WILLIAM AND DEBORAH BABINEAU TRUST 8,329.92 

WILLIAM J LEFFLER II LIVING TRUST 6,376.90 

WILLIAMS, EMILY B & SILLS, DIANE M 7,822.08 

WILLIAMS, SHELLY L 1,868.16 

WILLIAMSON, ROBERT S 13,318.08 

WILLS, RICHARD T JR & ROSE A 1,913.28 

WILSON S GOODWIN TRUST 12,759.36 

WILSON, ANGUS L & STEPHEN C TRUSTEES 88.32 

WILSON, ARLINE E 4,223.04 

WILSON, KINDER H L 3,036.48 

Wilson, Raymond 67.97 

WINSTANLEY, ADAM D 14,821.44 

WINSTANLEY, BARBARA A 15,212.16 

WINSTANLEY, MELISSA F 17,010.24 

WINSTON & CHRISTINE RYAN FAMILY REVOC TR 6,767.62 

WIRTES FAMILY REVOCABLE TRUST 3,002.88 

WIRTH, CHRISTOPHER P 5,823.36 

WITEK, JAMES & PETEGROW, MARK D 1,232.64 

WJS 1961, LLC 6,585.60 

WOLF, JANET L & J R 3,368.64 

WOLFF, BERND D & AMY K 1,047.36 

WOLFF, BERND D & AMY K 2,598.72 

WOLFF, HANS D & RUTH 2,520.00 

WOLFF, SUSANNE & JENNI, JOHN J 2,840.64 

WOLOSKO, MARK A 2,391.36 

WON, JENNIFER & CHRISTIAN SCHLUBACH 952.32 

WON, JENNIFER & CHRISTIAN SCHLUBACH 1,156.80 

WONG, SAMUEL S & CONSTANCE B 3,641.28 

WOOD, DEBRA JEAN 8,511.36 

WOODMAN PROPERTIES LLC 3,262.08 

WOODMAN, KRISTEN P & RICHARD W 2,148.48 

WOODMAN, KRISTEN P & RICHARD W 4,098.24 

WOODMAN, MARY F & ROBERT B 4,983.36 

WOOLFOLK, CLAIRE 1,656.96 

WORTHEN, JONATHAN 2,370.24 

WORTHLEY, KELVIN A 85.44 

WORTHLEY, KELVIN A 2,214.72 

WORTHLEY, KELVIN A 5,095.30 

WORTHLEY, KELVIN A & DIANA M 100.80 

WORTHLEY, KELVIN A & DIANA M 5,763.84 

WORTHLEY, ROBERT A & EILEEN 6,048.00 

WOSTBROCK, STEVEN F & HEIDI S 3,732.48 

WOTHERSPOON, GILLIAN G 124.80 

WOZNY, MARK 2,039.04 

WRIGHT FAMILY PROPERTY LP 10,124.16 

WRIGHT, DAVID A 7,054.08 

WRIGHT, EDWARD & BARBARA 5,081.28 

WRIGHT, EMILY 4,789.44 

WRIGHT, PATRICIA L 1,729.92 

WRIGHT, ROBERT W & JACALYN M 2,641.92 

WRIGLEY, D ALAN JR 2,629.44 

WYMAN, ERIC W & DIANE L 2,010.24 

WYMAN, JASON E & ELISE A 3,279.36 

WYMAN, PRISCILLA C & ROSS 502.08 

WYMAN, PRISCILLA C & ROSS 3,574.08 

WYMAN, PRISCILLA C & ROSS 7,885.44 

WYMAN, REGINA R 703.68 

WYSOCKI, BENJAMIN S & KIM S 4,706.88 

YACHTSMAN HOSPITALITY, LLC 41,134.08 

YACHTSMAN HOTEL & MARINA CLUB 4,308.38 

YANAGI, MELISSA 29,375.04 

YANKOWSKI, GEORGE E JR & JANICE G 6,536.64 

YANKOWY, WENDY S 2,449.92 

YORK REALTY TRUST 3,587.52 

YORKE MAX, LLC 1,816.32 

YORK-MCCARTHY, RUTH F 3,042.24 

YOUNG, DAVID K & GILBERT, MARY BETH 3,110.40 

YOUNG, DAVID K & GILBERT, MARY BETH 6,354.24 

YOUNG, RALPH E 2,652.48 

YOUNG, SARA 1,948.80 

ZAGOREN GOOSE ROCKS REALTY TRUST 15,653.76 

ZAKARIN, KEITH & JOANN FERRERA 5,621.76 

ZAMBELLI, LINDA S 82.56 

ZAMBELLI, LINDA S 6,143.04 

ZAMOR, LEE J 365.76 

ZARRELLA, JOHN A & WENDY B 5,705.28 

ZEINER, CHARLES F 1,891.20 

ZEINER, CHARLES F 2,219.52 

ZELLWEGER, SUSAN G 9,489.60 

ZENO, DEBORAH Y & THOMAS J 7,166.40 

ZILDJIAN, ARMEN M & SYBIL H 2,975.04 

ZIMMERMAN FAMILY 2012 QRPT 21,942.72 

ZIMMERMANN, JOHN D 2,896.32 

ZOLPER, ANDREW 5,777.28 

ZORY, STANLEY & HELLER, MARGARET A 2,063.04 

ZUEGG, FREDERIC & ELIZABETH 521.95 
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2021 UNPAID REAL ESTATE TAXES 

  
BICKFORD, WADE E & TAMMY L 88.87 
BOWDOIN, TERESA  (LIFE ESTATE) 802.83 
WEBSTER, ERNA I & LOGOVSKY, ESTHER R 880.05 
WEST, ANGELA & PERFECT, DAVID W 969.89 
SENNING, BENJAMIN & SARAH 1,367.50 
LOW, DARLENE 1,420.76 
PLAISTED, SCOTT L 2,435.27 
GOODWIN, KAREN A 2,458.89 
MCLUSKEY, PETER K 2,863.35 
MEEHAN MAINE REALTY TRUST 2,947.46 
STRATER, HARRIET HARDING 3,006.99 
NASSAU TOWER REALTY, LLC 3,173.26 
WEED, GARY & KATHERINE B 3,232.85 
TITO, LISA 3,735.59 
TYLER, TROY 3,747.27 
DEMARRE, JAMES P & CHERYL B 5,184.27 
DRIES, WILLIAM & LISA M H 6,251.18 

 

2021 UNPAID PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

  
OLD SALT PANTRY & GIFTS 26.84 
PURE CENTER INTEGRATED HEALTH 27.41 
ROMA PIZZA/MANGIAMO 37.14 
RHUMB LINE MOTOR LODGE 45.08 
LEAF CAPITAL FUNDING LLC 106.6 
GOOSE ROCKS DAIRY 188.24 
AT&T MOBILITY LLC 198.54 
GAETA, CHERYL & GUIOD, DIANE 505.58 
ROBERT H BROWN INC 610.19 

 

2020 UNPAID REAL ESTATE TAXES 

  
INNISS, MICHAEL 33.08 
TITO, LISA 3,764.88 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

2020 UNPAID PERSONAL PROPERTY TAXES 

  
OLD SALT PANTRY & GIFTS 28.92 
ROMA PIZZA/MANGIAMO 41.95 
PURE CENTER INTEGRATED HEALTH 42.43 
LEAF CAPITAL FUNDING LLC 120.96 
GOOSE ROCKS DAIRY 202.89 
RHUMB LINE MOTOR LODGE 471.93 
GAETA, CHERYL & GUIOD, DIANE 582.74 
ROBERT H BROWN INC 821.68 

  
This list contains unpaid balances 

as of June 30, 2022 
Unpaid tax amounts listed above 

do not include interest 
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TOWN OFFICERS FOR 2022 

SELECTMEN, ASSESSORS & 
OVERSEERS OF THE POOR 

Edward W. Hutchins, II, Chair 

D. Michael Weston, Vice Chair

Allen A. Daggett

Jon Dykstra

Sheila Matthews-Bull

TOWN MANAGER 

Laurie Smith 

POLICE CHIEF 

Craig Sanford 

FIRE CHIEF 

John Everett 

DISTRICT FIRE CHIEFS 

Scott Lantagne, District 1 

James Burrows, District 2 

Noel Graydon, District 3 

FOREST FIRE WARDEN 

(APPOINTED BY STATE) 
Ricky Brown 

EMERGENCY MANAGEMENT 

Craig Sanford, Director 

John Everett, Deputy Director 

PUBLIC SAFETY COMMITTEE 

Craig Sanford, Police Chief/EMA Director 

John Everett, Fire Chief 

Joseph Carroll, KEMS 

Chris Simeoni, Public Works Director 

Edward W. Hutchins, II, Selectmen's Rep 

PUBLIC ACCESS OFFICER 

Tracey O'Roak 

TOWN CLERK 

Tracey O'Roak 

REGISTRAR OF VOTERS 

Tracey O'Roak 

TREASURER 

Nicole Evangelista 

TAX & EXCISE COLLECTOR 
Laurie Smith 

TAX ASSESSOR 
Becky Nolette, CMA 

PLANNING & DEVELOPMENT DIRECTOR 

Werner Gilliam 

CODE ENFORCEMENT OFFICERS 

Werner Gilliam 

David Gilchrest, II, Asst. CEO 

Gregory Reid, Asst. CEO 

ROAD COMMISSIONER 

Chris Simeoni 

RECREATION DIRECTOR 
Stephanie Simpson 

PUBLIC HEAL TH OFFICE 

Alison Kenneway, B.S.N., R.N. 

GENERAL ASSISTANCE DIRECTOR 

Alison Kenneway, B.S.N., R.N. 

NURSING STAFF 

Alison Kenneway, B.S.N., R.N. 

Stacey Corsie, B.S.N., R.N. 

Kim Noble, M.B.A., B.S.N., R.N. 

Kristen Garvin, M.S., B.S.N., R.N. 

HARBORMASTER- KENNEBUNK RIVER 

Jamie Houtz 

HARBORMASTER - CAPE PORPOISE 
Frank Orr, 11

PIER MANAGER, CAPE PORPOISE 
Frank Orr, 11

Shellfish Warden 

Everett Leach 

STREET NAMING & NUMBERING OFFICER 

John Everett 
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TOWN ONLINE SERVICES 

Pay online with a credit card or electronic check: 

ATV or snowmobile renewals 

Boat registration renewals 

Code enforcement office payments 

Dog licensing (October 15 - January 31) 

Hunting/fishing licenses 

Parking tickets 

Personal property taxes 

There is a convenience fee for all online services 

Electronic checks $2.95 

Pier dues 

Pier fuel payments 

Real estate taxes 

Recreation programs 

Sewer bills 

Vehicle renewals 

Real estate and property tax 

Parking tickets and sewer bills: 

2.75% with a $2.00 charge of $2.00 

Payment amount 

$0.00 to $50.00 

$50.01 to $100.00 

$100.01 to $200.00 

$200.01 to $300.00 

$300.01 to $400.00 

$400.01 and above 

Fee 

$2.00 

$3.00 

$6.00 

$9.00 

$12.00 

Add $3.00 to listed total for each $100.00 range or portion thereof. 

For online services, visit the Town website at www.kennebunkportme.gov and select the top, 

on line "E-Payments" tab. 

The Town offers online availability as a public service to all town board and committee meetings 

that are broadcast on local cable channel 1301. These meetings may be viewed at the Town's 

Website at http://www.kennebunkportme.gov and click on the "Meeting Videos" tab. These 

meetings are also available on YouTube at Kennebunkport television. 

All meetings broadcast on cable channel 1301 such as the Board of Selectmen, Planning Board, 

Growth Planning Committee, and RSU #21 are streamed "live" on the internet at the above 

address and available for viewing at any time for one year after the initial broadcast. 

The web access is hosted by Town Hall Streaming, a Maine Company based in York. This service 

allows residents to view meetings at individual convenience. It benefits households that do not 

have cable service and also property owners who do not live year-round in Kennebunkport. 
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SCHEDULE OF TOWN BUSINESS HOURS 

Town Office 

6 Elm Street 

Monday - Friday 

8:00 am - 4:30 pm 

Public Works Department 

105 Beachwood Avenue 

Monday - Friday 

7:00 am - 3:30 pm 

Meetings 
Beach Advisory Committee 

Public Health Department 

101 Main Street 

Monday - Friday 

8:30 am - 9:30 am 

Nurses' Office 
Monday - Friday 

1 :00 pm - 2:00 pm 

General Assistance 
by appointment only 

Day 
Varies 

Wastewater Department 

25 Recreation Way 

Monday - Friday 

7:00 am - 3:30 pm 

Police Department 

101 Main Street 

24/7 

Cape Porpoise Pier Advisory Committee 
Conservation Commission 

Last Wednesday of the month 
2nd Monday 

Time 
Varies 
7:00 pm 
7:00 pm 
6:00 pm 
7:00 pm 
6:00 pm 
6:00 pm 
Varies 
7:00 pm 

Growth Planning Committee 
Kennebunk River Committee 
Planning Board 
Board of Selectmen 
Sewer Advisory Committee 
Zoning Board of Appeals 

1st and 3rd Tuesday as needed 
3rd Tuesday 
1st & 3rd Wednesday as needed 
2nd & 4th Thursday 
Varies 
2nd & 4th Monday as needed 

The meetings of the Board of Selectmen are televised live on Cable Channel 1301, at 6 p.m. on the 

second and fourth Thursdays of the month. Also broadcast are the Beach Advisory Committee, 

Growth Planning Committee, Planning Board, Village Parcel Master Plan Committee, and Zoning 

Board of Appeals meetings. Please check Channel 1301 for an up-to-date list of broadcast and 

rebroadcast scheduled times. 

Board of Selectmen meetings and other committee meetings can also be streamed on YouTube on 

Kennebunkport Television. 

Meeting agendas, minutes, and Board members' names are available on the Town's website at: 

http://www.kennebunkportme.gov. 
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